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Financial Highlights
B AL EE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE = EBf i8R 17
RMB million AR EHE T

Revenue Gross Profit

iy 25 E7

/'\

Final dividend

/'\ ° 8 KU E
[
18.0% 216 7
1,389.2  1,639.3 330.9
2017 2017
R — N Profit for the Year Profit for the year attributable
FREF to owners of the Company
AREHEEABIEFERET
Payout ratio
REE O 7
31.9% - |m -
o (o]
2017 2017

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+t—HLEFE
2018 2018 2017 2016
ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZZT—+tF TR F
YoY Change RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REEYH ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

Revenue Uz +18.0% 1,639,287 1,389,169 1,240,390
Gross profit EF +8.5% 358,904 330,876 296,91
Gross profit margin ERES -1.9b.p. 21.9% 23.8% 23.9%
Profit before taxation B A5 Al i A1 +1.7% 221,754 218,076 198,473
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KA &% H A

the Company JE 15 55 9 ) +7.2% 167,943 156,592 141,260
Earnings per share - basic BREFM-HEXK +7.3% 50.2 46.8 53.8
Final dividend (RMB cents) REBRB (ARED) — 16.0 16.0 14.0
Total assets BEE +27.2% 2,203,052 1,732,393 1,595,978
Total liabilities BeEE +56.6% 693,578 442,994 420,935
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAN/NSIE ZS N

Company FE(EHE = +9.0% 1,378,937 1,265,224 1,155,415
Net gearing ratio FEEAFRX N/A T8 A = — —

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018



Financial Highlights
B E

PATIENT VISITS 5% A A X (Thousand Visits F+ A R)

1,650.6
1,542.5

No. of
outpatient 1,428.2
EE VNN

REVENUE YOY GROWTH OF MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES EE R ZEF R U5 LA 18

\4
%
related disciplines disciplines iplines

12.1% 38.9%

related disciplines Neurology related disciplines ed disciplines ' Oncology related disciplines
e WEBSARNE BRAHNE

2018 | 2017
12.3 |18
Cardiovascular
related disciplines 3.0 | 3.3
1.4 DMEABRE Paediafrics
Internal medicine related disciplines
related disciplines

SERSEARANE
ARERRE 19.1|205 /

&G related disciplines
RENMEENE

26.2 |250

Other disciplines
Hipht=E

|8.9

General surgery
related disciplines

7.0|72

Orthopaedics oy o
related disciplines AT E
BNAEENE
6.5|6% REVENUE 5.8 |56
: : PROPORTION BY MAJOR Emergency medicine
Neurology related disciplines HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES* related disciplines
BERSNEHANE TEREWSEL ‘ SDEBRRE

—/

* The amount does not include revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services, hospital management services, sale of pharmaceutical products and others.

*ZERTEEREFEEREMERRY - BRERRESREEEROKERE M

BEREEBERNARQR 52018



2018 Milestones
2018 FEERE

Kanghua Hospital Passed the Review of Grade A Class lIl Rating
REERBB=FFRES

In June 2018 * Kanghua Hospital has successfully
maintained its rating as a Grade A Class Ill general
hospital after passing the review by the Health and
Family Planning Commission of Guangdong Province.
During the review, the hospital's healthcare capability,
scientific research and academic capability and
comprehensive operational strength have been further
enhanced.

2018F 6 A - REERIBFBBERE FEMTE
AT ELZESHHETHN =FFEREERTHE
BRI GEF=FERTR - U HE - B H
BERSE N BB ERGEESZE HH
BETHE—FRA-

I| SERGER & FAEEEARRRER
| W, WERCHSHER. RAMBAE L
I BHAERnEARE.

Fanriemdnane ¢
s B

Kanghua Hospital strengthened its cross-disciplinary diagnosis
and treatment system and established a multi-disciplinary
oncology team in 2018. In August 2018, the oncology
department of Kanghua Hospital was accepted into the
Southern Radiotherapy Quality Management Specialist Alliance
(FEFTREESERERER).

208F  REBKRNE T ZENMAFLERER  YHET
SERERDEENK - 201858 A - REBERREL
RRETREEEERER BN E BN

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018



2018 Milestones
2018 FEEE

Acquired Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
WEEERERE OMERER

In 2018, the Group has completed the acquisition
of 60% equity interest in Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital at a consideration of RMB270.0 million. In
2018, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital was rated as
a district-level chest pain centre construction project
(1% A% M 7% & 0 32 32 18 B ) in Jiangbei District, and
its cardiology department was also rated as a city-
level key clinical discipline (77 4% F& /R = B = &) in
Chongging.

7N & B 7R 2018 4F 52 AR UK B8 R B 0 I B S 28 BT 60%
ZHHE REBAARK2700BE T 2201845 &
BN I B R BB B 4 p T 28 AT Ab [ [ AR M e AP 0 3
RIBEH EEHZEROOARKTEEET TR
FeIREZh =Rl o

Acquired Anhui Hualin Rehabilitation Medical Group
WRZHEREEEREE

1 "‘

P
In 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 57% equity interest in Anhui R BHH
Hualin. The Anhui Hualin Group is mainly engaged in rehabilitation medical e :: S
services for the disabled and vocational training for the disabled. During the e I::f::.l‘-‘
year, the Group and Anhui Hualin jointly opened Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation f::r::. -:::‘_
Hospital, which further expanded the Group’s network of rehabilitation medical Tt -
institutions.

AEER 2018 F KB L AERST% 2 E - THEREER I ENEE
RAFREERRSEMEAABESE - FEA - NEBEEZHHERETH
RAEEEFREER  EREETREEBFERBRREUE—FEX -

EEEERERGERAT w208/



Looking ahead, the Group will further
seize opportunities brought on by the
reform of China’s medical industry. The
Group will accelerate the expansion
of its medical network while ensuring
the steady development of its existing
medical institutions.

RERK  AEEEE-HIEEER
TEREFROEE  ERERFE
BEREBRRERNFRK - IEREES
MREVIERM D

0. Ltd. Annual Rep
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Chen Wangzhi
PR BE A%

Chief Executive Officer
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Company, | sincerely thank all Shareholders and other
stakeholders from different parts of the community for your continuous support
to the Group. In 2018, against the backdrop of the Healthy China Strategy and
the medical and health care systems reform by the Central Government, the
Group responded to the modern trends and the directives of the new policies. On
the one hand, the Group strengthened the level of medical service with a focus
on controlling the quality of medical care and ensuring medical safety, while
providing high quality medical services to its patients. On the other hand, the Group
also aimed to enhance its core competitive strengths and continued to deepen
the development of its specialists and improve the diagnosis and treatment
capability of multiple disciplines and collaboration between departments. The
Group has been successful in establishing and operating disciplines with a
significant industry standing, and further enhancing the Kanghua brand.

TTHARBRRE

BURR -

RAZBRERARR RO EMPABRR LA E
BREMAEARA TH AR B ORE ST o
—T-N\F - TP REERES EEREANR
EBEGLERHINENASRT  A5EE
eI R IR AR AT RV ER - — T EBE
BERBKT  LEEBREERRERE
RERZL RBERESEENEERE
S—HE ARERRABEZOHEF IR
B THRMCEMER  RBASHD2AhE
MARSHEAE KB R EERBTT
KA NER - E— TR FEEME
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TR RE

Taking advantage of the capital platform as a listed company, the Group
proactively expanded its healthcare network in 2018, and made acquisitions
that are significant to the future development of the Group. In 2018, the Group
acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group,
respectively, which not only expanded the scale of the Group’s hospital services
but also enhanced the Group’s offering of rehabilitation medical services.

In terms of hospital services, in 2018, Kanghua Hospital, a subsidiary of the
Group, successfully passed the Grade A Class Il general hospital rating review
by the Guangdong Provincial Health and Family Planning Commission. During
the review process, all of the staff had made joint effort to strengthen the medical
management and control the safety and quality of the hospitals” services. The
level of capability in medical service, academic research and comprehensive
operations has remarkably improved. In addition, Kanghua Hospital increased
investment in medical equipment and medical personnel training with a view to
ensuring that it has the capability to deliver a high level of clinical diagnosis and
treatment. In conjunction, the Group’s Renkang Hospital began preparations
for the accreditation of Grade A Class Il general hospital in 2018, and, for
such purpose, effectively upgraded its hospital operational management and
strengthened its medical technology management to the standards of a Grade A
Class Il hospital. In 2018, Renkang Hospital also established the first training base
of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Dongguan, further expanding its influence in
the field of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Dongguan.

As a strategic step to expand the Group’s footprint, the Group completed the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital in August
2018 at a consideration of RMB270 million. Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital is
positioned as a high-end hospital specialized in the cardiovascular discipline. It
is dedicated to providing patients with the most professional, high-quality, and
high-standard medical services. Along with the continuous growth of the team
of experts and the constant improvement of services, Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital was able to rapidly grow its influence in the cardiovascular field in
Southwest China with promising prospects. Through such acquisition, the
Group officially set foot on the medical market in Southwest China, and further
demonstrated its prominent status in the field of cardiovascular discipline,
signifying long term strategic development of the Group.

In 2018, three of the Group’s hospitals, including Kanghua Hospital, Renkang
Hospital and the newly acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital, had
solid operations and recorded good operating performance, including 66,388
inpatient visits with a year-on-year increase of 8.6%, 1,650,592 outpatient visits
with a year-on-year increase of 7.0% and 41,045 surgical operations with a year-
on-year increase of 4.2%.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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With respect to the development of rehabilitation services, in April 2018, the
Group acquired 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin for RMB58.66 million as
consideration for transfer of equity interest and RMB20 million as capital injection.
The Anhui Hualin Group is engaged in the provision of rehabilitation services,
vocational training, investments in medical projects, management arrangements
and healthcare information consultation for the disabled in Anhui Province. At
present, the Anhui Hualin Group has 220 registered beds. The Anhui Hualin
Group recorded RMB49.67 million as revenue in 2018. In 2018, the Anhui Hualin
Group also received 36,451 outpatient visits and 1,295 inpatient visits. The
acquisition signifies the expansion of the Group’s healthcare network to East
China and the strengthening of the Group’s offering of rehabilitation services. We
believe that the Anhui Hualin Group will consistently generate synergies to the
Group.

Thanks to the solid operations and strategic planning of the Group in 2018, the
Group recorded revenue of RMB1,639.3 million with a year-on-year increase of
18.0%, and gross profit of RMB358.9 million with a year-on-year increase of 8.5%.
The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company in 2018 increased by
7.2% to RMB167.9 million. The board of directors proposed to pay final dividends
of RMB16 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018, with a dividend
payout ratio of 31.9%.

The year 2018 marked the 40th anniversary of China’s economic reform,
the key year for the implementation of the 13th Five-Year Plan, and the year
for strengthening the reform of China’s medical policy. In 2018, China’s
medical industry had seen significant developments in many areas, including
advancement of medical diagnosis and treatments, further reform of healthcare
service price, improvement in the basic healthcare insurance system,
establishment of a high-quality and efficient medical and healthcare service
system, and promoting the development of internet+ healthcare. During the
year, the Group actively responded to the policy requirements and continuously
improved the management and operation of its medical institutions.

Looking ahead, the Group will further seize the opportunities brought on by the
reform of China’s medical industry. The Group will accelerate the expansion of its
network while ensuring the steady development of its existing medical institutions.
The Group will further consolidate its leading position in the private healthcare
industry in China and strive to achieve excellent results and maximize return to
Shareholders.

Chen Wangzhi
Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Business Overview for 2018

In 2018, the Group continued fo deliver promising and solid operating results. The
Group's consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 has reached
its record high to RMB1,639.3 million (2017: RMB1,389.2 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 18.0%, mainly atributable to the growth of its owned-
hospital operations. However, at the same time, the Group had faced many
challenges including increase in medical staff costs and adjustments in various
government policies in the labour and healthcare sectors, and in particular, the
loss incurred in relation to its newly acquired specialty hospital in Chongging
during the year had caused its profit for the year to achieve only a slight increase
to RMB161.3 million (2017: RMB161.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 0.1%.

In April 2018, the Group successfully acquired 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin
Medical Investment Co., Ltd.* ("Anhui Hualin”). On the acquisition date, Anhui
Hualin directly and indirectly holds sponsor interests in certain private non-
enterprise entities in the PRC, including one class Il rehabilitation hospital, one
class | general hospital, nine rehabilitation centres for the disabled and one
vocational training school. The Board expects that the acquisition will generate
significant synergistic value to the Group and further expand the Group’s footprint
in the healthcare industry in the PRC.

Furthermore, in August 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in
Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.* (“Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital”). Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital is a specialty
hospital in cardiovascular diseases located in Chongging, the PRC. Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital was also the Group’s first managed hospital and its first
presence outside of Guangdong Province. The Board considers that, although
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital has yet to become profitable as it is still in
a start-up phase, its initial operations signify promising prospects. The Board
considers that full integration and consolidation of Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital into the Group’s operations will enable the Group to benefit from the
operating prospects of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital to a greater extent in
the long term compared to the management arrangement.

*  English translated name is for identification purpose only.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hospital Services

The Group’s owned hospitals, namely Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital,
as well as the newly acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital, have delivered
promising operating results, in particular (i) the total number of inpatient visits
reached 66,388 (2017: 61,143), representing a year-on-year increase of 8.6%; |ii)
the overall average spending per inpatient visit amounted to RMB13,855.1 (2017:
RMB13,361.1), representing a year-on-year increase of 3.7%; (iii) the overall bed
utilisation rate decreased to 85.1% (2017: 90.0%), primarily caused by the impact
of the newly acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year; (iv) the
average length of stay was slightly increased to 8.0 days (2017: 7.7 days); (v) the
total number of outpatient visits reached 1,650,592 (2017: 1,542,482), representing
a year-on-year increase of 7.0%; (vi] the overall average spending per outpatient
visit amounted to RMB334.7 (2017: RMB318.4), representing a year-on-year
increase of 5.1%; and (vii) the total number of surgical operations reached 41,045
(2017: 39,407), representing a year-on-year increase of 4.2%.

The table below sets forth certain key operational data of the Group’s owned
hospitals for the years indicated:

BEE W& D

B IR 15

REEBRENER EEERMCHEE
B DA K2 S U B8 SR B O DB R 22 e 2 BRAS AT
ENREESE  BRR  (IERAREYE
66,3885 (ZZT—t4F :61,143%) @ L F5t
ELLIEIN8.6% : (i) BFZEPLHEARNEEFY
SHAEARKEIZE5IT(ZE—+F: AR
#13,361.170) © L FFEILE K 3.7% ; (i) E
BRFERFWERBOMERRRNTEE
BURARAERERMBRELE851% (T —+
F:90.0%) ; (v FHEREMEIEE8.0XK
ZE—LF 1 77R) WP ARBEER
1,650,592 % (— T —+4F 1,542,482 %) * 1%
FERLLIBRT0%  VIBEMZHEANE
BEEHTHAAREIM 7T (ZE—+F
ANRHEE3847T) » IHFFRLERS1%: &
(Vi) IMNE T 42 B0ER 41,045 R (ZE—+ 5
39,407R)  LFFTRILERA42%

TR A K E G B H BB AT R B R
ETI2ZERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=A=t+-ALEE

Change 2018 2017
BE —E-N\F —E 4
Inpatient healthcare services I BB AR
Number of registered bed BRI B +720 3,206 2,486
Inpatient visits EB AR +8.6% 66,388 61,143
Average length of stay (days) FHEBRASE(H) +0.3 8.0 7.7
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREZ(ARET) +3.7% 13,855.1 13,361.1
Outpatient healthcare services P BRI
Outpatient visits REFNN +7.0% 1,650,592 1,542,482
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAXRFHRZ (ARET) +5.1% 334.7 318.4
Physical examination services B RIS
Physical examination visits BB AR +31.3% 219,191 166,959
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREZ(ARETT) +6.2% 450.7 424.2
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Kanghua Hospital

Kanghua Hospital has successfully maintained its rating as a Grade A Class
Il general hospital after passing the review by the Health and Family Planning
Commission of Guangdong Province. During the review, all the staff of Kanghua
Hospital made joint efforts to enhance management and control of medical safety
and quality, which led to significant improvement in the hospital’s healthcare
capability, scientific research and academic capability and comprehensive
operational strength.

In respect of medical discipline development, through continuous efforts in
improving the diagnosis and treatment capability of its departments in various
disciplines, developing specialist medical centres and enhancing cross-
disciplinary cooperation, Kanghua Hospital successfully developed a number
of disciplines and medical centres in Dongguan, and made significant progress
including: (il the establishment of the National Stroke Centre (% & & ), and
entering into cooperation agreements with 15 hospitals in Dongguan; (i) rapid
development of its National Chest Pain Centre, which expanded its coverage area
and made its services available to more patients in 2018, by authorizing 18 lower-
tier hospitals in Dongguan as collaborative institutions of the National Chest
Pain Centre of Kanghua Hospital; and (i) the stem cell transplantation and cell
treatment sector of its Hematology Centre having a leading position in Dongguan
in terms of size, the number of treatment projects and research capability.

In addition, Kanghua Hospital enhanced its cross-disciplinary diagnosis and
treatment significantly, including establishing a multi-disciplinary oncology
team covering lung, liver, breast, stomach and colorectal cancer; as a result,
the hospital’'s oncological diagnosis and treatment capability was enhanced.
In August 2018, the oncology department of Kanghua Hospital was accepted
info the Southern Radiotherapy Quality Management Specialist Alliance. The
emergency, intensive care, cardiology and general surgery departments of the
hospital also established a joint diagnosis and treatment protocol to provide
patients with comprehensive healthcare with greatly improved efficiency, safety
and convenience.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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In order to achieve better and sustainable development of specialist medical
services, Kanghua Hospital committed more resources to the purchase of
medical equipment and recruitment efforts in aftracting and grooming medical
talent, which provided a strong backbone for high quality clinical diagnosis and
improvement of medical service capability. With the establishment of medical
union and the system of multiple-site practice of doctors, Kanghua Hospital also
strengthened its connection with reputable experts in various major hospitals in
Guangdong Province, and has established cooperation relationship with more
than 60 expert doctors.

In 2018, Kanghua Hospital’'s market position was further enhanced, as
exemplified by multiple awards bestowed upon it, including the “Top 50 Hospitals
in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Bay Area of 2017, and its ranking as the
third place nationwide among the “Top 100 Private Hospitals of 2017” at the China
Hospital Competitiveness Conference 2018.

Renkang Hospital

In 2018, Renkang Hospital officially started the preparation work for applying for
the Grade A Class Il general hospital rating, and has submitted the application
and is preparing for the preliminary review. In the same year, Renkang Hospital
took the opportunity to conduct a comprehensive upgrade of the hospital’s
operations and management, improve the management system, duties of various
positions and diagnosis and treatment protocols according to the standards
applicable to Grade A Class Il hospitals, and enhance the management in
relation to medical technology, quality control and medical insurance system.

Renkang Hospital obtained the qualification of Dongguan’s occupational disease
examination in 2017 and began offering such service in 2018, which significantly
increased the business of the hospital’s physical examination centre. In addition,
after establishing the direct billing cooperation with Ping An Life Insurance, the
Ping An Life Insurance direct billing channel was officially launched at Renkang
Hospital in May 2018, which led to significant growth in the number of patients
covered under the insurance programmes of Ping An Insurance. In 2018,
Renkang Hospital established the first traditional Chinese medicine training
base in Dongguan, which further promoted the development of its traditional
Chinese medicine discipline, and enhanced the influence of Renkang Hospital in
the industry generally and the local traditional Chinese medicine community in
particular.

Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital

During the year, the Group has completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest
in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital at a consideration of RMB270.0 million,
following which Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital has become a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition represented an opportunity for
the Group to implement its strategy in relation to southwest China, and achieve
in-depth development in the cardiovascular area.

Since its opening in March 2017, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital has achieved
continuous development and rapid growth. In 2018, Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital received 10,004 outpatient visits in total, representing a year-on-year
increase of 191.3%, and 1,187 in-patients in total, representing a year-on-year
increase of 338.0%; the hospital also conducted 110 cardiac surgical operations
in fotal, representing a year-on-year increase of 129.17%, and 363 cardiological
intervention operations in total, representing a year-on-year increase of 150.3%.
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Positioned as a high-end cardiovascular specialty hospital, Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital has been committed to providing the highest standard
of professional and quality healthcare for its patients, and has been focusing on
improving medical technologies to promote the development of its cardiovascular
discipline. In 2018, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital was rated as a district-
level chest pain centre construction project in Jiangbei District, and its cardiology
department was also rated as a city-level key clinical discipline in Chongging.

In 2018, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital also entered into a cooperation
agreement with Heart Federation, the largest cardiovascular diseases treatment
and prevention service organisation in China, with respect to the sharing of
healthcare resource, including healthcare professionals and medical capability.
The National Clinical Medical Research Center for Cardiovascular Diseases also
set up a sub-center in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital. The hospital is currently
able to conduct 38 types or eight categories of cardiological intervention and
cardiac surgical operations. It is the only private hospital in Chongqging that has
capability of both cardiological operations and cardiac surgical operations, and
has a leading position in the industry in Chongging and even southwest China.

Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital will continue to enhance the introduction and
innovation of medical technology, accelerate the improvement of its capability
in critical and intensive care, focus on its strength and speciality in its existing
disciplines, and improve the brand awareness and reputation of the hospital
through external communication and marketing. The management of the Group
has full confidence in the prospects of the hospital, and believes that it will
contribute to the sustainable business development of the Group in the long term.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The table below sets forth the revenue contribution by healthcare disciplines for TR EH IR AR EFIREBERZ H B

the years indicated: =EB

For the year ended 31 December

BE+TZ-A=t—-HLFE

% of % of

revenue of revenue of

the Group’s the Group’s

2018 owned 2017 owned

Change RMB’000 hospitals RMB’000 hospitals

PIEARE DR EE

—E-N\F BEEERMN —T—+tF BEERM

Healthcare disciplines EEER 28 AR®TR WEEsk ARBTT WaEBs5

0&G related disciplines FERABRARE +5.9% 300,043 19.1 283,234 20.5

Cardiovascular related disciplines L& ABE= +19.5% 193,684 12.3 162,024 1.8

Internal medicine related disciplines RRIARERI= +17.0% 178,675 1.4 152,679 n1

General surgery related disciplines & BINIBRERIE +10.8% 136,124 8.7 122,836 8.9

Orthopaedics related disciplines BRAEBRE +12.1% 110,588 7.0 98,678 7.2

Neurology related disciplines BB EANE +12.1% 101,970 6.5 90,975 6.6
Emergency medicine related S ABME

disciplines +16.8% 90,549 58 77,547 56

Paediatrics related disciplines EREFEMNE +5.6% 47,455 3.0 44,941 3.3

Medical aesthetic related disciplines ZEZ2ERXHRRIE +1.9% 33,657 2.1 33,045 2.4

Nephrology related disciplines BRABEARE +10.7% 34,116 2.2 30,807 2.2

Oncology related disciplines BREABRE +38.9% 35,827 2.3 25,785 1.9

Physical examination Bt +39.5% 98,791 6.3 70,816 51

Other disciplines H Ath BR R RH = +13.0% 209,633 13.3 185,442 13.4

Total* st 1,571,112 100.0 1,378,809 100.0

# The amount does not include revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare  # ZEBEITBERBERERAMERERS

services, hospital management services, sale of pharmaceutical products and EREERELIEE BRAO R E R EM -

others.

Note: The Group’s healthcare disciplines can generally be classified into clinical disciplines A7 - AN B M) B2 B E R — & 7] 5 A FR K EZRIA

and medical technology disciplines. Medical technology disciplines provide EERMER - BEENERMREBRKE
diagnostic and freatment support according fo the requirements of clinical disciplines B ERTRHREHZEIAELIE - BB
from time to time. Revenue derived from services delivered through medical EBERMERRERSEENRSBERE
technology disciplines is generally recognised in the relevant clinical disciplines that 10 3 LE AR 75 ) A B B R SRR AR o

utilised such services.
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In 2018, Kanghua Hospital performed 12,523 surgeries with level 3 or level 4
complexities (2017: 10,369), representing a year-on-year increase of 20.8%.
Obstetrics and gynaecology ("O&G”) disciplines, internal medicine disciplines,
cardiovascular disciplines, general surgery disciplines and orthopaedics
disciplines remained to be the top revenue generating disciplines of the Group for
the year of 2018, accounting for approximately 58.5% of the Group’s total revenue
in hospital services in the same period (2017: 59.4%).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s medical capability
has expanded considerably and delivered strong revenue growth across all
disciplines. In particular, (a) O&G related disciplines continued to be the top
and stable revenue driver and have recorded a year-on-year revenue increase
of 5.9%, primarily attributable to (i) the expansion of O&G related workforce
and medical facilities; (i) growth in local demand and increased penetration of
reputation in the discipline; and (i) continuous strong demand for reproductive
medicine services with a year-on-year revenue increase of 10.4%; (b) revenue
from cardiovascular related disciplines recorded a strong year-on-year increase
of 19.5%, primarily attributable to the Group’s continuous growth in industry
reputation within Guangdong Province and the consolidation of revenue from
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital since its acquisition in August 2018; (c)
revenue from oncology related disciplines recorded a significant year-on-year
increase of 38.9%, a turnaround from last year's decrease, primarily attributable
to the recruitment of new oncology professionals in 2017, which had the effect of
attracting patients to Kanghua Hospital; and (d) physical examination services
recorded a year-on-year considerable increase of 39.5%, primarily as a result
of the full impact of the additional revenue derived from Kanghua Hospital —
Huawei Clinic, an outpatient division of the Group that commenced operations in
August 2017.

The Group’s special services are high-end healthcare services that extend beyond
basic medical services and are specifically catered for the more affluent patients
who are willing to pay a premium for higher quality and customised healthcare
services not generally available in public hospitals. The Group’s special services
consist of VIP healthcare services, reproductive medicine, plastic and aesthetic
surgery and laser treatment. In 2018, the total revenue derived from special
services amounted to RMB161.7 million (2017: RMB134.0 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 20.7%. In 2018, revenue from VIP healthcare services
including VIP inpatient and VIP outpatient services recorded a year-on-year
increase of 34.5%, primarily attributable to more premium service offerings from
Huaxin Building (a complex in Kanghua Hospital dedicated to VIP healthcare
services), and wider recognition of the Group’s comprehensive O&G services
dedicated to VIP patients. The demand for reproductive medicine remains strong
with a year-on-year increase of 10.4% in revenue. The Group will continue to
accelerate the expansion of the Reproductive Medicine Center to enhance
capacity fo better meet the rapidly rising market demand.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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The table below sets forth some key operating data for the Group’s special
services for the years indicated:

Special Services 45 Ik AR 7%

VIP healthcare services EEBERK
Inpatient visits FBT AR
Outpatient visits FI2 AR
Revenue (RMB'000) ham (AREFTT)

Reproductive medicine HIHEZR
Number of outpatient visits BEFNN
Revenue (RMB'000) Iz (AR F L)

Plastic and aesthetic surgery BEERIME
Revenue (RMB'000) e (AREFT)

Laser treatment R R
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (AR FT)

Total revenue from special services R RE NS
(RMB’000) (AR®F )

Rehabilitation and other Healthcare Services

In 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 57% equity interest in Anhui
Hualin by way of (i) an equity transfer of 49.71% equity interest in Anhui Hualin
from the vendor, an independent third party, at a consideration of RMB58.66
million; and (i) capital injection into Anhui Hualin on a non-pro rata basis of
RMB20.0 million. At present, Anhui Hualin directly and indirectly holds sponsor
interests in certain private non-enterprise entities in the PRC, including two
rehabilitation hospitals, one Class | general hospital (along with one clinic branch),
nine rehabilitation centres for the disabled and one vocational training school.
The Board expects that the acquisition will considerably enhance the Group’s
business of disability rehabilitation services, generate significant synergistic value
to the Group and further expand the Group’s footprint in the healthcare industry in
the PRC.

The Anhui Hualin Group has a stable cooperation with the Anhui Disabled
Persons Federation and local governments in the provision of home-based care
services for the elderly and training services for the disabled. The Anhui Hualin
Group is also a major organisation offering children rehabilitation services in
Auhui Province, the PRC.

In 2018, leveraging the strength of the strategic cooperation and capital
integration with the Group, the Anhui Hualin Group’s network of rehabilitation
medical institutions was further expanded, including the establishment of Hefei
Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital. Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital is a
rehabilitation specialty hospital aiming to be rated as a class Ill rehabilitation
hospital in the long term. The hospital is equipped with advanced rehabilitation
medical equipment and professional medical teams to provide patients with
a wide range of high-end and convenient rehabilitation treatment programs.
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLFE

Change 2018 2017
28 —B-\F —T—+%F
+23.5% 2,715 2,198
-1.8% 57,278 58,339
+34.5% 83,652 62,207
+5.1% 60,808 57,878
+10.4% 63,863 57,862
-13.5% 4,664 5,393
+11.9% 9,553 8,539
+20.7% 161,732 134,001
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Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital demonstrates the Group’s commitment
to further its rehabilitation medical offerings and capability. The Board envisages
that the Anhui Hualin Group will operate as an integrated rehabilitation service
platform combining medical rehabilitation, vocational rehabilitation, education
rehabilitation and social rehabilitation centred around a class Il rehabilitation
specialty hospital.

—HRERAFEEREE MIRFBENHIRL -
AR AEEBEEHEDREBREENE
B BLAEREEARITE —ENA=AFE
BEEMERATL SBERE BERE-
BERENLERER —BNFEEEHEEH -

Hospital Management Services

In June 2016, the Group entered into a management agreement with
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital. It was the Group’s first managed hospital
and represented its first step of extending the Group’s footprint to outside of
Guangdong Province. Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital commenced operations
in March 2017 and has developed at a promising pace.

In August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest of
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital, which has since become a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Board considers that full integration and
consolidation of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital into the Group’s operations
will enable the Group to benefit from the operating prospects of Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital to a greater extent in the long term. Since the acquisition
of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and up to date of this report, the Group
has no other management arrangement with third party hospitals. The Company
will continue to search for appropriate opportunities to undertake hospital
management operations.

Sale of Pharmaceutical Products

In July 2017, the Group established a pharmaceuticals and medical consumables
trading company for the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and medical
consumables sales directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and walk-in
customers who may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals. The Board believes
the diversity of this operation can lower the overall cost of revenue through
centralizing of purchase function and thereby increasing the overall margin of
the Group. Revenue from sales of pharmaceutical products for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB16.0 million (2017: RMB7.2 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 122.0%.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Industry Outlook and Strategy

Year 2018 represented the first year of PRC's intensified healthcare policy
reform. In January, the National Health Commission issued a notice on “Action
Plan for Further Improving Medical Services (2018-2020)" indicating that from
2018 onwards, the nation’s medical institutions shall establish an appointment
diagnostic and treatment system, a telemedicine system, a clinical pathway
management system, a system for the mutual recognition of inspection results,
and a medical social worker and volunteer system. At the same time, local
medical service institutions should actively carry out innovative medical services,
focus on multi-disciplinary diagnosis and treatment protocols, open multi-
disciplinary clinics and innovative emergency first-aid centres, so as to provide
patients with a “one stop shop” for diagnostic and treatment services. In 2018,
there was in-depth development of PRC's healthcare industry in the following
areas:

il The orderly advancement of a graded diagnostic and treatment system:
standardization of the construction and development of medical
complexes, support to the cooperation between public hospitals and
private hospitals, encouragement of the participation by private medical
institutions, rehabilitation and nursing institutions in the construction of
medical complexes, the further improvement of the construction of medical
complexes and the examination of graded diagnosis and treatment and the
strengthening of industry supervision.

[il  The improvement of the hospital management system: improvement in
supporting measures such as medical insurance payment, personnel
management, service price, and financial input to promote the construction
of medical complexes and telemedicine services. In addition, based on the
actual situation of various medical and healthcare institutions, salary and
compensation policies have been improved in a targeted manner to raise
medical staff compensation to a reasonable level.

il Deepening of reform in healthcare service prices: by standardizing medical
treatment protocols, the costs of pharmaceutics and medical consumables
have been reduced while the price of medical services has been increased,
highlighting the value of medical personnel’s technical services; and
reducing the prices of inspection, freatment and examination based on the
use of large medical equipment.

livi /mprovement of the universal health insurance system: improving the
reform plan for the healthcare security system with Chinese characteristics,
increasing the level of basic medical insurance and maijor illness insurance,
raising individual contribution standards, fully implementing the policy of
medical treatment seftlement for different locations, and strengthening the
Medical Insurance Bureau’s supervision of medical insurance practices.

(v} The establishment of a high quality, efficient medical and health service
system: carrying out discipline development centering around key regional
diseases, establishing a number of high-caliber regional medical centers
and specialist alliances throughout the country, and promoting a balanced
distribution of quality medical resources. In addition, efforts have been made
to promote the implementation of the inheritance and innovation of Chinese
medicine projects, generally improving the diagnosis and treatment of
difficult diseases of Chinese medicine, and further improving the capabilities
of Chinese medicine in basic healthcare organisations.
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(vl Promoting the development of “Internet + medical health”: promoting
the construction of smart hospitals and universal health information
platforms and accelerating the sharing of medical information among
medical institutions. Telemedicine service management regulations are
being formulated to improve Internet medical treatment pricing policies
and to gradually include eligible Internet medical treatment services in the
healthcare insurance coverage.

In 2018, the Group, in an effort to actively responding to policy changes,
continually improved hospital management, actively participated in the
development of medical complexes, promoted the development of key specialist
medical centers and multi-disciplinary medical diagnostic and treatment teams,
which collectively resulted in improved medical service capabilities and efficiency.
Going forward, the Group will further seize the opportunities presented by
industry development and accelerate the pace of resources deployment with a
view to building an industry-leading comprehensive medical service platform.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets as of the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7 [B] 8
Segment Revenue DERUL S

The Group generates revenue primarily from: (i) hospital services — providing 75 8] == 2 {4 LA T 4% X8 B HR i - ) B8 e AR
healthcare services through its owned hospitals, namely Kanghua Hospital, 7 — @@ EHEE M ER (AIEZESR - CFK
Renkang Hospital and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (since August 2018),  Eft M RE O MERER (B — /\FN
comprising inpatient healthcare services, outpatient healthcare services and B i#E)) IR B8 E RTS - B IR (TP BB RS -
physical examination services; (i) rehabilitation and other healthcare services - P9I &8 B RS R AR AR TS © (i) BR1E K EL b B8
providing rehabilitation services to patients with physical or mental disabiliies BER — A F @B KkE ARHESE
and other healthcare related services including elderly care and training service RIS M E b BB IHREIRT - RIEEFHEIE L
for the disabled; (iii) providing hospital management services to a hospital owned — EJk A FIARAR 7S : il B — BB E =7 %
by an independent third party; (iv) sale of pharmaceutical products and medical B TR H B B2 RS  (vi[A A&
consumables to patients of the Group’s hospitals and walk-in customers who  EBTAIR AR KM AR EEERE AL
may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals; and (v) others. AXNBPHESER RERERER v Ef o

The following tables below set forth the revenue, cost of revenue, gross profitand " 2 & 51 BT /< 4 £ &2 2 #F &1 7 EI’J REEH

gross profit margin of the Group by segment for the years indicated: e~ WaEAA - BF REFIE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-\F+ZA=+—HLFE
Rehabilitation
and other Hospital Sale of
Hospital healthcare  management  pharmaceutical
services services services products Others Total
EEREHAM Bk ) N
BRR® BER% ERRH% HEEM Hfty asr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR¥BTR ARBTr AR%®Tn ARETR ARETx
(note a) (note b)
(MiEEa) (H35Eb)
Revenue W 1,571,112 49,670 2,258 16,043 204 1,639,287
Cost of revenue Wz B AR (1,232,085) (33,687) (1,746) (12,678) (187) (1,280,383)
Gross profit EF 339,027 15,983 512 3,365 17 358,904
Gross profit margin EME 21.6% 32.2% 22.7% 21.0% 8.3% 21.9%
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—tHF+-A=1+—RHILFE
Rehabilitation
and other Hospital Sale of
Hospital healthcare management  pharmaceutical
services services services products Total
RE K EAM Bk o .
B iR % BERY MR HEEm @t
RMB'000 RMB'OOO RN\B’OOO RMB'OOO RIY\B'OOP
ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(note a) (note b)
(F&a) (f5Eb)
Revenue W 1,378,809 N/AZE 3135 7,225 1,389,169
Cost of revenue DEEN (1,050,544) N/AT i (1,71) (6,038) 1,058,293)
Gross profit E7 328,265 N/A i 1,424 1187 330,876
Gross profit margin = 23.8% N/A7R i F 45.4% 16.4% 23.8%
Notes: B 5E -
(a)  Rehabilitation and other healthcare services was acquired in April 2018. () FRIEREMEZERESHN =T —/\GFY [ UEE -
(b)  Sale of pharmaceutical products commenced in July 2017. bl HEERR_ZT—tFEHAMRKB-

—
EEEERERGERAT w208 23



Revenue from the Group’s hospital services amounted to RMB1,571.1 million
(2017: RMB1,378.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 13.9% and
accounting for 95.8% (2017: 99.3%) of the total revenue of the Group.

Revenue from hospital services comprised (i) revenue from inpatient healthcare
services amounted to RMB919.8 million (2017: RMB816.9 million) representing
a year-on-year increase of 12.6%, accounting for 56.1% (2017: 58.8%) of the
total revenue of the Group; (i) revenue from outpatient healthcare services
amounted to RMB552.5 million (2017: RMB491.1 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 12.5%, accounting for 33.7% (2017: 35.3%) of the total revenue
of the Group; and (iii) revenue from physical examination services amounted to
RMB98.8 million (2017: RMB70.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 39.5%, accounting for 6.0% (2017: 5.1%) of the total revenue of the Group. The
increase in revenue from hospital services was mainly due fo (i) increase in the
number of inpatient, outpatient and physical examination visits as well as overall
average spending during the year, (i) consolidation of revenue from Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital since August 2018; and (iii) the growth in revenue across
all major disciplines and VIP special services during the year.

Revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services amounted to RMB49.7
million (2017: nil), accounting for 3.0% (2017: nil) of the total revenue of the Group.
In April 2018, the Group acquired Anhui Hualin that is principally engaged in
provision of rehabilitation services to patients with physical or mental disabilities
and other healthcare related services including care services for elderly and
training service for the disabled.

Revenue from hospital management services amounted to RMB2.3 million (2017:
RMB3.1 million), accounting for 0.1% (2017: 0.2%) of the total revenue of the Group.
Under management agreement with Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital, the
Group had exclusive management rights over the hospital and was entitled to
a monthly management fee of RMB200,000 (before applicable tax) plus 5% of
hospital's monthly revenue. Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital only commenced
operations on 1 March 2017 and is still in the phase of ramping up its operations.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group generated revenue
amounting to RMB2.3 million from management agreement with Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital. Such arrangement ceased when the Group acquired the
controlling interest in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital in August 2018.

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables
amounted to RMB16.0 million (2017: RMB7.2 million), accounting for 1.0% (2017:
0.5%) of the total revenue of the Group. In July 2017, the Group established a
pharmaceuticals and medical consumables trading company (which commenced
operations in July 2017) for the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and
medical consumables sales directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and
walk-in customers who may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals. The increase
in revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables
was primarily due to the gradually maturing operation and more diversified
medical consumables offerings to customers.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services (consisting of inpatient healthcare
services, outpatient healthcare services and physical examination services)
primarily consisted of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables, staff cost,
depreciation, service expenses, utilities expenses, rental expenses and other
costs. Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services increased to RMB1,232.1
million (2017: RMB1,050.5 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 17.3%,
which was in line with the increase of revenue. The greater extent of increase in
cost of revenue for hospital services was primarily due to (i) pressure from the
rise of medical staff costs and benefits due to shortage in medical professional in
Guangdong Province; and (i) consolidation of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
which recorded a negative gross profit margin as its still at it was infancy stage of
ramping up its operation.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s rehabilitation and other healthcare services
amounted to RMB33.7 million (2017: nil), primarily consisting of staff costs, medical
consumables, depreciation, utilities and rental expenses.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital management services amounted to
RMB1.75 million (2017: RMB1.71 million) representing a year-on-year increase of
2.3%, which mainly represented staff costs in relation to management personnel
assigned to Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and other direct costs. As the
management agreement with Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital ceased in
August 2018, the Group has temporarily relocated certain management staff back
to Kanghua Hospital and deploy a number of staff to Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital on a permanent basis.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s sale of pharmaceutical products amounted to
RMB12.7 million (2017: RMB6.0 million) representing a year-on-year increase of
1M.7%, mainly representing cost of purchase of pharmaceutical products, which
was in line with the increase of revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and staff cost accounted for approximately 31.1% (2017: 34.0%), 27.8% (2017:
27.1%) and 29.8% (2017: 26.8%), respectively, of the total cost of revenue of the
Group. Our fotal staff related costs including salary, bonus and other benefits had
increased by 34.5% as compared with the prior year, mainly aftributable to (i) an
increase in general salary level and bonus as well as other staff benefits with a
view to retaining and attracting quality healthcare professionals in the healthcare
industry that remains highly competitive; and (i) the impact from the acquisition of
the Anhui Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital.

BEERWR D

Wz AR

AEBERRE (BEFREERY M2
BEERSLERRE HREXAEEBE
B BEOHES  BEIRA - ITE - RS
A KEB HeRIMEMKR - K&
B BT RS R U A AR I B A R #1,232.1
BEL(ZE—+tF: ARKI05055E8
TT)  HREF A IER17.3%  BILZIE R
7F o BB ERISUNEEA AIBIEE AN EBRA
ElIEREAEREXABRHREREBKAR
AN R AR F A AN A JBR 7 ¢ Rz (i) & OF BB O I
BB ZBRSGENREE REA
HEMERIEAELERNYEIRE -

AEBEEMEMBERERFOKREKER
ARKEBTIBET(—T—tF :®) =
BREEIRA BEHERR E KEEB
REERX -

REBE B EE RGO RR N SARELTS
BEL(ZZE—tF: ARKITIBET)
RILLER23%  TREESEERBEOME
RERNEEASRBENE TRAREM
BN o R0 B RO N E 8 B Ay E IR
BER T \FNARL  AEEE TR
HETEREABBREERER WK —LA
B AR BRI RO I & R B B

AEBHEERNRERARARK127H
Br(—Z—+tF: AR%60BET) - #
EREFFTRLEIEMMT%  FEREERE
BARA - s R R -

HE_Z—-\F+_A=+—HLFE "
BR BEERMEEIRADRMERER
MU SR R4 311% (Z B —+4F - 34.0%)
27.8% (ZZT—+ 5 :271%) %298% (==
—+£F 1 268%) c HIMAE THEBK AL
(BiEFe e LEAMREF) B A F A8 1E
hn34.5% B HNNAFELEHHKFE R
REUREME TEFIGHI - AR RS
BREEIMEETERBEMNEEZTEAS:
Rl ZREREEE RO MmEBRKER

s
=

EREEBERNARQR



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Total gross profit of the Group amounted to RMB358.9 million (2017: RMB330.9
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 8.5%. The overall gross profit
margin decreased to 21.9% (2017: 23.8%), primarily due to:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

in 2018, the Group had considerable growth in revenue from VIP inpatient
and VIP outpatient healthcare services (a year-on-year growth of 34.5%).
The growth in special services that are targeted towards high-end patients
and typically command higher margin than basic healthcare services;

the overall increase in the average spending of patients and the ability to
increase healthcare consultation prices. In 2018, the Group has year-on-
year growth of 3.7%, 5.1% and 6.3% in the average spending from inpatient,
outpatient and physical examination healthcare services, respectively, from
the owned-hospital operations; and

however, the above impact has been considerably offset by (i) the
consolidation of results of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital which
recorded a negative gross profit margin due to its infancy stage of ramping
up its operations while incurring significant amount of fixed medical staff
costs and other fixed costs; and (i) an increase in overall staff related
costs of 34.5% and depreciation of 32.8%. The increase in staff related
costs includes general increase in overall salary level, more competitive
compensation packages offered to healthcare professionals and the impact
from the acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital.

Key Operational Information of our Owned Hospitals

The follow table sets forth certain key operational information of each of the
hospitals owned by the Group for the years indicated:

Kanghua Hospital
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=1t—-BLEFE

Change 2018 2017
B —E-)N\F —ZT—tF
Inpatient healthcare services b BB R
Inpatient visits T AR +7.9% 51,159 47,425
Average length of stay (days) FHER AE(R) -0.3 7.6 7.9
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARTFARE
(AR%T) +4.6% 15,308.8 14,634.2
Outpatient healthcare services PIRBERE
Outpatient visits FI2 AR +5.5% 1,231,290 1,167,545
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFEHRAZ
(AR%T) +6.8% 370.6 346.9
Total revenue (RMB'000) B (AREFT) +14.3% 1,330,405 1,164,208
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Renkang Hospital CHRERR
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
Change 2018 2017
2E) —E-N\F o
Inpatient healthcare services 1% B B8 7R R 7%
Inpatient visits FBT AR -2.5% 13,375 13,718
Average length of stay (days) FHERAH(K) 0.2 7.1 7.3
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFARE
(AR%T) +2.4% 9,178.1 8,959.8
Outpatient healthcare services IR BERE
Outpatient visits FI2 AR +0.8% 378,094 374,937
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHRE
(AR®T) +8.2% 248.1 229.3
Total revenue (RMB000) Bl (AREETT) +4.6% 224,522 214,601
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (note) SRE O M E R B BT (P 5E)
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+T—HLEE
Change 2018 2017
) —E-N\F —ZE—+tF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Inpatient healthcare services {Eir e E R
Inpatient visits FBT AR N/ATT 3 A 4,757 N/A 73 R
Average length of stay (days) FHERAH(K) N/A T8 A 7.0 N/A i
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREL
(AR%T) N/A i@ A 24,819.3 N/A i
Outpatient healthcare services IR BERKE
Outpatient visits FI2 AR N/A i 559 N/A A~ 3 A
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARTFHARE
(AR®T) N/AZ i A 485.8 N/A i F
Total revenue (RMB'000) B (ARBEFT) N/A 5 A 16,185 N/AT3E A

Note: The data and amounts accounts for the period from 1 August 2018 (date of
acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital by the Group) to 31 December 2018.
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Other Income

The other income of the Group primarily consisted of bank and other interest
income, investment income from financial assets at FVTPL/available-for-sale
("AFS”) investments, fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL, government
subsidies, clinical trial and related income, rental income and others. In 2018,
other income amounted to RMB46.8 million (2017: RMB32.7 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 43.1%, primarily due to (i) the increase
in income generated from financial assets at FVTPL/AFS investments to RMB18.3
million (2017: RMB11.7 million) and fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL
of RMB6.4 million (2017 nil); (i) an increase in clinical trial and related income
to RMB2.9 million (2017: RMBO.1 million); and (iii) partly offset by a decrease in
bank and other interest income to RMB7.2 million (2017: RMB11.6 million) mainly
as a result of decrease in average bank balances and cease of interest income
arising from loan to Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital after the acquisition. As
part of the Group’s cash management to maximise return on idle cash, the Group
invested in certain principal-protected structured deposit products issued by a
PRC commercial bank, unlisted fund and portfolio investment fund (all classified
as financial assets at FVTPL/AFS investments) to achieve higher interest income
and return without interfering with business operations or capital expenditures to
earn betfter return on the excess cash balance.

Other Gains and Losses

The other gain and losses of the Group primarily consisted of net exchange
gain/loss, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and allowance on
credit loss on accounts receivables. In 2018, other gains and losses amounted
to a net gain of RMB2.2 million (2017: net loss of RMB18.5 million), primarily due
to (i) a recorded net exchange gain of RMB5.9 million (2017: net exchange loss
of RMB14.7 million) mainly arising from the Hong Kong dollar denominated
financial assets; and (i) a slight decrease in allowance on credit loss on accounts
receivables.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group primarily consisted of staff costs, repairs
and maintenance expenses, office expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses, utilities expenses, entertainment and travelling expenses and
other expenses. In 2018, administrative expenses amounted to RMB185.2 million
(2017: RMBI127.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
45.8%, primarily due to (i) an increase in administrative staff related costs to
RMB72.6 million (2017: RMB49.2 million) as a result of general salary increase and
increase in number of administrative staff headcounts together with the effects
of acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital; (ii)
an increase in building rentals and management fee to RMB22.0 million (2017:
RMB16.1 million) as a result of more sub-contracted service fees paid to cope with
business growth; and (iii) an increase in office and administration costs as well as
other utilities expenses due to expansion of operations and acquisition of Anhui
Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year amounted to RMBO0.9 million (2017: nil). Finance costs for
the current year represented interest on bank loan of Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital when it was acquired by the Group in August 2018, which was
subsequent repaid during the year.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group primarily consisted of PRC enterprise
income tax. In 2018, income tax expenses amounted to RMB60.5 million (2017:
RMB56.9 million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 6.2%.
The subsidiaries of the Group are generally subject to income tax rate of 25%
on their respective taxable income. Our effective tax rate in 2018 is 27.2% (2017:
26.1%), the increase is primarily due to tax effect of tax losses not recognised for
losses incurred of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital.

Profit for the Year

In 2018, profit for the year amounted to RMB161.3 million (2017: RMB161.1 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 0.1% and profit for the
year attributable to the shareholders amounted to RMB167.9 million (2017:
RMB156.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 7.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Property, Plant and Equipment, Prepaid Lease Payment and Deposits
Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year 2018, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment and
incurred expenditure on construction in progress of RMB96.8 million (2017:
RMB79.3 million) and RMB32.9 million (2017: RMB43.7 million), respectively, for
the purpose of upgrading and expanding the service capacity of its hospital
operations. The Group also acquired property, plant and equipment (including
building) and prepaid lease payment (land use right) through acquisition of Anhui
Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital amounting to RMB322.4
million and RMB155.0 million, respectively, during the year. Total depreciation
charge for the year amounted to RMB70.3 million (2017: RMB49.6 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 41.7% and amortisation
of prepaid lease payment for the year amounted to RMB1.4 million (2017: Nil). In
addition, as at 31 December 2018, the Group had deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment amounting to RMB81.1 million (2017: RMB76.5
million). The deposits mainly represented amount paid for acquisition of new
medical equipment and other new facilities as the Group continued to upgrade
its medical facilities and expand its operation capacity.

Accounts and Other Receivables

The account receivables of the Group primarily consisted of balances due from
social insurance funds, certain corporate customers and individual patients.
As at 31 December 2018, accounts receivables increased to RMB176.5 million
(2017: RMB95.0 million), of which 77.7% (2017: 90.5%) were aged within 90 days.
Average accounts receivables turnover days for the current year was 30.2 days
(2017: 23.9 days). The increase in accounts receivables and accounts receivable
turnover days was primarily due to (i) expansion of the hospitals” operations; and (i)
the newly acquired rehabilitation and other healthcare business operations under
the Anhui Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year.
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The other receivables of the Group primarily consisted of prepayments to
suppliers, loan receivables, deposit paid for an investment and interest
receivables and others. As at 31 December 2018, other receivables decreased fo
RMB30.5 million (2017: RMB124.5 million) primarily due to (i) at 31 December 2017,
the Group had unsecured loans of RMB100.0 million to Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital which were interest-bearing at fixed rate of 0.42% per month and
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period, during the
current year, the Group acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the
loan receivables became part of the intra-group assets and eliminated in full
on consolidation; (i) a decrease of interest receivables to RMB1.0 million (2017:
RMB6.1 million) representing investment income from financial assets at FVTPL/
AFS investments; and (iii) increase of prepayments to suppliers to RMB11.7 million
(2017: RMB5.3 million) for the purchase of pharmaceutical and other medical
products and consumables as a result of expansion of operations and the newly
acquired rehabilitation and other healthcare business operations under the Anhui
Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year.

Accounts and Other Payables

The accounts and other payables of the Group primarily consisted of accounts
payables, accrued expenses, payables for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, receipt in advance and others. As at 31 December 2018, accounts
and other payables increased to RMB481.8 million (2017: RMB412.6 million)
primarily due to (i) decrease in accounts payable to RMB263.9 million (2017:
RMB275.6 million) as a result of accelerated payments to suppliers; (i) increase
of accrued expenses to RMB77.5 million (2017: RMB68.9 million) mainly due to
increase in accrued staff salary and other operational and administrative charges
in the current year; and (iii) increase in receipt in advance to RMB73.2 million (2017:
RMB41.8 million) due to expansion of operations and acquisition of the Anhui
Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded net current assets of RMB286.0
million (2017: RMB757.6 million) and net assets of RMB1,509.5 million (2017:
RMB1,289.4 million).
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Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of RMB203.3 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB383.8
million). The decrease was mainly due to utilisation of cash (including proceeds
from the initial public offering) in the acquisition of the Anhui Hualin Group and
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the year. With the steady cash inflow
generated from operations and in view of sufficient cash and bank balances, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group will have adequate and
sufficient liquidity and financial resources to meet the working capital requirement
of the Group for at least the next twelve months from the end of the Reporting
Period.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had investments (classified as financial assets
at FVTPL/AFS investments) in aggregate of RMB479.1 million (2017: RMB559.3
million) primarily consisting of (i) an unlisted fund of US$3.4 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB23.2 million) (2017: US$2.5 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB16.3 million)) representing an investment in equity securities of a private
company in the PRC for a minimum term of three years for the purpose of capital
gain; (i) portfolio investment fund of RMB54.0 million (2017: RMB51.2 million),
representing an investment fund deposited with a discretionary fund manager
in Hong Kong mandated to achieve appropriate return consistent with the
Group’s cash management policy. The portfolio included a mixture of cash and
shares that are primarily listed in Hong Kong; and {iii) structured bank deposits
of RMB402.0 million (2017: RMB491.8 million), representing principal-protected
products issued by a PRC commercial bank.

As part of the Group’s cash management policy to manage excess cash, the
Group purchases investment products from financial institutions to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in securitizing any decision of
the Group to purchase investment products. The investment products should
generally satisfy the following criterig; (i) its term should generally not exceed one
year; (i) it should not interfere with the Group’s business operations or capital
expenditures; {iii) it should be issued by a reputable bank which the Group has
a long-term relationship, preferably exceeding five years; and (iv) the underlying
investment portfolio should generally be low risk.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the consolidated
statement of cash flow of the Group for the years indicated:
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Change 2018 2017
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RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Net cash generated from operating activities 4% & E 81535 & %58 -17.3% 176,963 213,919

Net cash used in investing activities REESAAREFHE -59.9% (285,388) (711,188

Net cash used in financing activities EEEE T AIR 2 %8 +51.8% (74,424) (49,037)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 384 MIE & ZEY

B R -66.5% (182,849) (546,306)

Net cash generated from operating activities

In 2018, the net cash generated from operating activities amounted to RMB177.0
million (2017: RMB213.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.3%,
which was primarily due to (a) an increase in profit before taxation for the current
year to RMB221.8 million (2017: RMB218.1 million), as mainly adjusted by (i)
depreciation of property, plant and equipment of RMB70.3 million (2017: RMB49.6
million); (i) amortisation of prepaid lease payment of RMB1.4 million (2017: nil);
(i) bank and other interest income of RMB7.2 million (2017: RMBI11.6 million); and
(iv) investment income from financial assets at FVTPL/AFS investments of RMB18.3
million (2017: RMB11.7 million) and fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL of
RMB6.4 million (2017: nil) and (b) changes in working capital including (i) decrease
in inventories of RMB4.1 million (2017: increase of RMB 1.3 million) due to befter
inventory control management; (i) increase in accounts and other receivables of
RMBI17.6 million (2017: increase of RMB7.5 million); and (iii) decrease in accounts
and other payables of RMB16.7 million (2017: increase of RMB26.2 million) as a
result of accelerated payments to suppliers to cope with business growth and
maintain suppliers relationship; and as well as increase in operating cash outflow
to support the newly acquired Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital during the
year. The Group also had further cash outflow of RMB53.3 million (2017: RMB58.9
million) attributable to PRC income tax paid.
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Net cash used in investing activities

In 2018, net cash used in investing activities amounted to RMB285.4 million
(2017: RMB711.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 59.9%, which
was primarily due tfo (i) a net cash outflow arising from acquisition of the Anhui
Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital in aggregate of RMB294.5
million (2017: nil); (ii) increase in investment income received from financial assets
at FVTPL/AFS investments to RMB18.3 million (2017: RMB11.7 million); and {iii) a
decrease in net cash outflow in relation to purchase and disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL/AFS investments as compared with prior year.

Net cash used in financing activities

In 2018, net cash used in financing activities amounted to RMB74.4 million
(2017: RMB49.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 51.8%, which
was mainly due to (i) dividend paid during the year of RMB54.2 million (2017:
RMB46.8 million); (i) the repayment of bank loan of RMB60.0 million; (iii) interest
paid on bank loan of RMB0.9 million; and (iv) net advances from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries of RMB41.0 million, all in relation to Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital after it was acquired.

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal
Anhui Hualin Group - Rehabilitation and other Healthcare Services

In April 2018, the Group successfully acquired 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin
by way of (i) an equity transfer of 49.71% equity interest in Anhui Hualin from the
vendor, an independent third party, at a consideration of RMB58.66 million; and {ii)
capital injection info Anhui Hualin by the Group on a non-rata basis of RMB20.0
million. Anhui Hualin directly and indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary)
holds sponsor interests in the managed and controlled entities, all of which are
private non-enterprise entities in the PRC, including one class Il rehabilitation
hospital, one class | general hospital, nine rehabilitation centres for the disabled
and one vocational training school.

Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital

In August 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital. Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital is a specialty
hospital in cardiovascular diseases located in Chongging, the PRC. Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital was also the Group’s first managed hospital and its first
presence outside of Guangdong Province. The Board considers that, although
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital had yet to become profitable as it was
still in a start-up phase at the time of acquisition, its initial operations signify
promising prospects. The Board considers that full integration and consolidation
of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital into the Group’s operations will enable
the Group to benefit from the operating prospects of Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital to a greater extent in the long term compared to the management
arrangement.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no significant investment,
acquisition or disposal during the reporting period and there has not been any
significant events since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report.

Cash Management Activities

As part of the Group’s cash management, the Group has from time to time
invested into investment products issued by a reputable PRC commercial bank
with terms ranging from 28-103 days and portfolio investment funds to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The investment products are not rated by any credit agency but are
classified as low-risk by the issuing bank and/or backed by listed securities with
low risk profile. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in securitizing any decision of the
Group to purchase investment products.

Capital Expenditure

The Group regularly makes capital expenditures to expand its operations,
maintain its medical facilities and improve its operating efficiency. Capital
expenditure primarily consists of purchases of property, plant and equipment.
The capital expenditure of the Group in 2018 was RMB129.7 million (2017:
RMB123.0 million). The Group has financed its capital expenditure through cash
flows generated from operating activities.

USE OF PROCEED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 November
2016. The Company's net proceeds from the initial public offering of its H shares
amounts to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalently to approximately
HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. The net proceeds from the initial public offering have been and will be
utilised in accordance with the purposes set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 27 October 2016 (the “Prospectus”).

Up to 31 December 2018, of the net proceeds from the initial public offering, (i)
RMB46.4 million, representing approximately 5.9% of the net proceeds, has
been utilised as general working capital; (il RMB105.0 million, representing
approximately 13.4% of the net proceeds, has been utilised on expansion of
the Group’s current operations and upgrading of hospital’s facilities and the
expansion of operating capacity and capability in multi-disciplinary specialised
treatment and diagnosis; and (i) RMB157.2 million, representing approximately
20.1% of the net proceeds, has been utilised for acquisition and potential
acquisition of businesses. As at 31 December 2018, out of the balance of the
unutilised net proceeds of RMB474.0 million, RMB468.2 million (at cost) has
been used to purchase certain financial products (classified as financial assets
at FVTPL/AFS investments) to achieve higher interest income and capital return
without interfering with business operations or capital expenditures to earn better
return on our excess cash balance, and the remaining balance has been kept at
the bank accounts of the Group (included in bank balances and cash). As at the
date of this report, the Company does not anficipate any material change to its
plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table sets forth the intended purposes for the net proceeds from the
initial public offering, the utilisation of such proceeds and the timeline of utilisation

estimated by the management:

Net proceeds
from the initial public
offering intended

ERTE B R HIRR -

TREIERAFAREMBRBFENE
ERE  ZEMBHRANSRBERLEEE

for the purpose Expected timeline
as disclosed Utilisation up to for the utilisation
in the Prospectus 31 December 2018 Unutilised amount  of the unutilised
Purpose (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)  amount Mte
BRERML - BE-Z-)N\F
BRDRBEREIE +ZRA=+-8f
FENRERR AR EHAEE HRAXBA
itk (AEBEET) (ARBEET) (ARBBEER) SENHRHHRHE
Expansion of the Group’s current operations and 70.4 50 654  Bytheend of
upgrading of hospital facilities 31 December 2020
BARKERBER LA R BRI RZZ_ZTF+_R
=t+—R#
Expansion of operating capacity and capability 2817 100.0 1817 Bytheend of
in multi-disciplinary specialised freatment and 31 December 2020
diagnosis and upgrade of medical facilities RZE-TF+ZA
BAEBENRZBRDBENAR =+—H#
FRBER
Expansion of hospital management operations 78.3 - 78.3  Bytheend of
BABREEZE 31 December 2020
RIB-BE+ A
=t+—R#
Expansion of healthcare operations in the PRC 273.9 157.2 16.7  Bytheend of
through selective mergers and acquisifions 31 December 2019
BRERBUGBEARTENBERY RZE-NFTZA
=t+—BA
Working capital and other general corporate 78.3 46.4 319 Bytheendof
purposes 31 December 2020
LEE REM—ROAIRE RZE-ZF+_A
=t+—HH
Total 782.6 308.6 474.0
@t

Note: Such timeline is an estimation of the management only and is subject to change on
account of the Group’s operating conditions and market conditions from time to time.
In particular, it should not be taken as an indication that any potential transaction is
under negotiation and/or will materialise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no bank loans (2017: nil). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had no banking facilities (2017: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary of business
primarily arising from medical disputes brought on by patients. Provision for
medical disputes is made based on the status of potential and active claims
outstanding as at the end of the relevant period, and primarily taking into
account any judicial appraisal or court determination against the Group. As at 31
December 2018, the total stated claim amount of the Group’s on-going medical
disputes was approximately RMB9.8 million (2017: RMB7.1 million) and there were
certain medical disputes without claim amount stated. Based on the Group’s
assessment, during the year ended 31 December 2018, approximately RMB1.3
million (2017: RMBO.5 million) had been provided and included in accounts and
other payables of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no confingent liabilities or guarantees
that would have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Group’s assets had been pledged (2017:
none).

Contractual Obligations

The contractual obligations of the Group primarily consisted of operating lease
commitments and capital commitments.

The operating lease commitments of the Group were primarily attributable to the
lease of the land and buildings underlying the Group’s hospitals and rehabilitation
centres operations. As at 31 December 2018, the future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable lease agreements were RMB259.6 million
(2017: RMB270.7 million).

The capital commitments of the Group were primarily attributable fo construction
costs relating to the expansion and renovation of the Group’s medical facilities.
As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments in respect of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements were RMB116.0 million (2017: RMB82.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments primarily consisted of accounts and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL/AFS investments, fixed bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, bank balances and cash, accounts and other payables,
amount due to a shareholder and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary. The management of the Company manages and monitors these
exposures o ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The proceeds of raised by the Company in its initial public offering of its H Shares
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group deposits certain of its financial
assets in Hong Kong dollars, and is mainly exposed to fluctuation in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against RMB. The Group is therefore exposed to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group has not used any derivatives financial instruments to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk by closely

monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should such need arise.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio (total interest-bearing bank
loans divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%) was zero (2017: zero).
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of private hospitals, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of hospital management
services, sales of pharmaceutical products and provision of other services
(including elderly care services) in the PRC.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
sef out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing,
a fair review of the Group’s business during the year, and the probable future
business development of the Group are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 60 fo
72 and on pages 12 to 38 respectively of this annual report. Also, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note
34(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group after the reporting period are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on page 34 of this annual report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 4 to 5 and Financial
Summary on page 218 of this annual report respectively. In addition, discussions
on the relationships with its staff, customers and suppliers is also contained in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report section on pages 73 to 112 of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are contained in this annual report on pages 39 to 40.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is subject to national and local environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC, including with respect to hospital sanitation, diseases control, medical
wastes management, and discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive
substances. The Group is conscious of its environmental protection obligations
and is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and society.
The Group has established internal rules regarding environmental protection and
actively seeks to implement ecofriendly technologies and clinical environment
where feasible. The Group believes that it has maintained good relationship with
the communities. With respect to medical wastes management, the Group has
engaged qualified third parties to arrange proper disposal for all of its hospitals
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group had complied with the applicable environment laws and regulations in
the PRC in all material respects.

Please refer to pages from 73 to 112 of this annual report for the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group during the reporting period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 131 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 8 November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the
initial public offering amounted to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalent
to HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. As of the date of this annual report, the Company did not anticipate
any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.

For a description of the utilisation of the proceeds from the initial public offering,
please refer to pages 35 to 36 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend of RMB16
cents per share (inclusive of applicable tax). Subject to the approval of the
Proposed Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on 12 June
2019, the Proposed Final Dividend will be distributed on or about 23 July 2019
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 21 June 2019 (the “Record Date”).

The final dividend distribution shall be calculated based on the total number of
Shares in issue as of the Record Date and the final cash dividend distribution
shall be based on RMB16 cents per share (inclusive of applicable tax). In order
to qualify for the final dividend, the holders of H Shares must lodge all share
certificates accompanied by the transfer documents with Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited (address: Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong) before 4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2019.
For the purpose of ascertaining the holders of H Shares who qualify for the final
dividend, the register of members for H Shares will be closed from 19 June 2019
to 21 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of H Shares
will be effected.

The final dividend will be denominated and declared in RMB. The holders of
Domestic Shares will be paid in RMB and the holders of H Shares will be paid in
Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate for the final dividend to be paid in Hong
Kong dollars will be the mean of the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars to RMB
as announced by the People’s Bank of China during the five business days prior
to the date of declaration of the final dividend.
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In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (1 Z A K 2L 701 B 1> 25 P45 % %) and its implementation regulations
which came into effect on 1 January, 2008, the Company is required to withhold
and pay enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident
enterprise Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members for H
Shares when distributing the cash dividends. Any H Shares not registered under
the name of an individual Shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other nominees, agents or trustees, or other organizations or groups, shall be
deemed as Shares held by non-resident enterprise Shareholders. Therefore, on
this basis, enterprise income tax shall be withheld from dividends payable to
such Shareholders. If holders of H Shares intend to change its Shareholder status,
please enquire about the relevant procedures with your agents or trustees. The
Company will strictly comply with the law or the requirements of the relevant
government authority and withhold and pay enterprise income tax on behalf of
the relevant Shareholders based on the register of members for H Shares as of
the Record Date.

If the individual holders of H Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or
residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of 10% for the cash
dividends to them with the PRC under the relevant tax agreement, the Company
should withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the relevant
Shareholders at a rate of 10%. Should the individual holders of H Shares be
residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of less than 10% with
the PRC under the relevant tax agreement, the Company shall withhold and pay
individual income tax on behalf of the relevant Shareholders at a rate of 10%. In
that case, if the relevant individual holders of H Shares wish to reclaim the extra
amount withheld due to the application of 10% tax rate, the Company can apply
for the relevant agreed preferential tax treatment provided that the relevant
Shareholders submit the evidence required by the notice of the tax agreement
to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. The Company will assist
with the tax refund after the approval of the competent tax authority. Should the
individual holders of H Shares be residents of the countries which had an agreed
tax rate of over 10% but less than 20% with the PRC under the tax agreement, the
Company shall withhold and pay the individual income tax at the agreed actual
rate in accordance with the relevant tax agreement. In the case that the individual
holders of H Shares are residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate
of 20% with the PRC, or which has not entered into any tax agreement with the
PRC, or otherwise, the Company shall withhold and pay the individual income tax
at a rate of 20%.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
reporting period are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
reporting period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has a highly diversified customer portfolio, including individual patients
as well as business corporations and government administrations who purchase
healthcare services for their employees. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group’s largest customer or the five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 1% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed to approximately 26.2% and
69.8%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases, including pharmaceuticals,
medical consumables, medical equipment, construction and renovation
services, electricity supply and non-healthcare related ancillary management
services (“Total Purchases”). The Group’s largest supplier, Dongguan Yuheng
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (52 52 T #4 18 & %5 5 BR 2 /) ("Yuheng”), accounted
for approximately 26.2% of the Group’s Total Purchases. Yuheng has been an
Independent Third Party during the reporting period. Yuheng is a wholesaler of
pharmaceuticals and medical equipment primarily to hospitals in the PRC. The
Group's relationship with Yuheng began in 2010. The Group has a long term
agreement that does not impose any minimum purchasing commitment on the
Group and the Group may place orders with Yuheng at its own discretion. The
pricing of the relevant products is determined at the time the relevant order is
placed with reference to market price. The agreement sets out the framework of
delivery, settlement, inspection and quality control, product defects, compensation
arrangements for delivery failure, medical equipment training, packaging and
warranty. The agreement is for an indefinite period but the Group may terminate
it if Yuheng commits a material breach or fails to deliver the relevant products
within a prescribed period. The Group has a 90-days credit period with Yuheng.

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or any of their respective close associates
(as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules), or any Shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has no charitable contributions
and other donations.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December 2018 are set
out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the reporting period up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Mr. Chen Shaoming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Wang Shaofeng

Mr. Wang Bingzhi (resigned on 2 October 2018)

Mr. Yue Chunyang (appointed on 2 October 2018)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and
in which a Director or a Supervisor, or any entity connected with any Director or
Supervisor, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as of
31 December 2018 or at any time during the reporting period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the
Controlling Shareholders has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise,
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the reporting period.
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NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Agreement, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken that they will not, and will also procure their respective close
associate(s) (as appropriate) (other than the Group) not to, either directly or
indirectly, compete with the Group’s principal business (which is primarily to
provide hospital services) and granted to the Group the option for new business
opportunities, option for acquisitions and pre-emptive rights. During the reporting
period, the Company did not receive any Offer Noftice (as defined under the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus)
from the Controlling Shareholders.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders
confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 for disclosure in this annual report. The independent
non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders’
compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive Director.
No other Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
reporting period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the reporting period, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in nay business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors and
senior management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set out in such
liability insurance.

Saved as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the

Company during the reporting period and no permitted indemnity provision was
in force as atf the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as nofified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the registered
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
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B Pk ss SOR BT
(@)  The Company @ A&AF
Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
percentage in  the Company’s
Shares of the total issued
same class®  share capital®
Number HHE R R N/NE
Name of Director Class of Shares  Nature of inferest of Shares RBEFE BBITRA
EEpE =7 28 5l RS ROBE HMOBEIHY BMOEIEY
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
FEBEE RNE K agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company"; interest in a (47 8)
controlled corporoTion‘Z’
BRANARRERNTZ
1’&7%%5519’] FRE
EHEE S ER
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
PRET AR 5L & RNE IR agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company"; interest in a (47 %)
controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse®
BRI AR R A 5 0175 8
ERERN—H": RREH
EENERY BRERRGE
ﬁ:l (4
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
FEHL T RNE R agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company"; interest in a (47 8)

controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse™
BRRALAIR= A1
ERBERE—H": RIEH
EENEEY  BLBRRGE

/\(4)
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Notes:

U]

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2018, Kanghua Group (held as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang
Junyang) held 197,500,000 Domestic Shares and Xingye Group (held as to
80% by Mr. Wang Junyang) held 25,000,000 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Wang
Junyang controls more than one third of the voting power at the general
meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which each of
Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2018, Xingda Property (held as to 50% each by Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin) held 27,500,000 Domestic Shares. As each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

The shareholding percentages are calculated on the basis of 250,000,000
Domestic Shares and 84,394,000 H Shares issued by the Company as of 31
December 2018.
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(b)  Associated corporations of the Company

Report of the Board
EEERE

(b) AN EAEEEEE

Approximate
percentage inferest
in the associated

corporation
Name of Director Associated corporation Nature of interest 1 AR B
EEfE GEE ] ERMEE BRSNS
Mr. Wang Junyang Kanghua Group Beneficial owner 97.46%
FEHRE REEE EREEA
Mr. Wang Junyang Xingye Group Beneficial owner 80%
EFEHRE MR EE EmEAA
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Xingda Property Beneficial owner; family interest of spouse 100%
BREE X 5 4 EEY) R ESBEAAN  BEBNREER
Ms. Wang Aigin Xingda Property Beneficial owner, family interest of spouse 100%
BHut+ Bz R ERBEAEAN EBNRGER

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFOJ; (i) recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or {iii) nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BREXFBEEEIN BE_T—N\F+_H
=t+—R BEZeMN HBEALRES
EERITRAHN AR B K HE AR

(EFE BB LAEGRGIFE XVER) 2B -
HEROEERETHEB(IREESLAE
GOIEXVERE TR FE 8D #AME NN FE KR
FRBRNED AR (BRESRIERE
5 R E RO 2 & F IR AR B E 1F
BAEMBERMORR) A A BHARAIR
EHMREGRPIFES2GFE 2 ELMADN
e SORA ¢ N RBZETRIZBNE K
RERBE MR MAE -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2018, according fo the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity had an inferest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly and indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

(@) Interests in the Shares of the Company

TERRAER

E_T-N\F+_A=1t—B EBRARQ
BIREE 77 BRI 336 R IF BRI E R
it RIBEAIALEMA AT RRAESIELS
BERBRET AT AL/ EEBRERGRE
BRODTHEERSZIARREBEESNAE
RBIZEXVERSE 2 &2 30 & 2 1R X BRI AN A )
REBBRARE  SERIERRERAE
NARRAREG EEEABRATERERER
EATAERI AR AR B 5% A L) s

(@ RARERDED

Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
percentagein  the Company’s
Shares of the total issued
same class share capital
Number HHEER ¥ N
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares P& 43 B4 EEITRAE
mE/E8 R 10 28 5l EaEMtE gy 4= BABEDE BRAD
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TEGEE ME R regarding inferest in the (Long position)
Company": interest in a controlled (17%)
corporation?
ARRARRRESHHEIER
BREE—A": RREREES
Es
Ms. Wang Aici Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
IERLL W& B regarding inferest in the (Long position]
Company® (177)
ARARARRRESNHRIER
EER— R
Kanghua Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 197,500,000 79% 59.06%
FEEE NE K EREBA (Long position)
(#FE)
Xingye Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
G S ME IR EmEEA (Long position)
(FR)
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
PRAEAR 2 & ME R regarding inferest in the (Long position]
Company"; inferest in a controlled (178)

corporation®; family interest of
spouse
BERARAEROHZ
ERERN—HY: RIEHDE
MERY: EBORKEERY
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Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
percentage in  the Company’s
Shares of the total issued
same class share capital
Number HEZER ¥ N
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 43 P4 EEITRAE
mE/E8 R 10 %8 5l EamtE W10 8B BHBDE BRAD
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TEHuL ME % regarding interest in the (Long position]
Company"; inferest in a controlled (177)
corporation®; family interest of
spouse®
BERAR BRSO HZ
ERBERI A" REEFDE
EoERY RENRKER"Y
Xingda Property Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
B NE K ERBEBEA (Long position]
(FE)
Mr. Xie Zhikun (‘Mr. Xie") ~ H Shares Interest in a controlled 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
REEEE(REED HR corporation (Long position]
REZEHEB R RS (FE)
Zhonghai Chengfeng H Shares Interest in a controlled 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
(Beijing) Asset HR corporation ® (Long position)
Management Co., Ltd. REEHEENERY (FE)
("Zhonghai Chengfeng’)
FERE (L) ERERE
BERAR(HEZRE])
Zhonghai Chengrong H Shares Interest in a controlled 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
(Beijing) Asset H corporation ® (Long position)
Management Co., Lid. REZEHEBRERY (17%)
("Zhonghai Chengrong’)
FERRE (LR BAERE
ARRAR(THERR])
Zhongzhi Investment H Shares Interest in a controlled 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
Management Co., ltd.  Hf& corporation (Long position)
("Zhongzhi Investment’) REEGEE R EZRS (177)

FEKREERARADA
(THEHRE])

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018



Report of the Board
EEERE

Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
percentage in  the Company’s
Shares of the total issued
same class share capital
Number HEZER ¥ N
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 42 P4 EBITRA
mE/E8 R 10 %8 5l EaEtE W10 8B BABEDE BRAD
Huzhou Zhongze Taifu H Shares Interest in a controlled 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
Investment Co., Ltd. H corporation ® (Long position)
("Huzhou Zhongze') REZEHEBRERY (178)
MNP ERERERR
naE (M EE]D
Huzhou Feipeng Capital H Shares Beneficial owner 20,055,800 23.76% 6.00%
Management Co., ltd. ~ HZ EnEEA (Long position]
("Huzhou Feipeng’) (172)
MRS E R EEBR
nAl (MR D
New China Asset H Shares Investment manager 8,689,000 10.30% 2.60%
Management (Hong HAR REKE (Long position]
Kong] Limited (177)
HEBETE ()
BRAR
Lin Lijun ("Mr. Lin") H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
MME (T L] HAR corporation (Long position]
REFEHEB R R (FR)
LVC Assefs Management  H Shares Inferest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
Limited HA% corporation (Long position)
REEHEB R R (FE)
LVC KH Investment L.P. H Shares Beneficial owner 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
HAR EREBA (Long position]
(#FE)
Haitian (HK) Holdings H Shares Beneficial owner 5,052,600 5.98% 1.51%
Limited (formerly named ~ H % E=EBA (Long position)
as “Haitian (HK) Financial (HFE)
Development Limited”)
BX (BB ERER AR
(R B REX(FE)
ERERARLQA
Zhan Yongxiang H Shares Beneficial owner 5,021,966 5.95% 1.50%
oK HA% EEHEBA (Long position)
(#FE)
Mr. Wang Mingsong H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
("Mr. Wang Mingsong”) ~ HX corporation (Long position)
THREE REZHEB R (FR)
([EBEIEE]D
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Approximate
Approximate  percentage of
percentage in  the Company’s
Shares of the total issued
same class share capital
Number NG EpEl N
Name Class of Shares Nature of interest of Shares B3 Fr ik 2B ITIRA
wE,/ a8 B 12 48 Rl Rty R & B BAEDL BAEDL
Bo An Investments Pte, Ltd.  H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
("Bo An Investments”) HA corporation (Long position)
BLRELABERDA REZEHEB R ER" (17%)
([EZ&RE])
Huaxia International H Shares Beneficial owner 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
Company Limited HAR EmlEEA (Long position)
("Huaxia Infernational’) (17 8)
EOBRERAR
([EBEE])
Notes: B 5T -

U]

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wang Junyang holds 97.46% and 80% in Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, respectively. As Mr. Wang Junyang controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

Each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin holds 50% in Xingda Property.
As each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one
third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Xie holds 99.80% in Zhonghai Chengfeng, which in turn holds 100% in
Zhonghai Chengrong, which in turn holds 100% in Zhongzhi Investment,
which in turn holds 100% in Huzhou Zhongze, which in turn holds 100% in
Huzhou Feipeng. Each of Mr. Xie, Zhonghai Chengfeng, Zhonghai Chengrong,
Zhongzhi Investment and Huzhou Zhongze is deemed to be inferested in the
same number of Shares in which Huzhou Feipeng is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

U]

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

RE—IR-HTHHE  TEHELE
FTERLLT REREEREEHL
THREBEARZEHESEENRARA
FRERE - ML AN E X 2 EmR
FREREELRALT-RFAZE - Bt -
ERBEHLBEGRY - ERETER
REFBENRARNDEEES -

ITEBAEDAFEERESEME
HEH97.46% 1 80% c AR EEH %L
ERRESEREXEEBSANR
BARE FHEHBBE= 2 —HRE
o BEREBELHFRBSEN  TEHE
EWEARNFREEEREEERS
BHEAMNERSE RO HER RS -

REREERIEHLLIEAREF
3 ) 25 50% HO R A o RN ERAE AR ST
ERTIEHRTHEMEYENRR
RE LEGBB=n 2 —HRRE -
ERFEHFLHEEN - BRESEER
IEHRTWERNIENERER
HAERIEE B A o

HRREREERTIEHL LT /K
e WENREZ MHIERD - 5
BRREMBENMARNTHES

s -

AL AR ERL99.80%  ifH
AR EFE T ER 0% M HE
R RIEE P ERE100% M FER
BRI R IE100% - O8N O
FB M IRME100% - B35 K H
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(6)  Mr. Lin holds 100% in LVC Assets Management Limited, which in turns holds
100% in LVC KH Investment L.P. Each of Mr. Lin and LVC Assets Management
Limited is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
LVC KH Investment L.P. is interested by virtue of SFO.

(7) Mr. Wang Mingsong holds 100% in Bo An Investments, which in turns holds
100% in Huaxia International. Each of Mr. Wang Mingsong and Bo An
Investments is deemed fo be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Huaxia International is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(6)

7

R % 4 5 B LVC Assets Management
Limited100% * M LVC Assets
Management Limited # A& LVC KH
Investment L.P. 100% ° R & %5 &
B B - MR %k &£ R LVC Assets
N\anagemem Limited & B # % AR
LVC KH Investment L.P. % & & #8 7
B E R -

FTHREERBBELIREIS - M
Tﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%%l@%]oo%o%%

BHEREEKR - FRANEERER
?xéf%@ﬁé%gﬁ%?%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
B E R -

(b)  Substantial shareholders of other members of the Group bl AEEHEMKERRINEERR
Approximate
percentage
interest held
by the substantial
Name of member shareholder
Name of shareholder of the Group Nature of interest FERREFE
BREREE BB TEERENREHE RS ERBANAS T
Kangdi Enterprise " Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
b= CHREk BB A
Ms. Zhang Dandan M® Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
SR FHFE 2L A0 CEER EmEAA
Ms. Wang Aier 14 Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 13%
FER LM CHREk BB A
Notes: Bt 5
(11 Pursuantto an entrusted management agreement, each of Kangdi Enterprise, N REZFXTEEDRE BRHEE KA
Ms. Zhang Dandan and Ms. Wang Aier irrevocably vested their entire voting ZTREFERZTEEHTIR
power at any general meeting of Renkang Hospital to the Company. 9] 3, H% ﬁ fEA 17 Ji V EE ﬂ ? N
(2 Kangdi Enterprise is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Zhengren and as to 50% by 20 FECAERTALLZTIZEERE
Ms. Wang Keying, all of whom are members of the Wang Family and cousins TEER/RERRE  HE2HATK
of Mr. Wang Junyang. RIEHKERETEBHBEENRE -
(3)  Ms. Zhang Dandan is a member of the Wang Family and aunt-in-law of Mr. 3 5K ZTRIRKEKERTE
Wang Junyang. B ER B o
(4] Ms. Wang Aier is a member of the Wang Family and aunt of Mr. Wang 4 IERLAEITREIKRHEKERTE
Junyang. B ERE -
Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the B EXFI#EEIIN - BE_T—NF+=A
Directors, no other person had, or were deemed or taken to have inferest or short  =+—H » RESZ A - $E%, A Mt A TR

position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the registry kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the reporting period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the reporting period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with
respect fo connected transactions and continuing connected transactions. Details
of the Group’s non-exempt connected fransactions are set out below:

Continuing Connected Transactions
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BEEESYN

ARBAEITIBBEEERATARA X
B2 MU TAERBDOEOIRES
HRFEEZEFAH -

EEREEWEROBEBEESN
FERI

A ¥R & B A R B R A 2 &) 3l E AR AR BT U8
NABEES—T  BHER  BEEHAQF]
ERTBRAB (BRERESE ZEBRIAKMW
185%2 FX)FIMAEM LB Al REREAR
A E A AR B SHEFF M -

BAEXS
BE_T—)/\F+_A=+—HLFE &
REAEHABRELMRANBEVAETREET
RBRFEMENRHZBERENR - AEH
HMIER BB X BT

op

Actual
transaction value
for the year ended

Annual cap
for the year ended
31 December 2018

(RMB million) 31 December 2018
(Note) (RMB million)
Nature of the connected BE-_Z—N\F BE-_Z—N\&F
Continuing connected person’s interest in the +ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
transaction under transaction LTEENFELR It FEENER
UT&FEITH Connected person X ZHFHEER (AREBETRT R5EE
BEBEXS BE R RS (B &E) (ARBEET)
The Kanghua Hospital Lease  Kanghua Group  The land and buildings under the 26.0 251
Agreement RES lease are owned by Kanghua
RERREERZE Group and leased to Kanghua
Hospital
MEESENHEERXEE R
THTRESR A+ AZEEY)
The Renkang Hospital Lease  Tongli Enterprise  The land and buildings under 37 3.6

Agreement
CHRBREESHH

RIANEXE

the lease are owned by Tongli

Enterprise and leased to Renkang

Hospital
HRANEEABELREE &
T TR S b & - R 2L )

Note: The renewal of annual caps under each of the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement
and the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2021is set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2018.

et EEREEREERE N CEEREER
EEBRENEE T -+ -A=+—
BE=FNFELRINEAQAFTAH A=
T NE+_A+TIBNRE -
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The Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Kanghua Hospital (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement with Kanghua Group in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Kanghua Hospital from
Kanghua Group for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 254,896.14 sq.m.}; and (i) the monthly rental per
sq.m. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the actual GFA used by Kanghua
Hospital was 282,985.45 sq.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB7.44.

The Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Renkang Hospital (a 57%-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement with Tongli Enterprise in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Renkang Hospital from
Tongli Enterprise for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 73,265.62 sq.m.); and (ii) the monthly rental per
sqg.m. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the actual GFA used by Renkang
Hospital was 73,265.62 sq.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB4.12.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive Directors of
the Company

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing

connected transactions, and after due and careful enquiry with the management
of the Group, confirmed that such transactions were:

()i carried outin the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(il made on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i)  carried out according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,

which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive Directors are satisfied that they have received
and reviewed sufficient information to give the confirmations above.

Confirmation of the auditor

As to the requirement set forth in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company has written to the Board to confirm that it has not been
aware of any matter which leads it fo believe the aforesaid continued connected
fransactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

[il  arenot carried out in accordance with the related transaction agreement in
any material respects; and

[iiil  exceed the annual cap.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Apart from disclosed in this annual report, none of the related party transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which are subject to announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company had not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
reporting period, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the
reporting period.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the PRC
Company Law which oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018 the Group had no bank borrowing.

CASH MANAGEMENT

As part of the cash management policy fo manage excess cash, the Group had
invested in certain financial product issued by a PRC commercial bank to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with its business operations or capital
expenditures during the reporting period.

The Group carefully balances its needs for interest income and the risks
associated with financial products by investing in simple financial products issued
by reputable financial institutions. The Company’s senior management, including
its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, is involved in these investment
decisions. The Company’s senior management periodically reviews investment
strategies and investment portfolios to ensure they achieve the Group’s cash
management objectives. Before making a proposal to invest in financial products,
the head of the finance department of the relevant hospital or Group company
must assess the cash flow and operational needs and capital expenditures of
such hospital or company. If the cash flow exceeds its operational needs and an
appropriate low-risk investment opportunity is available, the head of the relevant
finance department will submit the investment proposal to the Company’s
senior management for approval. Regardless of investment size, a proposal
to invest in any investment products must first be reviewed and approved by
the Company’s chief financial officer, who is also responsible for reviewing the
relevant documentation and negotiation with the counterparty. After the chief
financial officer approves the proposal, it must also be approved by (i) the chief
executive officer, if the investment amount exceeds RMB10 million; or (i) the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, if the investment
amount exceeds RMB100 million.

In assessing a proposal o invest in a financial product, a number of criteria must
be met, including:

J the term of the financial product should generally not exceed one year;

o the proposed investment must not interfere with our business operations or
capital expenditures;

o the financial product must be issued by a reputable bank with which we
have a long-term relationship, preferably exceed five years; and

o the investment portfolio of the financial product should generally bear low
risk.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the reporting
period. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 60 to 92
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, the Company
had maintained the public float of the issued Shares as required under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE HONG
KONG LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20,
13.21 and 13.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to aftend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 13 May 2019 to 12
June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30pm on 10 May 2019.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 19 June 2019 to 21
June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for receiving the Proposed Final Divided (subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM), all completed share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30pm on 18 June 2019.
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IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events after the reporting period
and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR
The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2018. A resolution will be proposed for approval by the

Shareholders at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Wang Junyang
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
28 March 2019
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee, in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles, has conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle,
and has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed cautiously
the operation and development plans of the Company and provided reasonable
suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored
and supervised the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of
the PRC and the Arficles, and in the interests of the Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the Report of the Board, audited consolidated
financial statements and the Proposed Final Dividend proposed by the Board for
presentation at the AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors and the chief
executives and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duties, to act diligently, to exercise their authority faithfully
in the best interests of the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles.
We are witnessing befter operations and internal controls.

Up to the date of approval of this report, none of the Directors and chief executives
and senior management members of the Company had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon
the interests of the Shareholders. None of them was found to be in breach of any
laws and regulations or the Articles. The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the achievement and cost effectiveness of the Company during the reporting
period and has great confidence in the future prospects of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Chen Shaoming
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
28 March 2019
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Board is committed to promote good corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and believes that maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and would
provide a practice enhancing greater accountability and transparency and
meeting the expectations of the Group’s stakeholders. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance to ensure that it will continue to
meet the applicable requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 113 to 123 of this
annual report. The overall management and supervision of the Company’s
operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board.

During the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
has met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the requirement that the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received annual confirmation on independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to the requirements under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. The Company considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identities and the time involved. The Directors have
agreed to disclose to the Company their other commitments in a timely manner.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Junyang is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chen Wangzhi is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky is a senior management member and the
chief financial officer of the Company. The three of them have separate roles.

Relationship between Directors and Chief Executives

Certain Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company are members of
the Wang Family. Please refer to the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” on pages 113 to 123 of this annual report for details.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management
of the Company to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company within the control and the authority framework set by the Board. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters of the Company, including:
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, recommendation
for appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. For details, please refer to the Arficles.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out
in this corporate governance report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders at all times.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors in respect of legal actions against them.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in information
required fo be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
since the date of the 2018 interim report of the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint
company secretaries of the Company update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the reporting period, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board.

Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed by,
inter alig, the following means:

° participation in continuous professional training seminars and/or
conferences and/or courses and/or workshops on subjects relating to,
inter alia, corporate governance, directors’ duties and legal and regulatory
changes organised and/or arranged by the Company and/or professional
bodies and/or lawyers;

o reading materials provided from time to time by the Company to Directors
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties; and

o reading news, journals, magazines and/or other reading materials

regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors’ and Supervisors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and the Supervisors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
reporting period. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or the Shares are prohibited from
dealing in the Shares during the black-out period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors entered into a service contract with the Company on 11
October 2016 and renewed on 8 June 2018. According to these service contracts,
each Director's term of office (a) three years commencing from the date when
their respective appointments were approved by the Shareholders; and (b) subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles and applicable laws, rules or
regulations.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has entered or is proposed to enter
into any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision
A.1.1 of the CG Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings fo provide all Directors with an opportunity to aftend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information in advance
before a Board meeting. They have access to the senior management and the
joint company secretaries of the Company at all times and, upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary to the Board with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record sufficient detail of the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of Board Meetings and committee meetings
are sent fo the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which a meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.
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During the reporting period, the Board convened six meetings. A summary of the
attendance record of the Directors is set out in the table below:

RBEHA - EFSERHRN
FRgMEHN T X :

NREH - EF

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2018

REZE-Z-N\F+-A=+-HLEEHRH Atendance rate
Name of Directors EEpg R/ AHEERAY =
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman) TEBERE(EE) 6/6 100%
Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer) BRI 8 & (77483 6/6 100%
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman) TERELE(FEE) 6/6 100%
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHLL 6/6 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lv Yubo AEREE 6/6 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BHgfE 6/6 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRAEEE 6/6 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREfFE 6/6 100%
During the reporting period, the Company convened one annual general meeting  REREEAR » KABTIR _Z— /\F/XA/\H
on 8 June 2018. All Directors attended the annual general meeting, apart from & 5 — //\Hxﬁﬂiﬁ ° Em%]zfz:t ]
Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Lv Yubo and Dr. Chen Keji, who could not attend due to pre- T i 5 4= Kz [ 7] 32 58 4 I ELHFREE
arranged business commitments. AGERBEE EI - ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%i’jﬁf‘ﬂxi

BERE o

BOARD COMMITTEES EEEBTHEZES
The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the EE& TR=-"AZ8e EKZEE &
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, to handle particular “EEE€RFWEEL  AERBEEES R
responsibilities of the Board and the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of AR GIMIETEEHK - KA ESEE AR
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference that have B ZE€iRBETrEZEBEESE (2 LFHF

been uploaded to the respective websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company, and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rules 3.21 and
3.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code and the roles and responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the
appointment of external auditor; reviewing the Group’s financial information and
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures; supervising the Company’s internal audit system and its
implementation; reviewing connected transactions and their compliance with the
relevant terms and rules; reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval; and other matters that the
Board has authorised it to deal with.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.

Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr.
Chen Keji.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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TRERRE

During the reporting period, the Audit Committee held three meetings. A RREHIRN  BRZESBAH SR - &
summary of the aftendance record of the Audit Committee members is setoutin = ZZE &K B ELHBEHN T K
the table below:
Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2018
REZE-Z2-\F+-A=t+-HLEEDRH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEEHEREA R/ THEERAE HE=E
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BB EE 3/3 100%
Dr. Chen Keji GUESE 3/3 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE 3/3 100%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REAZES
The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of AR RRIIEREZE S  EABEHEER
reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the roles  (EEATAINBRTE UNEFTEEBRIES
and responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The ZEE€HAENBE - IERZESTEEBE
Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for preparing the procedures and #7742 7] EENSREREBRBANGZ

criteria for determining the candidates for Directors and the senior management
of the Company and conducting preliminary review on their qualifications and
credentials, including proposing to the Board on its size and composition in
accordance with the Company’s operating results, assets and shareholding
structure; reviewing the procedures and criteria for determining the candidates for
Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company and making proposals
to the Board; looking for the qualified candidates for Directors and chief executive
officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for the Directors and
chief executive officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for
the other senior management, on which the Board needs to resolve and other
matters that the Board has authorized it to deal with.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Wang Junyang
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr. Chen Keiji.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy. Please refer to “Board Diversity Policy”
on page 67 of this annual report for more details.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability fo commit time and effort to carry
out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
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During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. A RHEHR - IREZESEH A SE 1=
summary of the attendance record of the Nomination Committee membersisset ZZEZEEKENELRHEMEH N T XK ¢
out in the table below:
Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2018
REE-Z-\F+-A=+-HLEEHRH Attendance rafe
Name of committee member ZEBHEKA BE/TEEEERY HER
Mr. Wang Junyang TEHEE N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai Bg Rt N 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREfLE N 100%
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PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Nomination Committee evaluates the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and identifies any
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination Committee will then identify
suitable candidates and convene a Nomination Committee meeting to discuss
and vote on the nomination of directors and make recommendation to the Board
on the candidatel(s) for directorship.

CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will consider candidates who possess the particular
skills, experience and expertise that will best complement the Board effectiveness
at that fime.

In considering the overall balance of the Board's composition, the Nomination
Committee will give due consideration to the board diversity policy of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for formulating the criteria for and conducting
assessment on the Directors and senior management as well as determining
and reviewing the remuneration policies and plans for the Directors and senior
management, including formulating remuneration plans and proposals in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Directors and senior management
and the importance of their positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks
for the relevant positions in other comparable companies; the remuneration
plans and proposals including but not limited to criteria, procedures and
main assessment system for performance assessment, main proposals and
regulations on award and punishment; reviewing the performance of the
Directors and senior management and conducting annual assessment on their
performance and results; supervising the implementation of the remuneration
policies of the Company and other matters that the Board has authorised it
to deal with. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management member).

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Yeung Ming Lai, and one executive Director, Ms. Wang Aigin.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy is to enable the Directors
and senior management to be competitively rewarded having regard to the
Group’s operating results, roles and responsibilities and individual performance
of the directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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SEEREE

The remuneration of the members of senior management as named in the  REREHIR - BERZRFAIRANSHERE
Prospectus (for the avoidance of doubt, excluding Directors and Supervisors) by B BB (AEE5  TRIEEERESR)
band during the reporting period is set out below: REHEMEBREEHMT

Number of individuals
Remuneration band FrfEnE Ege A%
HK$1 - HK$500,000 18 72 500,000 8 7T -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001;% 7T £ 1,000,000 7% 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T 21,500,000 7 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % JT & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1
During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. A  RNBEERN - HFMEES AR — N5 - &

summary of the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is
set out in the table below:

MEEeREHFELHEMBEN TR

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2018

REZZE-N\E+-A=+-HLEFEHH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEEHELR HE/THESENE HE =
Ms. Wang Aigin FEYLHT N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BHgEE n 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREgLE N 100%
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEFLZlbEE

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy, which will form the basis of the Board's
considerations in 2019. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and achieving
a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavors to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments
should be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including but not limited to:

(a)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, Supervisors and senior management; and

(c)  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are published in a timely manner.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which are put
to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 124 to 130 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. The systems and internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has in place infernal control procedures in ensuring any continuing
connected transactions are conducted in compliance with their terms and the
applicable requirements under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

An internal audit function has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant
management. The internal audit function is to ensure the risk management and
internal control procedures are in place and function properly as infended. The
internal audit function also reviews the continuing connected transactions of
the Group and the adequacy and effectiveness of the relevant internal control
procedures. The results of the internal audit are reported to the Audit Committee.
The independent non-executive Directors, in performing their review of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, also take into account the
findings of the internal audit function.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Clinical risks are particularly relevant to the Group’s hospital operations and a
key area of the Group’s clinical governance. The Group has adopted a three-tier
risk management approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle these risks.
At the first line of defence, the hospitals’ front-line staff, guided by clearly defined
procedures, are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with day-to-day operations. The hospital managers and executives,
as the second line of defence, implement rules and procedures, provide
coaching and support, and deal with, and analyse unusual and unexpected fact
patterns and outcomes detected or anticipated by their staff. They ensure that
risks are within the acceptable range in the ordinary course of business and that
the first line of defence is effective. They also continuously benchmark against
international best practice and collate lessons learnt from past incidents to
identify areas of improvements. As the final line of defence, the Audit Committee
and the internal audit function of the Company ensure that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection, monitoring and making
recommendations to improve the relevant processes. On an ongoing basis,
each hospital of the Group reviews and assesses the status of potential risks
which may impact on its ability to achieve its business objectives and/or those of
the Group. This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
system of internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
regularly reported to the senior management and the Board. Such top-down and
company-wide risk management system is intended to cover every aspect of the
Group's clinical operations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied as to the implementation and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures. There were
no matters of material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance
controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group during the reporting period.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken
within the Group, the external auditor also assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’'s recommendations are
adopted and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be
made.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(il conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and regulations;

[il  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website. These policies and guidelines also identify
who are the Company’s authorized spokespersons and their responsibilities
for communications with stakeholders; and

(ivi  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation of the
policy and relevant trainings are also provided.
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The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total fee paid/payable in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, is set out below:

ARARESEBIBEATHER TERAAQ
FEBEARHEE  RIFHEBRESFIRE
GBI BFFNRZ 2R IEXA - BERAAR
EEEFER  ARQ B EREREEBRIBRE -
MREARABRBTERFAFTHRERE
HAIBLERREAE - ARERIBIAAR
WEOHE - ERLABH KBTI AN RHEE
B FRERSERBENEMANZEZNEE - AR
AN ERAE B KPP AN ERHR
EXRFEMERNERLRE  WBBERE
REBURERLRE -

ZE AT €
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=1+—BHIFE =&

SEZHENIERE « WERT A 1TIRMHME
AHAERARBEN, NN ERERNT :

RMB’000
ARETT
Audit services Ei AR
— Audit services in connection with the consolidated financial —- ARG A P IERER A EF TR
statements 3,148
Non-Audit services IEE RIS
— Review of inferim condensed consolidated financial statements - 25 &1 B EA 47 & B 1§ $R = 517
Total =X 3,665

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chau Hing Ling of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as one of the joint company
secretaries. Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky, the chief financial officer of the Company and the other joint company
secretary.

During the reporting period, both of Ms. Chau Hing Ling and Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication with investors is essential for
establishing investors’ confidence and attracting new investors. The Group also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information which enables investors to make the best investment decision.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

BELARME

H12E AR 75 4L % P& Vistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited ) B B e X T E BA R A L B F
REMEZ — ARAREINEZBBEAR
AARERMBERS —BHEATWE
HEELEE -

RBEHAN - AERLEIRERELEHE
BIRER FMARRAE329GEETHDRIS
NSRRI RE

HERRNEBRREEBE

Exenn EREFEERARER B
BUREENRFEOMRSIFNREEEHN
BEE -AEETEBRINERAEMERRER
25%%%%%1& R E E M RER
BIRR e



Corporate Governance ReporT

The general meetings of the Company provide an important channel for
communications between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board, as well as chairmen of the three Board committees or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committee and where appropriate,
the independent Board committee, will be available to answer questions at
Shareholders’ meetings.

Published documents together with the latest corporate information and news are
available on the Company’s website at hitp://www.kanghuagp.com. Investors
can also communicate with the Company through email at kh@kanghuagp.com.

DIVIDEND CONSIDERATIONS

The payment of dividend is to allow the Shareholder to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s
operations and future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and amount
of dividend to be paid by the Company must comply with relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles. In deciding whether to recommend any dividend, the
Board will take into account a number of factors, including financial performance,
reserves, operations and liquidity requirements and development plans of the
Company. The Board will comprehensively consider other relevant factors as
appropriate from time to time. The Company does not have a fixed dividend
distribution ratio.

PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the year
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects
from the generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions, including
the IFRS. Distributions from the Company and its subsidiaries may also become
subject to any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities, convertible bond
instruments or other agreements that the Company or its subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

The amount of any dividend actually distributed to the Shareholders will depend
upon the Group’s earnings and financial condition, operating requirements,
capital requirements and any other conditions that the Directors may deem
relevant and may be subject to approval of the Shareholders. The Board has
an absolute discretion to recommend any dividend for any year. There is no
assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or distributed in any
year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Shareholders requesting the convening of an EGM shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth below.

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares with the
voting power at the proposed meeting have the right to request the Board to
hold the EGM or a class meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles, the Board shall give written feedback to agree or
disagree to hold the EGM or the class meeting within ten days after receiving the
proposal.
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If the Board agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting, a meeting notice shall
be given within five days after the Board makes such a resolution. Changes to the
original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting or fails to give
feedback within ten days after receiving the request, the Shareholders individually
or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares have the right to request the Supervisory
Committee to hold the EGM or the class meeting in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting,
a meeting notice shall be given within five days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant
Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the EGM within the specified
period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory Committee does not convene
or preside over the Shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders who individually or
jointly hold 10% or more of the Shares for not less than 90 consecutive days
may convene and preside over the EGM by themselves. The expenses of the
Shareholders” meeting held by the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders by
themselves shall be borne by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholder(s) o Put Forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

When the Company holds a Shareholders’ general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 3%
of the Shares have the right o submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 3% of the Shares may put forward interim
proposal and submit to the convener in writing ten days before the EGM.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky, the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address:

Unit 3207, Metroplaza Tower 2
223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Fong
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2428-2880

Fax: (852) 2418-5688

Email: kh@kanghuagp.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the "ESG Report’). The
contents of the ESG Report are in compliance with the relevant environmental,
social and governance reporting guidelines set out in Appendix 27 to the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s operations at Kanghua Hospital, Renkang
Hospital, Kanghua Hospital — Huawei Clinic, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
and the Anhui Hualin Group (the “Relevant Operations”). For the avoidance of
doubt, the Relevant Operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 did not
include Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group that were
acquired by the Group in 2018.

Any opinions or suggestions in relation to the ESG Report may be sent to the
Company’s email address at: kh@kanghuagp.com.

1. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

1.1 Core values in environmental, social and governance

The Group is committed to integrating corporate, social and
environmental responsibilities into various aspects of the Group’s
operations for achieving sustainable development. To this end,
the Group has implemented various environmental, social and
governance policies:

(@ compliance with the requirements of the laws, rules and
regulations on the corporate environment, society and
governance;

(b)  promotion of the establishment and improvement of relevant
management systems and mechanisms in corporate
environment, society and governance;

(¢ emphasis on delivering patient-centric healthcare services with
the highest possible ethical and professional standard;

(d  active engagement with stakeholders to identify changing
needs in corporate, social and environmental aspect of the
Group's operations; and

el encourages staff to save energy, cherish resources, support
and promote measures on energy-saving and emission
reduction.

The Group has set up a special working group formed by the
management and hospital executives and managers of each
hospital and operating facilities to promote the above policies and
prepare the relevant disclosures and report to the Board.
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B HEREARS

1.2 The communication and responses among the stakeholders

As part of the Group’s sustainable development obijectives, the
Group maintains communication with stakeholders through various
channels with a view to proactively responding to stakeholders’
requests and fostering the Group’s capability in fulfilling its

% 30 B2 0] &

ERASEAHERRA RN —
WMo AREBBLZERE LR
MERFEBE  §HEIHOIEE
MENERLRREAREE i1

12 %

environmental and social responsibilities: BITRERTEEME :
Stakeholders Communication and responses Key issues
& B iR B o] B FESEE
Investors/shareholders Shareholders’ general meetings, Corporate governance and strategic
annual reports and interim reports, development and directions
results announcements, corporate
announcements, investors conferences
REE/B’R BRERERAE  FHREFHRE  XELRX CEELREBEREAM

Government and regulatory
authorities

BT R EEE A

Staff

i
H

Suppliers

HER

FhEAE REEKRE

Regular communications, field visits,
meetings, operating information
disclosure and reporting

THER BEHRE g3 2
PR R RS

Labour union, regular communications
between staff and management, staff
activities, regular in-house publications,
trainings and education, responsibility
and accountability systems

BITg BEIHERETCHER -
BT)RE - THAIBTY - Fl8%
5 -EAMBEHE

Due diligence, meetings, negotiations,
regular review of cooperation and
quality check, internal audit of
procurements and prescriptions by
doctors

BRALT &% WM THEES
EREERSE  RBEAMEZNLE
BT

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Strict compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, license, maintaining
and renewal hospital classification, anti-
corruption, environmental protection,
responsive to the government's latest policies
and directives on healthcare
BREEREREERER MR EFR
BEERSE RES - REBERE ZE
T A [ B8 P ) A ¥ UK K 45 B

Staff retention, collegiality, quality
standard,ethical practice, career
progression, development and training,
workplace health and safety, fair and
reasonable reward and punishment
mechanisms

STHE SFERE BERE EEE2
SoBERER - BREEI - TESMRE
REZZ - AIEE IR RS

Stable and uninterrupted supply of quality
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment on terms no less
favourable than market, proper qualifications
and licenses, service support and training on
equipment, anti-corruption, environmentally
preferable purchasing
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RIR - HSERERBRS

Stakeholders Communication and responses Key issues

& i E O] fE E:= 3

Patients Day to day operations and communications,  Clinical standard and the Group’s reputation
dedicated customer service, satisfaction as a quality and ethical healthcare services
surveys and feedback, service complaints  provider, patient satisfaction, anti-corruption
and response systems (e.g. refusing “red packets”)

BE BHRELRBR BEENEPRE BARASREMAEEER/EELSERE
mEBEEREEKE  RERFLOE EHBEERREEHENEE BEREE -
ESH RB®(ERT4I8])

Community Community activities, public health Improving the community’s awareness of
awareness events, free medical public health and safety and the profile
consultations, regular in-house of the Group as a socially responsible
publications, donations, supporting healthcare services provider, addressing
charitable causes healthcare needs from the underserved and

unprivileged

o HEES AHBELEEZEY %8 ReHRYAAFLARZEZHNEHNLK

BEAH  THAMTY - BE -

REESE

Healthcare facilities

hospitals, multisite doctor practice

BREEE MEARERKBAED

HETEE) BEZHE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group regularly keeps track of the latest national and regional
environmental laws and regulations and adopts all necessary measures
to comply with them. The Board considers that wastewaters and solid
wastes (particularly medical wastes) produced by the Group’s hospitals and
operating facilities are particularly relevant to environmental protection.
The Group is compliant with applicable laws and regulations, including,
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment, the Regulations
on the Management of Medical Waste and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not been subject to any
penalties in relation to environmental protection.

Developing sustainable best practices requires modification of staff
behavior, and this occurs most frequently through ongoing staff education.
Education and supporting processes are one of the most critical elements
to effective implementation of environmental protection initiatives and
reduction in environmental footprint.

Mutual cooperation and patient referrals,
technical assistance to lower-tier

[[) T AR B B b

SEFESAHTERANBEERFIEMNR
PR BRERGTIENEEBEEE

Delivery of optimal clinical solutions to
address the different needs of patients,
referral of patients requiring acute, complex
and critical care from lower-tier hospitals to
the Group, the Group’s influential presence
in the industry
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2.1

Wastewaters 21 75K
Hospitals discharge considerable amounts of chemicals and B E 5K EER R E L2
microbial agents in their wastewaters. Many substances contained ME R EDHE - SKAEER
in the wastewaters, such as chemicals, medicine residues as FFEME b B EEm - BY)E
well as pathogenic resistant bacteria and viruses, resist normal BY BAUERER RS &
wastewater freatment and could pose a danger to public health and BIEEETKER - IREEE
the environment if released untreated into the public sewer system. EARIITKES - ATee A
Due to the chemical and biochemical contaminants, the wastewaters HERRBEKEE - AMNMEE
treatment requires specialised technologies and processes that REMCETLY  SKEER
cannot be feasibly conducted at the source. The Group engages DEMMRIMRBRE - ZERI
a qualified and licensed service provider to process all of the MBI ERE LTAI1T - AEH
wastewaters produced by its hospitals. Before the wastewaters ZHRSERBFENRBERMAN
are processed by the service provider, they are stored in dedicated RIEHBREENMAESK B
facilities to ensure they will not contaminate the primary water supply VEKEE R IRE R EE 2R - &
for human consumption and clinical use. HEWMEZA®RES - AHERS
)5 RARABRKRA RERKRER
B R A KA e o
The table below sets forth the discharge volume of wastewaters by TR REEBRALE R
the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BT KB E -
Change 2018 2017
& —E-N\F —E—+F
Wastewaters discharge (fon) Y5 K HE B (IR -10.1% 293,463 326,587
Wastewaters discharge per gross & 2 58 T 18 B35 /K HE IR
floor area (ton/gross floor area) (g, 3EEEMETE) -28.3% 0.66 0.92

The Group had a lower level of wastewaters discharge in
2018 despite business growth due to a lower level of water
consumption, which was in turn attributable to the Group’s on-going
implementation of water-saving initiatives.

The discharge of wastewaters is integral to the Group’s clinical
operations and is generally expected to increase in line with business
growth. The management does not currently consider that it is
feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to control or reduce
the amount of wastewaters discharge without compromising sanity
and clinical safety, which are of overriding importance to public
health and safety. The Group regularly reviews its wastewaters
treatment protocols with a view to ensuring there is no inadvertent
contamination of its water supply and that the wastewaters will
be properly handled by the hospitals before treated by the service
provider. The management believes that the wastewaters produced
by the hospitals, after properly treated by the service provider, will
pose minimal risks fo the environment.
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2.2 Hazardous solid wastes

Hospital operations generate a variety of solid medical wastes in
the diagnosis, treatment or immunization of patients or in research
that can pose a danger to public health and the environment if not
properly treated and disposed of. Materials containing pathogens
are infectious can cause diseases if exposed. These include:

human anatomical waste: waste from surgery and autopsies
on patients with infectious diseases;

sharps: disposable needles, syringes, saws, blades, broken
glasses, nails or any other item that could cause a cut; and

pathological: tissues, organs, body parts, human flesh, fetuses,
blood and body fluids.

Non-infectious but hazardous wastes include:

pharmaceuticals: drugs and chemicals that are returned from
wards, spilled, outdated, contaminated, or are no longer
required; and

radioactive: wastes contaminated with radioactive substances
used in diagnosis and treatment of diseases.

The Group’s hospitals have in place a comprehensive medical waste
management system:

1.

Identification and segregation of waste types: segregation of
different types of wastes at source (wards, operation theaters,
laboratories, examination rooms efc.) with color coding systems
and clear operation guidelines and handbooks, supervised by
responsible staff. Effective segregation diminishes total waste
and the hospital’s environmental footprint;

Transport & storage of waste: use of puncture proof and leak
proof containers; bags are properly tied and sealed; use of
special containers for radioactive wastes; use of designated
transport trolleys and timely collection; and storage in covered
areas remote from normal passages with security measures to
prevent unauthorized tempering;

2.2
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3. Identify the need for use of personal protective equipment:
special clothing, gloves, masks and eye protection identified
and provided to the healthcare works responsible for waste
transportation and disposal; and

4. Proper disposal of waste: collection and subsequent
disposal by qualified and licensed service provider (including
incineration, landfill or chemical/biochemical treatment, as
appropriate to the type of wastes) specialized in medical
wastes disposal. On account of the hazardous nature of these
wastes, they are not typically recycled.

The table below sets forth the volume of hazardous solid medical
wastes produced by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:
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Change 2018 2017
o —E-NF —E—tF
Hazardous solid wastes (kg) BEEEED(AF) +26.4% 540,103 427,343
BREEENEEERE
Hazardous solid wastes per gross — BE#) (A 1/ B EEE
floor area (kg/gross floor area) 1) +1.4% 1.221 1.204

The disposal of hazardous solid medical wastes is integral to the
Group’s clinical operations and is generally expected to increase
in line with business growth. The management does not currently
consider that it is feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to
control or reduce the production of hazardous solid wastes without
compromising sanity and clinical safety, which are of overriding
importance. For example, many surgical tools, protective masks and
gloves and syringes are strictly for one-time use only; extending their
use may reduce waste production but is not clinically acceptable as
it significantly increases the risks of cross-infection among patients
and staff. The Group regularly reviews its waste management
system with a view to ensuring that all of the steps in the chain are
properly followed with the safety of the patients and staff as top
priority. One of the key steps in managing the hazardous wastes is
proper identification and segregation because: (i) this ensures no
hazardous wastes are inadvertently mixed with domestic wastes and
disposed without proper treatment, potentially posing harm to public
safety and environment; and (i) the service provider processes the
wastes collected according to the identification and segregation by
the hospitals. The hospitals have a responsibility and accountability
system for waste management at the source and provide regular
trainings to the front-line staff to ensure that the guidelines and
handbooks are strictly adhered. The management believes that the
hazardous solid wastes produced by the hospitals, after properly
treated by the service provider, will pose minimal risks to the
environment.
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2.3 Domestic wastes 2.3

The Group’s operations generate domestic wastes that are non-
infectious and non-hazardous from the offices, dormitories, kitchens,
rooms, including bed linens, utensils, paper, etc. These wastes are
identified and segregated at source and are eventually collected,
treated and recycled by general wastes service providers.

The table below sets forth the volume of domestic wastes produced

RIR - HSERERBRS

A TR AR

REBOEBREMRAE BE -
BE - FRELIFEREEIER
FUHMEENE  BEK AR
BEHR BERF - ZFTRIPRIRA
T AR R o B - B4R — AR RE
V)RR TR AL W R - R IE R m K
BHA-

TREIRATFERBLEE

by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BEANEFNRE
Change 2018 2017
B E) —E-N\F —T—+F
Domestic wastes (kg) HTERIR (A T) +25.0% 2,399,050 1,920,000
Domestic wastes per gross floor S iE S TE A £ E b7 R
area (kg/gross floor area) (RfT/EEER) +0.35% 5.427 5.408

The Group is conscientious about the environment and is committed
to the recycling of domestic wastes where feasible. This primarily
includes the recycling of paper, plastic, metal and glass. The
Group mandates its staff to segregate the domestic wastes into
appropriate categories for proper handling by the service provider.
The Group also promotes “paper-less” office, including double-
sided or secondary paper printing except for official documents,
multimedia form of presentation in meetfings and increasing the use
of office automation system fo reduce administrative paperwork. The
hospitals have an engineering department to salvage any usable
parts or components from decommissioned equipment and furniture,
such as televisions, computers and hospital beds, before they are
disposed of. The Group may also donate obsolete but functional
items, such as computers, to various charitable organisations. The
Group will continue to explore feasible initiatives to reduce domestic
waste production and enhance its recycling efforts. The increase in
domestic wastes was primarily attributable to the inclusion of the
operations of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and Anhui Hualin
Group.
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2.4 Energy consumption 24 BERBME
Healthcare systems are among a community’s largest consumers BEERAREMERANEREE
of energy. Hospitals are generally open 24 hours a day and have Bz — - Bl —MREBR24/NE
sophisticated energy needs, such as particular air flow controls F¥  BAGABEMNERER
and specialized heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems. BARRTE BY SRR I R P RO
The Group’s hospitals’ and operating facilities” energy consumption BRARZERRG REERR K
primarily includes electricity and water. EERBHNEERBEREEZBREK
The table below sets forth the consumption of the Relevant TEREVRFAIRFERBLE X
Operations for the years indicated: BIEREE
Change 2018 2017
B E) —E-N\F ZT—+F
Electricity (kilowatt-hours) B (TRE) +14.6% 34,069,473 29,733,765
Electricity consumption intensity BHRERE
(kilowatt-hours per gross floor (BREEBETLR)
area) -8.1% 77.0 83.8
Water consumption (ton) JKFE (W8) +6.3% 731,808 688,282
Water consumption intensity IKFERE
{fon per gross floor area) (GREmEEN) -13.2% 1.65 1.9

Electricity consumption is primarily attributable to air-conditioning,
water heating, lighting and energy demanding medical equipment
such as MRI and X-ray. The Group’s initiatives aimed at reducing
electricity consumption include:

o explore the feasibility of using air heat pump water heater and
gas-fired boiler;

o installation of inverter-type air-conditioning systems that are
more energy-efficient;

o installation of high efficiency LED light sources;

o promote staff awareness and control measures ensure lights
are off when no one is using;

o an energy saving task force is set up to perform regular
inspections of air-conditioning systems and other electrical
systems to ensure no unintended or unusual usage;

o installation of motion-triggered lightning systems in escalators
and elevators;

. maximize the use of natural sunlight via roof windows;

o implement a system of inspecting office buildings; every
administrative department is responsible for the inspection of
power consumption and timely turning off related electrical
appliances, including lighting, air conditioning and so on.
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o installation of automatic door closers in wards with a view
to increasing energy efficiency by limiting the amount of air
movement required, as well as the space that needs to be
cooled; and

o gradually replace obsolete equipment with new equipment
that are certified for energy efficiency.

Water consumption is primarily attributable to cooling equipment,
plumbing fixtures, landscaping, medical process rinses, pure water
systems and domestic uses (sinks, showers, toilets). The Group’s
initiatives aimed at reducing water consumption include:

o leak detection and repair;
o use of high-efficiency showerheads;
o use of low-flow plumbing fixtures;

. use of motion sensor-activated faucets and flow control;

o use of waterless medical vacuum pumps;

o use of reject water produced in the reverse-osmosis process;

o use full loads in sanitizers, sterilizers and laundry washing
machines, consistent with infection control requirements; and

o minimize water use for irrigation with rain/soil moisture
controllers and only during times when wind and evaporation
are lowest.

In both 2017 and 2018, the Group also achieved remarkable
water saving on account of, among other water-saving initiatives,
the installation of more than 1,500 high-efficiency waterheads
at Kanghua Hospital. The Group will continue to oversee the
effectiveness of the above initiatives and explore new and innovative
ways to achieve water saving, which will in turn contribute to
electricity saving.

The increase in the consumption of both electricity and water in
the year ended 31 December 2018 was primarily attributable to the
increase in business operations (including a new administrative
centre at Kanghua Hospital and the inclusion of Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group) and
considerably higher number of hotter days in 2018 resulting in
higher utilisation of air conditioning. The overall intensity of electricity
and water consumption decreased as the requirements for each
of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group
per GFA were generally less demanding than the other Relevant
Operations.
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2.5 Antibiotics prescription 25 MEERA

Antimicrobial resistance is a global public health challenge, which
is aggravated by the overuse of antibiotics. Increased antimicrobial
resistance is the cause of severe infections, complications, longer
hospital stays and increased mortality. Antibiotics over-prescription is
also potentially associated with an increased risk of adverse effects,
more frequent re-aftendance and increased medicalization of self-
limiting conditions.

Inevitably, doctors at the Group’s hospitals prescribe antibiotics to
patients from time to time. The Group is committed to the judicious
prescription of antibiotics by eliminating unnecessary or sub-optimal
prescriptions. The Group’s continuous efforts has led to a general
decrease in rate of antibiotics prescription at Kanghua Hospital and
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Renkang Hospital in 2018.

AEENERRIEEERGENE
ERANET28  FEHIT

The Group’s clinical governance tracks a number of parameters to
gauge the prescription of antibiotics as set forth in the table below:

=
Change 2018 2017 Standard
Kanghua Hospital REER i —E-NF —E—+tF = oAE
Rate of antibiotics prescription for Fi2 B & MAEZEH X
Outpatients -1.7b.p. 9.9% 11.6% 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for 14 ZE&E 5 AR E &
emergency treatment JRER L = -41b.p. 24.7% 28.8% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for £t B & M EZRH X
inpatients -2.7b.p. 47.3% 50.0% = 60%
Change 2018 2017 Standard
Renkang Hospital CRER g2y —ET—-)\F —T—tF RAE
Rate of antibiotics prescription  FIZ2BEMAERE H X
for Outpatients -0.7 b.p. 15.1% 15.8% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription A ZR AR ES
for emergency freatment SRR X -4.6 b.p. 30.6% 35.2% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription  {EfT BE M AEZE H X
for inpatients -3 b.p. 56.4% 59.4% = 60%

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Zhonglian Cardiovascular Change 2018 2017 Standard
Hospital REOMERER g2y —FT—-)\F —T—tF R
Rate of antibiotics prescription  PIZBREMEEZRH X N/A 2.0% N/A = 20%
for Outpatients NEA T E M
Rate of antibiotics prescription  HAEZRFARES N/A 0% N/A = 40%
for emergency freatment SRR X T E A N iE A
Rate of antibiotics prescription  {EFt B H M EZRH X N/A 40.0% N/A = 60%
for inpatients NEA T E M
Change 2018 2017 Standard
Huawei Clinic EAEMD gE —T—)\F —ZT—+tF FAE
Rate of anfibiotics prescription ~ FI% B E M EERH K
for Outpatients +5.2 b.p. 17.6% 12.4% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription A= T AR BEEE
for emergency treatment B X -3.0b.p. 17.6% 20.6% = 40%

The increase in rate of antibiotics prescription for outpatients at
Huawei Clinic was primarily attributable to the impact of full year

operations in 2018.

R-ZE—)N\F #RMAZHNMAZ
BENERBHEMXREM - T
BENRAEFREXBZEME -

Change 2018 2017 Standard

Anhui Hualin Group ZHERES g2y —Z2-—N\F —T—+F EA

Rate of antibiotics prescription ~ FIZ2BEMEREF X N/A 13.4% N/A = 20%
for Outpatients TEA i A

Rate of antibiotics prescription  HAEZER AR EZ N/A 0% N/A = 40%
for emergency treatment TR X TERA iE A

Rate of antibiotics prescription ~ FE B EMERE T X N/A 17.7% N/A = 60%
for inpatients TEA 3 A

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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The Group's initiatives to the judicious prescription of antibiotics
include:

o providing education and clinical decision support to doctors
and patients regarding the long-term and community-wide
consequences of overusing antibiotics;

o patients should be educated of the importance of following the
use of antibiotics according to prescription;

o doctors should always follow the principle of rational, safe and
effective antibiotics prescription;

o antibiotics should be prescribed only for bacterial infections
whenever possible and in the proper dose for the correct
duration;

o narrow spectrum antibiotics should be chosen whenever
possible to avoid destroying populations of beneficial bacteria
along with the disease-causing bacteria;

o publish internal clinical guidelines for doctors to follow,
especially for common infections, with a view to improving
antibiotics use;

o rotating use of different classes of antibiotics where possible;

o accountability systems to prompt responsible prescription of
antibiotics by doctors;

o strictly prohibit any form of advantages or rebates provided by
pharmaceutical companies to incentivize doctors to prescribe
more antibiotics; and

o regular communications with regulators and healthcare
organizations, including the Chinese Center for Disease Control
and Prevention, to understand the latest community threats
and outbreaks with a view to modifying antibiotics prescription
strategy as appropriate.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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EMPLOYMENT

The success of the Group depends critically on its ability to atfract, develop
and retain its staff. The Group adheres to fair and open recruitment
practices, and provides its staff with adequate protection of rights. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to strive for
improvements and innovations in staff support, development and training
to create a safe and comfortable working environment and provide a
fair and collegial learning and development platform. The Group prides
itself on maintaining harmonious relationships with its staff in the spirit of
“Kanghua People”. As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 3,469
(including 750 full-time staff of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the
Anhui Hualin Group acquired in 2018) (2017: 2,476) full-time staff.

3.1

Recruitment

Recruitment is an important component to the continuous growth
of the Group. The Group’s recruitment process is merit based and
is open to all qualified personnel. In addition to internal recruitment
by job promotion and rotation, the Group also carries out external
recruitment activities. Healthcare professionals are highly sought after
in Guangdong Province. Therefore, the Group strategically extends
its recruitment efforts to other provinces in the PRC. The Group
implements a series of internet recruitment campaigns to reach a
wide base of potential candidates and on campus recruitment drives
in key medical schools and nursing schools in multiple provinces to
aftract talent out of Guangdong Province. Teaching affiliations with
academic institutions enable the Group to identify potential young
healthcare professionals and recruit them early on. The Group also
has in place various referral schemes to identify potential candidates
from its existing staff's social networks. Referred staff generally has
higher retention rates and increased engagement. The Group audits
and verifies staff identify and background as part of the recruitment
process to ensure no child labor or forced labour is employed.
Depending on the position being hired, the Group also conducts
background checks to ensure the veracity of information provided
by the potential candidate. The Group has adopted a Recruitment
Process Management Policy to standardize its recruitment practice.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such
as the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC,
and entfers into labor contracts with its staff. Each of the Group’s
hospitals and operating facilities has adopted a labor union to protect
the rights and interests of its staff and encourage them to participate
in the management of the Group’s operations.
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3.2 Equal opportunities employer 32 TEMEHE
The Group is an equal opportunities employer. The Group provides FEBERVTERERT - A&EH
equal opportunities to all staff in a fair, transparent and non- RABEIRRY FHH- B
discriminatory environment. Female staff has equal opportunities RIEBREPRHETERE - LHEE
as male staff, and would not prejudiced because of pregnancy. No THEFEHEEUHETFEHKE - 1
religious or racial discrimination is folerated in recruitment and career TERAREMIER - ERIEK
development. BEZRPNTDRAMREK
TERRIEAR o
As at 31 December 2018
HE-Z—-)\F+=-HA=+—H
Zhonglian
Kanghua Renkang  Cardiovascular Anhui Hualin
Hospital Hospital Hospital Huawei Clinic Group Total Staff

RHEL M E B
Bk E£RMY ZBHEREE AL

BEER  CEER

Male Female Male Female Male Female

Male Female Male Female Male Female

Age Group/Gender 4 HI /15l g z B xz B x B x & un B
Age 51 or above IR £ 79 63 31 18 14 5 4 4 38 31 166 121
Age between 311050 31 Z 507 317 513 94 138 53 63 8 9 44 13 516 836
Age below 30 0T 189 820 32 219 26 120 1 36 57 296 305 1491

585 1,396 157 375 93 188 13 49 139 440 987 2,448

As at 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—t+tF+=-A=+—H

Kanghua Hospital - Renkang Hospital ~ Huawei Clinic Total Staff

BEER CRER ERHMD BAE
Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female
Age Group/Gender FEAR MR 5 z L2 z EE Z b z
Age 51 or above S1ER A 66 54 30 17 2 1 98 72
Age between 3110 50 E5075% 274 406 96 128 6 9 376 543
Age below 30 0BRHIAT 233 856 32 221 1 22 266 1,099
573 1,316 158 366 9 32 740 1,714

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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3.3 Staff remuneration and retention

The Group's comprehensive staff remuneration and retention policy
is designed with a view to rewarding staff performance and long
term staff retention. It primarily includes: (i) economic components
comprising basic salary determined with reference to the individual's
position, seniority and length of service, performance bonus
determined with reference to the metrics specific to the individual's
job function and other benefits; and (i) non-economic components
comprising personal development, job challenge and satisfaction,
recognition, work environment, work safety and career advancement.
The Group regularly benchmarks against available market data
and adjusts its remuneration structure with a view to remaining
competitive. While financial incentives are an important factor in
staff retention, the Group recognizes that they alone are not enough
to improve recruitment and retention in a sustainable manner.
Therefore, the Group places equal emphasis on non-economic
factors, in particular personal development, work environment and
collegiality. The Group’s career advancement track is transparent and
achievable. The Group provides a platform and support for its staff to
undertake medical education and research in their field of choice.

With a view to retaining and developing talent, the Group actively
identifies high potential staff and provide them with additional
training opportunities, industry exposure and an accelerated career
track. By providing training for new skills and tuition reimbursement
for external courses, the Group’s staff will feel valued, important and
invested in the Group. The Group regularly carries out staff appraisals
to discuss achievements, strengths, and areas for development, and
to set personal objectives with a view to ensuring they feel motivated
and appreciated for their contribution. The Group maintains open
channels of communication with its staff to keep them informed
of the latest developments and provide them with opportunities to
voice their opinions. The Group also recognises that its healthcare
professionals, in particular doctors and nurses, may be subject to
a high pressure and demanding work environment from time to
time due to their job nature, which may result in aftrition. The Group
actively monitors the emotional wellbeing of its staff and provide
counselling and supporting arrangements where appropriate. The
Group regularly gauges the working hours of its staff to identify
any staff with excessive workloads and makes alternative staffing
arrangements if necessary. The Group aims to build a strong
organisational culture to cultivate a sense of belonging among its
staff through various staff functions and events. The Group believes
that the creation of a healthy and harmonious working environment
will improve staff morale and productivity in the long term.

3.3
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3.4

In 2018, the Group began the year with 2,476 (2017: 2,448) full-
time staff, added 1,564 (included 750 full-time staff of Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital and Anhui Hualin Group acquired in 2018)
(2017: 681) full-time staff and lost 593 (2017: 532) full-time staff during
the year. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 3,469
(2017: 2,476) full-time staff. The attrition rate of full-time staff (including
doctors, nurses, administrative and other support staff] of the Group
for 2018 was 5.0% (2017: 21.6%). The attrition rate of doctors of the
Group for 2018 was 19.8% (2017: 24.3%). The improvement in attrition
rate was primarily attributable to the offering of more competitive
remuneration packages and the enhanced profile of the “Kanghua”
brand particularly because it has become a listed company on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 2016.

Training and development

The Group provides structured training and education programmes
to enable its staff to consistently deliver high quality services. These
programmes aim fo equip the staff with a sound foundation of the
medical principles and knowledge as well as practical skills in their
respective practice area and foster a high standard of practice,
organisation capability and vigilant attitude. Regular internal and
external mandatory trainings are organised for medical staff to
keep them abreast of the latest development in healthcare. From
time to time, the Group identifies and sponsors its staff with high
development potential o undertake further studies and professional
training in prestigious academic institutions and participate in
industry conventions. Medical teams also benefit from the experience
and knowledge exchange during seminars and sharing sessions
regularly held. The Group encourages medical staff to apply for
professional and technical qualifications and enroll in specialised
training programmes and assessments from time to time, including
induction training for new employees, development training for young
and middle-aged core talent, medical service quality fraining and
management training for young core talent, with a view to ensuring
that their relevant professional competencies meet the required
standards. Through various training and education programmes, the
Group also aims to foster a proactive risk reporting culture among
staff, which is important in the early detection of clinical failure and
damage control.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

3.4

—E-N\F AEEFVEEBE
T2476 A (ZF —+t1F 2,448
A) A FREINEHE T1,564
A BERZE-—NFUHENR
BOMERER R ZRERER
ME2BET750 A (ZE—+4F:
681 A) MRKEBA(ZE—+
Fi532A) e R E—N\F+=
A=+—8 A&EEHXE2EE
T3,469 A (ZE—+4F :2,476
AN) e ZE—N\F KEEHZ
BET (REEL #L - 1TH
MEEOBE L) REAEAE50%(Z
T—+F :216%) - ZF—N\F -
AEEMBERAEF9.8% (=
T—1F 1 243%) oMk RNE
FEDERREEFAEFF HEFHME
BURLERER T —RFHE
BRI A LT ARIEIRA
[FEEE | MW PR -

ol B B R

AEBIRE R SIS MBS
NEE TR AR S EERN
RT5 - EFT S EHERKBET
FHAGRESEERAINE
B IR Bl B AN OA B SR B RE RO B
BEW IHESEENEERE -
BN RBEERE - AEER
B % A B EE e mEk RSB
SRHIMEIT ) - AEIRE T BB
M RR - NEEE TR EE
HERENAHE I RERSE
HEZLEMEEE - THRER
REXEIAR2MITESH -
BRBERTCERETHMEE
kN FE L& LB RS
i AREZBBEHABRE
BB R T E M E XA
ABEEBIEESZ  BEHME
TAREI - hEFEHARE
Jl - BERGEERZIARTF
BHMEEEZINIE  AEREFZ
HEXBENTAIEE - BBE
BIEIIEHRAEE  AEETN
BESETHEEIPRALBEX
b BERRFERERRD K
BETHEREE -



3.5

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has adopted a Continuing Education and Training

Management Policy (#4821 5 15 5|1 %E 12§l £ ). The training system
is supported by three major components:

o the science and education department is primarily responsible
for training on clinical skills;

o the nursing department is primarily responsible for training on
nursing and patient caretaking skills; and

o the human resources department is primarily responsible
for comprehensive training on staff management capability,
cultural values and technical skills.

The table below sets forth the number of training hours provided to
the Group’s staff of the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

RIR - HSERERBRS

AEBDRNCEBEHRS EIIE
BHIE) - ZE B E R =@
BB D X

« REBEIBAEBKRE
s

. WELISEEEBRE
R R R

e ANERHEIEZHEEET
EIRES  XEEE MK
e 2 EF -

TREINATFESBREE
EHE TR AIE IR 2

Change 2018 2017

FE)K —E-N\F —EF—+tF
Number of participants 28 AKX +31.2% 28,145 21,450
Training man-hours (Hours) I TR (/B +77.2% 355,162 200,484
The increase in the number of participants and training man- S AR GBS 8
hours was primarily attributable to the inclusion of the operations of TYRER —ZZ— \FENRE O M
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group in ERER N T RHEREENER
2018. FrEg -
Workplace health and safety 35 IESGFRERZZE

The Group highly values occupational safety and strives to eliminate
potential workplace health and safety hazards. The Group maintains
an internal audit and inspection program to ensure the safety of
the hospital premises for patients, the public and staff. The aim of
the audit process is to ensure that the workplace is continuously
monitored and that deficiencies in relation to set standards are
remedied. The Group ensures that each of its hospital departments is
periodically inspected and audited for safety issues, such as medical
treatment safety, environment safety and occupational safety.
The Group actively encourages staff to report health and safety
incidents and risks on a no repercussion basis, and the learning
from proactive monitoring and findings from incident reviews is
used to improve further and refine training programmes, policies
and working practices. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group had, in all material respects, complied with applicable laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
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The Group is committed to improving the construction of infection
prevention and control systems at both the hospital level and
discipline level, further clarifying the functions of infection prevention
and control teams, revising the infection prevention and control
policies, processes and contingency plans, and strengthening
the relevant training and education with a view to consistently
standardizing infection prevention and control management.
The Group conducts regular sanitisation to contain the potential
spread of infectious diseases at its hospitals. The Group has
established surveillance systems to closely monitor the prevalence of
nosocomial infections at its hospitals and ensure that such incidents
are maintained at a very low level in compliance with applicable
standards. The Group also provides periodical occupational safety
education and training to augment its staff's awareness of safety
issues. The Group provides its staff with regular health assessment
to monitor their overall health. In particular, the Group adopts
stringent assessment protocols for its staff that are regularly exposed
to high-risk environments such as radiation and clinical wastes to
ensure their exposure is within acceptable safety limits. Such staff
are provided with adequate protective gears and are regularly
required to take days off to minimize the long term health effects of
radiation. Each relevant staff is required to follow specific procedures
and guidelines laid down by the hospital, including Medical Staff
Occupational Exposure Protection and Reporting Policy. From
time to time, the Group engages third party experts to assess the
effectiveness of the hospitals’ safety and protective measures.

The Group recognizes that medical violence has in recent years
become a workplace safety hazard faced by many medical
professionals in the PRC. In light of this, the Group has established
internal guidelines and provided trainings to better prepare its staff
in handling such situations, including setting a risk assessment of
patient violence, implementing an on-line direct reporting system
for adverse events of hospitals and adhering to the Regulations on
Prevention and Treatment of Medical Disputes (8 % 4l #3 FE B £ 52
12 & 151) recently issued by the government and taking into account
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the actual circumstances of the hospitals to establish an early f&B1) - 4 & &b il@’% ED
warning management system for patient safety. The depariment of Ve %?%ﬁ%%f BER o fRTT
security is able fo dispatch security officers experienced in handling Blee #d I iR IR B & W =1
incidents of medical violence. The Group also works closely with the HEEBREENLZIRAB - 14
police bureaus and law enforcement agencies who will be able to EBEAT  AEETSEERF
dispatch officers in short notice to the hospitals if necessary. &%ﬂxﬁ&%%% TalE - REKEE
T 2 B 38 2018 52 B R R 1) B B
BAE
The table below sets forth key health and safety information of the TR R FEABALESE
Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BOEERERLEZER
2018 2017
Number of staff contracting infections I EEERAETAH
due fo occupation 23 17
Number of staff deaths due to occupation EEELT 8 T AH - -
Number of staff disabilities due to
occupation R ERE R 8 T AR = -
Number of man-days lost due to X EEGRIERAIRRE
occupation related injuries or illness 27.0 18.0
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SERVICE QUALITY

As embodied in the Group’s motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(B E RS e BEHE), the Group adopts a patient-centric approach in
treating all patients, the well-being of whom form the core of its values. The
Group places a high priority on providing patients with consistently high
quality service and support, which is crucial to its long-term success. The
Group provides patient care in an ethical manner, and at the best possible
quality, taking into consideration patient safety, patients’ satisfaction and
service efficiency.

4.1 Patient satisfaction and complaints

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated customer service department
to collect and gauge patient feedbacks. The customer service
department is an important component in ensuring that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and responsive
communication. The table below sets forth key operating data of the
Group's customer service for the years indicated:

RIR - HSERERBRS

RBEE

BUOAEERE [BERT e BRHEE
PrEeiRE  NEBESMEBERE
RERBRABERFLONIR  BELR
FEREABEZL AEEGEERR
BERK-ENEERBEIS &
HERHAKDEHREZ - ZEIBE
e BEMNEBREERBRE A&
BIAGFBROTA  AFARELHH
HERBERMER -

41 BEBREBENKEFR

AEENBRREERERTFP RS
HAME RFTERERE - BB
TEEHRE MIEGEEAR
P RSB HER B E BRER
MBZMEMKE D - TREIIRA
REEAEEEFPREHNEERL
LHIE

Number of patients served R B E AR
Customer service man hours Bk A LR £

Change 2018 2017
RS —E-N\F —TtF
+25.0% 98,837 79,054
-22.4% 2,003,961 2,582,508

The decrease in customer service man hours despite an increase
in the number of patients serviced was primarily attributable to
improved efficiency and automation of certain aspects of outpatient
customer service at Kanghua Hospital in 2018.

The hospitals continuously review and streamline patient registration
process and provide regular staff customer-service training. The
hospitals also conduct patient satisfaction surveys. Such results serve
to establish a baseline to monitor changes in patient experience and
satisfaction in specific area of service delivery. These surveys primarily
include:

o call back interviews with inpatients, outpatients and physical
examination patients;

o surveys delivered through short messaging services;

° on-site questionnaires; and

o comments collection boxes.
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The Group also cooperates with third parties to conduct
comprehensive surveys and analytical studies from time to time.

The subjective nature of the healthcare industry means that the
Group occasionally receives patient complaints in the ordinary
course of business. The Group has implemented a standardised
customer complaint management at each of its hospitals with
a view fo promptly, accurately and comprehensively collecting
feedback from patients, addressing patients’ concerns, continuously
improving clinical processes and ultimately delivering service of
the highest standard to patients. The Group generally classifies
patient complaints in three major categories of importance: (i) critical
complaints, which may involve deficiencies in clinical quality resulting
in adverse effects to patients, medical disputes attracting media
attention and intervention from regulatory authorities, extremely
poor service attitude, verbal abuses or assaults on patients, or any
complaints regarding medical ethics; (i) regular complaints, which
may involve general service atfitude, environment, accommodation,
hospital or inter-departmental processes resulting in inconvenience
to patients, billing error, repeated assessment, pricing or lack of
communication or language skills; and {iii) immaterial complaints,
which may involve mere service recommendations or trivial
comments, or complaints that are frivolous, vexatious or are primarily
attributable to the patients’ individual condition.

The table below sets forth the number of each category of complaints
received by the Group for the years indicated:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIE  HEBRERRE

AEBTENREE = EFE
TEEAERDITHE

BETENIBUEERERNEH
EBBEBBESD S TR RD B
ERF - AEECEEERKER
ERFELCEPRFAEE UK
®EELRPHEPERERE
RRBERY  HARZERKR
BRERAEBERHERSKEN
R - REBE—REBERFD
R=ZREZHH (1 EKEZF -
AERFAIRE S N EHHBEE
ETNEENERKREERE - 5l
LRBAINEEMATRENE
Bl REEEBEES 8
BELETFERREBASLER
EE 3R (i) — ARIREF - &
REFABES R —RRIFREE - IR
BoEE BRERARERR
R BETRONME FHEHER
BEfRE  EEXRZBBELE
BRIT M IFE R - %F
RERF RS MRS B SO
At SBEY - EIREUR S T
ZRANBEBAN AR -

TRINFRFREAEEUE
M EBRFEE

Change 2018 2017
BEpxK —ZE-N\F ZT—+F
Number of critical complaints BBARIEF -2.9% 33 34
Number of regular complaints — IR EF +74.1% 188 108
Number of immaterial complaints ~ 3E&E 245 5F -32.5% 315 467
Total #at -12.0% 536 609
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Patients may lodge a complaint by mail, telephone, touch-screen
terminals or in person. The Group has dedicated facilities to record
the complaint process on a confidential basis to safeguard the
interests of all parties involved and ensure that the complaint
processes are conducted fairly with proper records. The hospitals
have a complaint office, a unit led by a highly experienced hospital
manager and dedicated to the management of patient complainants.
The complaint office acts as the complainant point of contact,
explains the complaint process to the complainants, directs patient
complaints to appropriate departments and governance committees
for detailed investigation and root-cause analysis, conducts in-
depth fact-finding, proactively oversees and manages the complaint
processes, coordinates and communicates with the parties involved,
accurately records all relevant findings on a confidential basis and
formulates the appropriate replies to the complainants. All initial
complaints and views will be handled and responded to directly by
the complaint office. The Group is committed to resolving all patient
complaints in the shortest period of time, or on the spof, if possible,
though resolution of critical complaints generally requires a longer
period of time. For critical complaints involving clinical safety or
possible health implications, the Group proactively takes immediate
actions to prevent and minimise adverse effects on patients. The
hospital policy mandates every complaint to be properly lodged and
processed through the system and prohibits staff from reaching a
private settlement with the complainants, which may potentially place
the hospital in a disadvantaged situation if such complaints were to
escalate further.

The Group regards patient complaint management as an important
component for the continuous improvement of clinical safety and
quality. The Group freats each of the patients” complaints seriously
and regards them as the best source for improvement. Complaint
reports are regularly reported to senior management for review. For
every patient complaint, the Group is committed to understanding its
fact pattern and root cause, ascertaining the responsible parties and
areas of improvement. The hospitals organise a monthly complaints
analysis meeting to identify improvement areas in clinical processes,
make recommendations and ensure the relevant administrative
and clinical departments implement the necessary improvements
promptly. In addition, the hospitals organise a quarterly complaints
sharing session on the root cause of the complaints, improvement
processes implemented and lessons learnt with a view to cultivating
a sense of vigilance among staff.

For critical complaints that may escalate into medical disputes, the
complaint office will notify the medical dispute contingency task force,
headed by the director and senior management of the hospital, to
initiate the medical dispute process involving a highly coordinated
effort of various units of the hospital. In 2018, most of the complaints
were resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes. In 2018, 21 medical disputes cases (2017: 17) were
materialized during the year.
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B -

HERELARSE

4.2 Service quality management 42 BRGEEER
The Group adopts a comprehensive service quality management AEERRTERBEEEIRE
system consisting of the following key components: R BENTEEZEKHS
e structure — the availability of clinical resources, including . %%%—E%Jﬂfﬁfﬁ—fﬁﬁ&r
medical equipment, hospital governance structure, human BIEBERE Bl
resources, bed to staff ratio, clinical objectives, practice EHEANEIR - RAH
guidelines and standards; BETE BAEE E
B 16 5| MR
e process — the clinical processes, including whether clinical e RE-BAKEF BEHR
procedures are conducted according to the relevant KRFMEDIZBBARED
specifications, work flow and nosocomial infections; and 7T T’E A2 & B B Rk
Rk
e outcome - patient’s well-being after receiving service, including . ER-BEEXRBEE
efficacy of treatment, recovery progress, health conditions, ?’E B /R BERENN
satisfaction and complications arising from treatments. WAERIE - AN - W
BERAES| AT EIE
The service quality management system has a wide scope. In REEEERERBEREZ - K
addition to monitoring the quality of diagnosis (whether it is accurate, g ?’”“ ErE 2 (.:J/\ i mETE
comprehensive and prompt), the quality of treatment (whether CIRER) EE (/ﬁfm
is it effective, prompt, thorough and of a reasonable duration), Tﬁxﬁl RER ?E&ﬁ&%FﬁAfi)
nosocomial infections control and clinical deficiency (whether E e Rk 2 4 I % B R R BE (2
resulting injuries, harm or pain to patients that could otherwise be HEEE $$ITLAE1‘@ETL
avoided), the system also monitors clinical efficiency, reasonableness TWEE BEHEK 9%) G Z
of medical fees, the input-output relationship of applied medical CRNNEITGIRER  BEER
techniques, systematic services and continuum and community G- Fﬁ@iﬁﬁ SRR AE
feedback. Under this system, each hospital depariment is given HER - RRERBREENER
quantifiable service quality targets to achieve and parameters T\ilﬁ&ﬁ,’é ° EE%‘%"E?T - 1E=
to monitor. Service quality management and improvement is a BRI = EREAEINNF 2R
continuous process. Any deficiency, once identified, will be handled EEEEREE2H - REEE
promptly with appropriate level of supervision. BB RUER —EFENBE -
TG — 48R - g EE
EERAIARERE -
High standard of clinical governance maintains the Group’s inpatient =R ERKEREAS BT
fatality rate consistent with the risks inherent in hospital operations RASLT R E S RITHR
and industry. As the Group increases its intake of patients with critical BRRBRRE B -BELSE
conditions and/or require specialized and complex emergency EMEREEEER AFEE
procedures that carry higher risks of unfavourable clinical outcome, ! H%ﬁ%ﬁ%%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂz
its inpatient fatality rate may increase. The table below sets forth the FI Eq K 45 e EE - EEk
Group’s inpatient fatality rate for the years indicated: WART & _/E‘\i“z? o T #ET
RETRE R AR EE O ER R AL
T
Change 2018 2017
2yHx —E-N\F —tF
Total number of inpatient deaths EFmASLTBE -1.0% 295 298
% of total inpatients HERBABEHNB DL -0.19 b.p. 0.30% 0.49%
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4.3 Patient privacy protection

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated medical records
management department to handle patients’” medical records. The
hospitals strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations in relation
to patient privacy, including Guangdong Province Medical Records
Writing and Management Specifications and Healthcare Institutions
Medical Records Management Rules. The hospitals have stringent
protocols on the creation, maintenance, reviewing and copying,
sealing or unsealing and preservation of patient medical records.
These protocols are also design to ensure that the records are not
accidentally accessed, processed, erased, lost or used without
authorization. Patient medical records are generally kept for 15 years.
Before access to the relevant medical records is granted, patients or
their families will need to produce the original of the patient's identity
documents and a signed consent lefter. The medical administration
department is responsible for overseeing and auditing medical
records management.

The Group also promotes patient privacy awareness among staff
by conducting regular training and sharing sessions. Hospital staff
are sensitive to patient privacy and place additional emphasis
on protecting patient privacy during every aspect of the clinical
processes. Save as required by applicable laws and regulations,
patient information can only be released with consent.

Each of the Group’s hospitals has an information technology
department responsible for reviewing and implementing data
protection measures in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. The hospitals’ resources that store and manage patient
data are physically disconnected from internet access points to
prevent external leakage and tempering activities. The hospitals strictly
adhere to grade three security requirements under the Administrative
Measures for the Graded Protection of Information Security. The
hospitals’ network security, system security and database security are
reviewed from time to time and are comprehensively audited at least
once every year fo ensure the required standards are met.

The hospitals have formulated policies for privacy data administration
which sets out the overall responsibilities and procedures to ensure
that all users adhere to defined standards. The hospitals have
promulgated internal instructions setting out specific procedures
regarding the handling of documents containing patient data. Staff
are also required to observe the hospitals’ internal instructions on
the security of computer systems (including storage, processing,
transmission and management of classified information, data
encryption and physical security of computer systems). Violation of the
above requirements will result in disciplinary actions. The hospitals
provide regular updates and trainings to staff on data protection to
cultivate their data protection awareness. Staff who need to have
access to sensitive data are also required to enter into a confidential
undertaking with respect to any patient data, operational, financial
and other sensitive information that they may come across.

43
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B HEREARS

4.4

The hospitals implement strong access controls to information. The
degree of access and control the staff has to sensitive information
is determined by reference to the relevance to their role, their post
and/or seniority and is reviewed from time to time. Any unnecessary
or obsolete access rights will be revoked immediately. All network
actions are recorded on the systems and continuously monitored for
any irregularity. In the event of an information security breach, such
records will enable the hospitals to carry out detailed investigations
and damage control.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to patient privacy.

Suppliers

The Group’s suppliers primarily consist of agents and distributors of
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and medical equipment.
The Group seeks o manage inventory risks by maintaining adequate
inventories and building strong relationships directly with suppliers.
Suppliers are cautiously selected for quality, reputation, price, product
and service offerings and delivery capability. The Group routinely
assesses its suppliers’ performance, credit-worthiness, re-confirm
their qualifications (such as GMP and/or GSP Certificates, where
appropriate) and ensure the compliance status and quality of the
supplies. The Group undertakes reasonable due diligence of its
suppliers’ qualifications, including:

o suppliers are required to provide all relevant qualification
documents and licenses for inspection;

o the procurement department is responsible for verifying the
genuineness, validity and scope of the qualification documents
and licenses;

J the qualification documents and licenses will be provided
to the relevant departments, including warehouse, medical
equipment department and pharmacy department for the
relevant staff to take note of the source of the supplies and their
qualifications; and

J the suppliers shall promptly produce any updates or changes
to the qualification documents and licenses.
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The Group has adopted a stringent policy that prohibits suppliers
from contacting and offering rebates to doctors to solicit business. If
any supplier is found to be in violation, the Group will immediately
terminate the business relationship. The Group believes that such
practice minimizes the risk of corrupt practices, thereby safeguarding
the quality of the supplies.

The Group has an internal rating system for its suppliers, which can
broadly be classified into:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

excellent suppliers: the Group should increase purchase
volume, and maintain stable relationship with, these suppliers;

mediocre suppliers: the Group should gradually reduce
purchase volume with, and pay closer scrutiny on, these
suppliers; and

poor suppliers: these suppliers are blacklisted and the Group
should no longer purchase from them. These suppliers
typically include those who do not comply with the purchase
agreement, have questionable reputation, always misrepresent
the product price, do not deliver the required quantity at the
required time, deliver supplies with inferior quality, or show no
improvement despite repeated warnings.
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The Group recognizes that purchasing products with reduced
environmental and human health impacts is vital to sustainable
healthcare. The Group is exploring various ways to achieve
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (“EPP), an act of purchasing
products whose environmental impacts have been considered and
found to be less damaging to the environment and human health
when compared to competing products. EPP may be feasible to
achieve overall cost saving and waste reduction while meeting
the needs of patients. The Group has begun its EPP efforts with a
few carefully targeted purchasing changes, and if feasible, will
expand the scope of environmental purchasing to select as many
environmentally sound, healthy and safe products as a hospital can
use. The Group believes that EPP may become an important part of
the process toward sustainable operations. Downstream corrections
of environmental or occupational health issues are generally more
costly — in terms of money, labor, technical complexity, and adverse
publicity — than prevention through EPP. By carefully selecting
products, a hospital may achieve:

o a significant reduction in overall impact on the environment,
cost reduction with lower purchase prices or changes that
reduce or eliminate waste disposal, hazardous waste, and/or
the need for worker safety measures;

o a healthier environment for patients and staff through reduced
exposure to hazardous substance; and

o opportunities for positive publicity and promotion.

Any implementation of EPP is expected to be gradual, and may
require substantial changes to purchasing and clinical configuration
of the hospital. The Group will comprehensively assess the long-term
benefits of EPP, clinical feasibility and business considerations when
making any purchasing changes.
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In addition to the purchase of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment, the Group also relies on various vendors
for engineering and renovation services at the hospital premises
from time to time. The Group uses its best efforts to ensure that these
vendors are properly qualified and will take all appropriate measures
to protect the environment both inside and outside the work site
and limit harmful effects to the public and property due to wastes,
pollution, noise and other nuisances caused by the engineering work.
These vendors are expected fo satisfy the applicable requirements
under the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC and provide the workers with adequate social security and
benefits under the relevant laws. The Group pays close attention
on the engineering work and may from time to time engage third-
party supervision to ensure that the engineering work meets the
applicable national engineering specifications and standards and
environmental protection.

Anti-bribery and corruption risks

The PRC government has recently enhanced its anti-bribery efforts to
prevent improper payments and other benefits received by doctors,
staff and hospital administrators in connection with the procurement
of pharmaceutical and medical supplies and the provision of
healthcare services. In addition, Grade A Class lIl hospitals in the PRC,
such as the Group’s Kanghua Hospital, are subject to particularly
stringent requirements, including as part of the criteria for such
ratings, requiring all such hospitals to (i) implement internal controls
and risk management measures addressing bribery and corruption
risks; and (i) undergo annual inspections from relevant regulatory
authorities as to their anti-bribery and corruption status. The Group
has implemented the following policies and procedures to address
potential bribery and corruption incidents:

o an anti-bribery function at the Group level led by the chief
financial officer of the Company. This function is in charge
of developing the overall framework of anti-bribery and
corruption policies and procedures and providing guidance
and supervision towards implementing them across every
aspect of the Group’s operations. Each of the Group’s hospitals
will immediately report any suspected incidents of bribery and
corruption to the chief financial officer of the Company, who
will then carry out any further investigations if necessary and
determine the appropriate course of action. From time to time,
the Group provides training fo its staff and updates on recent
anti-bribery and corruption issues and practices as they arise;
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the Group has in place a robust whistle blower programme
accessible by staff and business partners, including a
dedicated hotline and an email address, to receive reports of
alleged corruption on a no repercussion basis, with the option
of anonymity. The Group has established a zero-tolerance
policy towards staff accepting any form of bribes. Such policy is
included in the staff handbook and code of conduct. Any of the
staff found in breach of anti-bribery and corruption policy will
be dismissed. The Group also takes appropriate measures to
discourage patients from offering any form of payment or gift
to staff for better or priority services, including displaying the
relevant policies and laws in prominent places in the hospital
premises;

the Group has close oversight over every aspect of the
procurement processes. The Group has established a
systematic multi-tier approval process involving various
departments, dedicated governance committees and
management for different categories of procurement. The
procurement processes are segregated and no particular
individual or department has excessive authority, control
or influence, thereby minimising the risk of corruption or
abuse. Before engaging in any business relationship with
a new supplier, the Group conducts due diligence to obtain
reasonable understanding of its background and its connection
with the Group, including how such supplier was referred to
the Group in the first place. The Group requires its suppliers to
agree fo anti-bribery and corruption provisions in the supply
agreements. In particular, suppliers are prohibited from
soliciting business with the hospital staff directly. Any violation
will result in the Group’s immediate business termination with
such suppliers; and

as part of the Group’s key clinical governance, the
Pharmaceutical Administration and Therapeutics Committee at
each of the Group’s hospitals regularly reviews drug prescription
patterns. Any unreasonable or inexplicable irregularities or red
flags indicative of a deliberate attempt to substantially increase
the prescription of certain drugs will be promptly reported and
investigated.
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In line with requirements under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Group has established a strict “no red packet policy” for medical
professionals not to personally accept any form of payment or
advantages from patients in return for more favourable treatments.
The Group requires all healthcare professionals to report to
management of all instances of red packets offered by patients.
The table below sets forth the number and monetary amount of
red packets rejected by the healthcare professionals for the years

RIR - HSERERBRS

RIBER T AR SOERARE
AEED SERMANBEHABGIE
B [ERABBEK] - TR
THERBE RBREE BB FAE
SR EAAI SR RS AT BR ©
AEBREMBEBBABARE
BERSBERTEAEZNH—IFB
e TREIIFREERMER

indicated: ABERNABEE RS :
Change 2018 2017
B E) —E-N\F —E—tF
Number of red packets rejected ERABEE -23.7% 171 224
Total monetary amount involved P54 & 58
(RMB) (AR¥TT) -11.8% 138,993 157,650

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery and corruption.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMMES

As encompassed in the motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(B HE RS o E1EE 5, the Group regards social contribution as one
of its core values. The Group prides itself on being a socially responsible
private hospital operator. The Group demonstrates its commitment to
community service through organized and sustainable community benefit
programmes primarily providing: (i) free and discounted care to those
unable to afford healthcare; and (i) services or education designed to
improve community health and increase access to healthcare. These
programmes are purposely designed to create meaningful impact by
responding to identified community needs, as opposed to being random
acts of kindness.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive framework for planning,
delivering and reporting its community benefit efforts, including the
following elements:

o sustainable infrastructure — the Groups has fostered a culture that
supports its community benefit initiatives and has in place operational
elements that sustain the community benefit programmes, such
as clinical resources, staff, budget and supporting policies and
procedures;

° plan for community benefit — through regular communication
with public health organizations and the community, the Group
continuously assesses and prioritizes community health needs and
develops community benefit programmes accordingly;
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° account for community benefit — the Group has established effective
administrative and accounting processes to account for and report
community benefit to its stakeholders; and

° evaluate community benefit programmes — the Group assesses the
quality, effectiveness and impact of the relevant programmes and
activities.

In 2018, the Group organized numerous volunteer programmes and free
clinics, with a focus primarily on children and elderly people with limited
health awareness and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare.
The free clinics also penetrated remote areas where basic healthcare
resources are scarce. The table below sets forth certain data of the Relevant
Operations community benefit efforts for the years indicated:

s HEBIME-AKECHER
HHERRBERF  HHEKFHD
FRRAUREFELRENEE
&

o BT BTG — A E T
AR EDNEE HRR
-

“E-N\F AEEABARELTEE
HARRE®D E%ﬁ%m&ﬁﬁ
BRER/RBAZTXINEENE

BRBEXEABERBIENZELE
E-REBGO2NRAAELRBRERE
ZHREILE - TR BRAEELESR

BERENTFEMRAREREN T

B A T8 -
Change 2018 2017
e —E-N\F —+4F
Volunteer activities SHEHETEY
Number of volunteer activities = LEEIRE +31.1% 21 161
Number of staff participants 288 T AKX +300.7% 1,635 408
Total number of volunteer man-hours DEE TEE)A BRFE +17.7% 2,919 2,481
Free clinics REBED
Number of free clinics RERDRE +35.2% 307 227
Number of staff participants S2HET AR +104.8% 688 336
Estimated number of patients served FTBRTS B (Rt AR +90.3% 18,245 9,590
Total number of free clinic man-hours RBELHEIK +93.8% 2,099 1,083
Total amount of compensation provided MZHEGEEESZLHE T
to staff for parficipating in free Rt esE
clinics (RMB) (AR%T) +700.0% 22,400 2,800
The general increase in all aspects of volunteer activities and free clinics Fﬁﬁxﬁﬁ WERETSREEMD

was primarily attributable to the inclusion of the Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group and the Group’s ongoing efforts in the
promotion of the “Kanghua” brand through these channels.
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RIR - HSERERBRS

THE STOCK EXCHANGE'S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ERXFTCORIR B RERMERES)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ﬁq AR5
A.  Environmental A IRIR
KPI
BRENR
ER
Aspect Al: Emissions
EBEA: BERY
Types of emissions and respective The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of All
emissions data greenhouse gas emission Al.2
HERU & 2R I AR B BE R BUR AR EEBNBEEE W IR ERBEEM
BBARKIR
Greenhouse gas emission in total
mE R BB AT E
Total hazardous and non-hazardous Wastewaters produced: 293,463 tons (2017: 326,587 tons) Al3
waste produced and intensity FrEEAEFEIK 1 293,463 M8 (=& —+4F : 326,587 MA) Al4
FTEXBEERBEEZEEYHRENZE  Hazardous solid wastes produced: 540,103kg (2017:
427,343kg)
FRELXAEREREEEREY : 540103 2T
(ZZ—+4F : 427,343 2fT)
Domestic wastes produced: 2,399,950kg (2017: 1,920,000kg)
PREESERREEY ¢ 2,399,950 A fr
T — 4 : 1,920,000 A7)
Measures to mitigate emissions and The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al5
results achieved greenhouse gas emission
AR HE TR 2 B0 1R e S PTG AR BRAKEEBNBEEE W IR ERBEEM
BBARKIR
BREERERHOBRARF T 2018
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KPI
BESRAN
BE
Description of how hazardous and Handlling Al6
non-hazardous wastes are handled, [ T2
reduction initiatives and results Wasterwaters and hazardous solid wastes: handled by
achieved qualified contractors licensed by environmental authorities
MIREBEEREZERZRYN L BRKEAEZEBERY  dERRMPAFAINEER
W E L BN NATSKR B R BRI

Domestic wastes: handled by eligible contractors through
tendering

HEEREY  mT RN BEAERHEE

Reduction initiatives

AR EE 4 2 B i

Domestic wastes: segregation and recycling; promoting
staff awareness and paper-less office initiatives; reuse of
components in decommissioned equipment and furniture
EEBREY  pBREK RS EIERREAHRA
Hit  BEENARERELEENANT

Wastewaters and hazardous wastes: production of these
wastes is integral to clinical activities and maintaining a high
clinical standard and environment sanitation. The Group
currently considers it is not feasible to excessively reduce the
production of these wastes without compromising clinical
standards, which are of overriding importance
BKREEERY  ET2EIEVESELERY
BPRFRERRERBRRHERE - AEEB AR
RBERLZEBEREMEES TR D EEET -
MLBEREEZREE - BURPEE N ERITT
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HE

KPI
BRAN
BE
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Electricity: 34,069,473 kw/hr (2017: 29,733,765 kw/hr) A2.1
by type B : 34,069,473 F R (ZZ— 14 : 29,733,765 T FLAF)
REAEDMERE R KHEEERE
£
Water consumption in total Water consumption: 731,808 tons (2017: 688,282 tons) A2.2
miEKE FEKE ¢ 731,808 (=T —+4F : 688,28211F)
Energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Efficiency improving initiatives A2.3
achieved K teH 512 A2.4

RER(E F Az st &) AT 1S AR

Use of energy efficient light source, water heating, air-
conditioning and equipment; staff awareness; regular audit
of energy usage and inspection of energy demanding
processes
FREREONNR KE ERALRZE RS EIEH:
FHEZERER KT RFREF

Results achieved

VREI S

Energy consumption per gross floor area was decreased
by 8.1% despite 18% growth in revenue and strong business
growth primarily because of the relatively low consumption
per gross floor area of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
and the Anhui Hualin Group
EIEHEEENRERES RN 81%  MikamER18% ¥
BIEERY 2RO ME RS &2 HER
SEAEEEEESEEBRIEMEK

The Group will continue to monitor the effectiveness of the
initiatives on a long term basis

ARER B AR R B B PR AT B RO BUR
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KPI
BR

Water efficiency improving initiatives and  Efficiency improving initiatives
results achieved HasteH a1 2l

RARKM S RAEKR Leak detection and repair; use of efficient and low flow
plumbing fixtures; motion sensor-activated faucets and flow
control, waterless medical vacuum pumps; use full loads in
sanitizers, sterilisers and laundry washing machines
BRRAIREE ERER BEREEEEE B
FEKBEER KM 8L T - BREKEZER  EmE T
FHEES  RE S RERHE

Results achieved

ViRE S

The increase in water consumption was primarily
attributable to the inclusion of the operations of Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui Hualin Group in
2018. The Group will continue to monitor the effectiveness of
the initiatives on a long ferm basis

KREHFEEN  FBEA-_Z— N\FENBEHLOMLE
BERRTREREENSEEBIR - AR EGES
B AT BB BOAK

Total packaging material used for finished  The Relevant Operations do not involve significant use of A2.5
products packaging materials
HXmAABEMBNES AEENBBAREEBE N RAREEABEME

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : BIERRXRER

The significant impacts of activities on the  The Relevant Operations had no significant impact on the A3.1
environment and natural resources environment and natural resources during 2018
and the actions taken to manage them  BEKEEBR T — \FHIRB I RAERITES
EBEHHRBERRARERNEAY AXE
ZREHDEEEHETYENTH
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Social B. &
KPI
Employment and Labour Practices BRER
EBREREIER Bz
Aspect B1: Employment
BB : EfE
Total workforce by gender, employment  As of 31 December 2018: B1.1
type, age group and geographical HE_Z-)/\F+ZA=+—8:
region
RIER - BIEEE - FEE R RiE  Total of number of staff of the Group: 3,469 including 750
ZrmEE B staff of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and the Anhui
Hualin Group acquired in 2018 (2017: 2,476)
REENETHEE 3469 A (BERZZE—N\FWRE
R B O M B R B B R e B R R B 2B B T 750 A)
T —tF:2476 N)
— by nature of work
—RIEMLEE S
Doctors: 791(2017: 696)
BATNA(ZZE—LF 69 A)
Other medical, administrative and support staff: 2,678
(2017:1,780)
Hib BB - TR EET - 2,678 A
“ZT—tF:1780A)
— by gender
—RMRIE 5
Male: 1,001 (2017: 748)
S 1000 A(ZF—+5F 748 A)
Female: 2,468 (2017:1,728)
i 2,468 A(ZZT—+H4F 1728 A)
Employee attrition rate Attrition rate: 5.0% (2017: 21.6%) B1.2

EE MK = TR 1 50% (=T —+4F 1 21.6%)
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KPI

Employment and Labour Practices BREN
BEREIER g
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2: BEREZE
Relating to providing a safe working In 2018: B2

environment and protecting employees =% — )\ 4 :

from occupational hazards Number of staff contracting infections due to occupation: 23
FERRZ2TERRELRERER (2017:17)

RBEMEE R EEBRLANETIHE : 2A(ZF—EF :17A)

Number of staff deaths: 0 (2017: 0)
ETHTHE :OA(ZE—HF :0A)

Number of staff disabilities due to occupation: 0 (2017: 0)
ABERENEIHE OA(ZE—LEF :0A)

Number of man-days lost due to occupation related injuries

orillness: 27 (2017: 18)

FBERASENRRERNTERIRE - 27K
“E—LF18K)

Health and safety measures adopted:
ERANREER 2HEM

Regular audit and inspection of operating premises;
EHEZ IR E R LR

proactive risk reporting culture among staff;
EEIREKEIBHRENE

continuous learning from health and safety incidents and
improvement of processes;
FEURFEREZSERTEFLRILERF
regular staff health and exposure assessment;

E AT B TR R M Ak ATl

provision of adequate protective gears;
RERHNHER

third party inspection and assessment; and
F=TRERE X

adequate support to handle incidents of medical violence

BTRAXKIAREBREZNEMH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HSERERBRS

KPI
Employment and Labour Practices BREN
EBRERE TER BE
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : #ERIEII
Policies on improving employees’ In 2018: B3
knowledge and skills for discharging —E-N\F:
duties at work Number of participants in training and development
BERAREERITILEBEMNAMZE  programmes: 28,145 (2017: 21,450)
RREH R 2 RERBENE T AR 28145 A
T —+F : 21,450 A)
Total number of training man-hours: 355,162 (2017: 200,484)
B4R TR - 355,162/ N (ZF —+4F : 200,484 /)
Description of training activities The Group has a comprehensive Continuing Education and
g FIE ) Training Management Policy
AEERBIHNEBHE EIIERHE
Training activities include training on clinical skills; nursing
and patient caretaking skills; and comprehensive training on
staff management capability, cultural values and technical
skills
BB BIEERIR AL - EIE A A B ERKRERIF
URHETERES - XEEERRIMREHN 2 S
Bl
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEBA : BT XA
Employment practices to avoid child and  The Group stringently complies with all national and local B4.1
forced labour laws, including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor
By -2 T sk g il 85 T e B S & I Confract Law of the PRC;
REBBRBET - YBERIMTERE  BE(PEAR
HAEBEE) R(PEAREMBLEERE)
The Group conducts background checks and reasonable
due diligence on job applicants; and
AEEUBURZAETERHAERAERZRES
P54
labour unions are established to protect the rights and
interests of staff
R T & LAMRIE B THF R A&
Steps taken to eliminate such practices During 2018, the Group had no non-compliance in this B4.2

when discovered
FERER B EREBB AT
BXH) 2 B%

respect
RZZE—)\F AEEYELTENTARER

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIE  HEBRERRE

KPI
Employment and Labour Practices BREN
BERE TER EE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : HEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and  The Relevant Operations do not have a supply chain business  B5

social risks of the supply chain FRREEBI BB EHERER
EEHEENIRE R ERBEE It has a stringent criferia in selecting suppliers and conducts

reasonable due diligence to ensure that its suppliers are
appropriately qualified and licensed
HEMEHER T ORERBRELETAERBE
EURERHEERREAEE N ER M ER

The Group will continuously assess the feasibility of
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (EPP)
AN B S E AT A [ BRRERES L (EPPI BV AT 1T 1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEBs : EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable to the Relevant Operations B6.1
shipped subiject to recalls for safety and i@ FA A B B8 48 & % 75
health reasons

BEERCEXEMEHTRL 2 HEZ
FEEaMARNKNE DL

Number of products and service related  In 2018: B6.2
complaints received and how they are =% — )\ 4 :
dealt with Number of critical complains: 33 (2017: 34)
EEBRERMBRBHRFEE AL BERFEE BR(ZF—LF : 34K)
Y T3

Number of regular complaints: 188 (2017: 108)
—RIRFEE 188K (=T —+4F 108 K)

Number of immaterial complaints: 315 (2017: 467)
FEZRFHE - 3N5R(ZT—+HF : 467R)

The Group’s hospitals have a comprehensive complaint
management system. In 2018, most of the complaints were
resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes.
REBNBERRAZENRFERRS - —T— \F
REBDIRFEENRE  EELEABRBBERENL -

Practices relating to observing and The Relevant Operations do not involve a significant degree B6.3
protecting intellectual property rights of infellectual property rights
B NRENBEEAREAIED BRAKERBLEY RERRE B BERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BiE - HEREA

Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER

KPI

BASRAE

ER

HE

Quality assurance process and recall
procedures

EEREBIENLERDWERF

Consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

HEEERRE RSB - AR
BT RERITE -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EHEB7 : RESS

Policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering

BRA LA - B - EFROARE
MERREBTHETABEARE
HARBEAE KA

The Group has a comprehensive service quality B6.4
management system consisting of structure, process and
outcome. It has a wide scope covering every aspect of
operations. Dedicated customer service department collects
and gauges patient feedback and ensures that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and
responsive communication.

AEBRABIERE BFIMEREANZERBE
EEERG HBEERER RELENSEIE -ZEER
BEFPREAFMENRGFERERE  YEBTHHE
REmBBEREES RIFER-

Patient medical records are kept in strict compliance with B6.5
applicable laws and regulations. The Group has stringent

protocols on accessing these records. The medical

administration department is responsible for overseeing

and auditing medical records management.
BEBELHDBRBETERERERARRE - K&
EREERZELHENBRBRIE BBEHEEERR
ERBELHRER -

The Group’s hospitals maintain a certain level of information
security infrastructure and implement strong access controls
to information. Regular audits on the infrastructure are
carried out to ensure relevant standards are met.

AEEBRGERF - TRENEELE2ERRENL B
HEDREROBRES - BeHERREETERE
AR & 1B RIIRSE -

Staff are trained to be vigilant and sensitive about patient
privacy. Policies and guidelines are implemented to create
working processes that safeguard patient privacy.
BTERIIEHBERLRFESG NG - EEMEEK
% ARSI AR IRIE BB RBALE TIERAR ©

Policies and procedures include: B7
° anti-bribery function at Group level;

o whistle blower programmes;

o close oversight over procurement processes;
° drug prescription patterns; and

° no red packet policy

R RE T B -

. REEEERIHEREREE

BRHIE

) B SRR R AR

BEYEATRA Rk

FERABHEK

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIE  HEBRERRE

KPI
Employment and Labour Practices BREN
BRERZIER BE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : tBRE
Focus areas of contribution In 2018, the Group organized numerous volunteer B8.1
HXE R programmes and free clinics, with a focus primarily on
children and elderly people with limited health awareness
and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare.
The free clinics also penetrated remote areas where basic
healthcare resources are scarce.
—E-N\F AEEEBZREIRELR2ESD
EEPREREBAER,HBURGAEERE
HWEBERENRENZA - RBEGFLTTRADNERE
BERMRORELR -
Resources confributed In 2018: B8.2

FrEn &R —E-N\F:
Number of volunteer man-hours: 2,919 (2017: 2,481)
SHIE TIEE) A BRFE 1 2,919/
ZE—tF : 2,481/0HF)

Number of free clinic man-hours: 2,099 (2017: 1,083)
SRESLTHEEAE 2,099/ (ZZ—+4F : 1,083/ \8F)

Total amount of compensation provided to staff for
participating in free clinics: RMB22,400 (2017: RMB2,800)
m2ELEELMNE TIRHMBMARE : AR 22,400
T(ZE—tF: AR%28007T)

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Junyang, aged 36, is an executive Director and chairman of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operation and
strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wang has approximately 12 years of industry and
management experience, and is familiar with modern enterprise management,
capital operations and marketing. Mr. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in August
2007 and has held various positions since then, including assistant to general
manager responsible for hospital operations from August 2007 to July 2009,
manager of the business department responsible for business development
from August 2009 to November 2012 and vice general manager of the business
department responsible for business management and overall strategic
development of the hospital since December 2012. Mr. Wang has also served as
director and general manager responsible for business management and overall
strategic development of Kanghua Group since August 2007 and Xingye Group
since December 2008. Mr. Wang has served on the fourth council of Dongguan
City Houjie Chamber of Commerce (REEMEHHEFMUEEEEE F) since
December 2009. In 2012, Mr. Wang served as the president of the fifth council of
Dongguan Young Entrepreneurs Association (RZEM B F XX H L E AR

22 &) InJune 2014, Mr. Wang was awarded Outstanding Young Dongguan
Businessman ({855 & 527 ) by the World Dongguan Entrepreneurs Convention
Organising Committee (1 R EEf A E 4 Z B €). Mr. Wang is a member of
the Wang Family and is the cousin of Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon and nephew of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin.

Mr. CHEN Wangzhi, aged 48, is an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is primarily responsible for the overall hospital
operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
executive Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Chen has over 12 years of experience
in the healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the chairman responsible for hospital operations and development.
Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established
as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served as the chairman
and general manager responsible for hospital operations and development. He
was principally responsible for supervising the construction and development of
Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital from which he had gained extensive
experience in hospital management and development. Under the leadership
of Mr. Chen, Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital have developed a
management style reflective of the values and characteristics of the “Kanghua”
brand and obtained many prestigious accreditations and recognitions. Mr. Chen
obtained an executive master's degree in business administration (5 2% & 12
A B T &) from Sun Yat-sen University (A [L| KX 2 in December 2014. Mr.
Chen is a member of the Wang Family and is uncle-in-law of Mr. Wang Junyung
and spouse of Ms. Wang Aigin.

2 EEkeREEE

5=
HITES
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEkeREEE

Mr. WONG Wai Hung Simon, aged 30, is an executive Director and vice chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operations
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wong was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wong has approximately 8 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Kanghua Hospital in July 2010 and
has since served various roles, including assistant to chairman responsible for
implementing and executing chairman’s decisions from July 2010 to April 2012,
manager of the finance department responsible for the overall supervision of
the financial affairs of the hospital from May 2012 to June 2013, and vice general
manager of the business department responsible for hospital administration
management since July 2013. Mr. Wong actively participates in the business
communities in Dongguan. He has served as the vice chairman of the Hong Kong
Houjie Clansmen Association (7 # & 47 [E 48 & ) since January 2016. Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor's degree in management from the California State University,
Northridge in December 2010. Mr. Wong is a member of the Wang Family and
is the cousin of Mr. Wang Junyung and nephew of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms.
Wang Aigin.

Ms. WANG Aiqgin, aged 48, is an executive Director. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the overall financial management and capital investment of the
Group. Ms. Wang has approximately 21 years of group management experience,
in particular group financial management. Ms. Wang joined Renkang Hospital
in August 2005 when it was established as a limited liability company in the
PRC and has since served as a supervisor and a vice general manager of the
finance department responsible for financial management. Ms. Wang joined
Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established as a limited
liability company in the PRC and has since served as a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. She was also
substantially involved in the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital
and Renkang Hospital. Ms. Wang has also served as a director and vice general
manager of Kanghua Group since June 2002 and Xingye Group since June 1997,
and has obtained significant experience in implementing and executing group
control systems in financial management, human resources management, risk
management, audit management and cultural management. Ms. Wang is a
member of the Wang Family and is the aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Wong
Wai Hung Simon, and spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. LV Yubo, aged 68, is a non-executive Director. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing the corporate development and strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Lv joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. Lv has more than 42 years of extensive experience in
hospital management. Since October 1974, Mr. Lv has played an instrumental
role in the development of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (/& H & # Bz ), which has now become one of the largest hospitals
of traditional Chinese medicine in the PRC. Mr. Lv is currently a lifetime honorary
director (4% & % 2% &) of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine. Before such appointment, Mr. Lv had served numerous managerial
roles at Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine, including
vice director (&l fz &) and director (% & ). Mr. Lv has served in a number of
healthcare associations in the PRC, including deputy chairman (&] & &) of the
China Hospital Association (# Bl 22 %€ ) since February 2006, chairman (& &)
of the Guangdong Provincial Association of Chinese Medicine (/& 3 & /1 &2 &
2 &) since August 2010 and chairman (F E Z &) of the Chinese I\Aedicine
Hospital Division of the China Hospital Association (71 E8 &8 f 17 & h 52 52
&) since August 2015. Mr. Lv is well regarded in the medical profession in the
PRC and has received numerous awards, including Outstanding Contribution
to Chinese Hospitals (# [ & f 22 tH & [&t) from the China Hospital Association
(Bl B BT =) in 2006, No’ﬂonol Outstanding Director of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital (& B /% & Fﬂ: TE% B &) from the China Association of Chinese
Medicine (7 = 1 B %% 22 @) in September 2007, Outstanding Management
Personnel ({5 & 12 A ZL) from the China Association of Chinese Medicine
(FREErp B8 BEEA @) in 2014 and the First Class Sci-Tech Advancement Award of
Guangdong Province (& 5 & £ 5 4 #F — 55 #%) from the People’s Government
of Guangdong Province (& B 4 A REF) in 2015. Mr. Lv graduated from
Guangdong Provincial University of Continuing Technology Education (& 5
% & B 5L K 2) in July 1981 maijoring in English, and Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College (& 3R & £ 7 & 12 # & 226 ) in July 1988 majoring
in organisation management (42 4% & 32 ). Mr. Lv obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration (= 4% & X A 8 T 7 & ) from Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-sen University (9 IJJK 25 2B7) in December
2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEkeREEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Ming Lai, aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. Yeung has approximately
34 years of hospital operation experience, particularly in financial management,
personnel management, human relations and marketing. He dedicated much
of his career fo the Adventist Hospitals in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung started as an
assistant accountant at Hong Kong Adventist Hospital (& 7% & % & Bt ) in July
1968. He became the vice president for finance of Hong Kong Adventist Hospital
in April 1977. He left Hong Kong in October 1979 to pursue advanced training
in hospital administration under sponsorship from the Hong Kong Adventist
Hospital. Mr. Yeung had also served as an administrative residency at hospital
administration at the Kettering Medical Center in Kettering, Ohio, the United States
from March 1981 to March 1982. He returned to Hong Kong and became senior
vice president of both Hong Kong Adventist Hospital and Tsuen Wan Adventist
Hospital (25775 22 % Bt ) in April 1982. Shortly after, Mr. Yeung was appointed
as president of Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital in July 1983. Under the leadership
of Mr. Yeung, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital developed into a modern healthcare
institution providing advanced multi-disciplinary healthcare services. He left the
hospital in April 1992 and later emigrated to Canada to pursue other interests. Mr.
Yeung returned to Hong Kong and had served as president and chief executive
officer of both Adventist Hospitals from January 2006 to December 2015. Mr.
Yeung left his positions at both Adventist Hospitals in December 2015.

Mr. Yeung obtained a diploma in business administration from the South China
Union College in Hong Kong in June 1979 and a master's degree in hospital
administration from Loma Linda University in California, the United States in March
1982. In recognition of his remarkable contributions to the Adventist Hospitals in
Hong Kong, the Adventist University of Philippines bestowed a doctorate degree
in humanities upon Mr. Yeung in March 2009.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Dr. CHEN Keji, aged 88, is an independent non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Dr. Chen joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Dr. Chen is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC
with over 62 years of experience in the medical industry. Dr. Chen has played
a pivotal role in the development of the Xiyuan Hospital of China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences (7 B /1 & %} 2 [ 75 5 2 [T ), where he currently
serves as chief researcher (& & #ff %t 8 ) and the lifetime researcher (£% &
#1958 of the China Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine (B8 Fh & Fff 95
B ). Dr. Chen has worked atf the Chinese Medical Science Xiyuan Hospital (#
T} 2Bt 78 58 28 B2 ) since April 1956, and has served various roles, including
resident doctor ({¥ P B2 £f1), attending doctor (=34 B2 ifi), associate chief doctor
(SIE{FEED), associate researcher (&I 5T & ), depariment head (%= E 1F),
chief doctor (= £ B A1), researcher (% 9t & ), tutor for doctor of philosophy
students (18 &= 4 & A ) and vice director (&IFT & ). Dr. Chen has made significant
contributions to the medical profession in the PRC. He was elected as the fellow
of Chinese Academy of Sciences (H B 1t 2B Bt 1) in 1991. He received the First
Lifu Academic Award (88 — & 37 2K A %2 % 22 i 4%) for Chinese Medicine from
the Lifu Medical Research Foundation (37 % B8 B8 9T 3L € &) in Taiwan in
1994. He was awarded the Wu Jieping Medicine Prize (12 f - &8 £2 #%) by the
Wujieping Medicine Prize Committee (R [ F %8 £ ¥ & & 8 &) in 2009. He
received a First Class National Science and Technology Progress Award (B4 ZR %}
B 45 88— F 88 from the State Council (BI756%) in 2004. He also received an
honorary doctorate of science from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2004, and an
honorary doctorate of medicine (&8 2 1# 1) from the Macau University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He received a Lifetime Achievement Award (£% & ik 5t £2)
from the China Association of Chinese Medicine (7 %/ 88 ZXE2 &) in 2014 for
his contribution to the academic development of TCM. He became the honorary
president (4 2 & &) of the Hong Kong Association for Integration of Chinese-
Western Medicine (& & /1 78 2 45 & B AT 2 ) in 2009, the honorary academic
advisor (%% 2 2 1f7 5 &) of the Hong Kong Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (& /& /& £ &) in 2011, and the director of the academic committee
(E1i7Z& 8 & = £) of the State Key Laboratories of Quality Research in Chinese
Medicines (F 425 S5 BIR EEE 5 =) of the University of Macau (JBFIARE)
and the Macau University of Science and Technology (2 F9 &l 5 K £ in 2011
and the honorary president (% 2 & &) of the Chinese Association of Integrative
Medicine (77 B & 75 & 45 4 2 ) in 2015. Dr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Medical University (122K ) (formerly Fujian Medical College (1@ 228223 )
in July 1954, majoring in medicine (& & % ).
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Mr. CHAN Sing Nun, aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Chan was appointed as a Director in December 2015; his
appointment as independent non-executive Director was officially confirmed
in June 2016. Mr. Chan has approximately 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Chan was a
senior audit associate at K.L. Wong & Co., an audit firm. Since January 2003, Mr.
Chan has been the financial manager of Brandwell Limited, a consulting services
company. Since September 2009, Mr. Chan has been the audit principal of Qing
Lan C.P.A. Limited, mainly responsible for audit planning and supervision, internal
control assessment, tax advisory, corporate secretarial services and business
development. Mr. Chan has served as an independent non-executive director
of Differ Group Holding Company Limited (a company formerly listed on the
GEM board with stock code 8056 and currently listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 6878) since November 2013, and
Fameglow Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8603) as an independent non-executive
director since September 2018. Mr. Chan also is the director of A2Z Hotel
Equipment Limited, a company that is principally engaged in tableware trading.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in 1998,
and obtained a higher diploma in professional accounting.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Shaoming, aged 40, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. He
is primarily responsible for supervising the daily operations and management of
the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in September 2005 and was appointed as
our Supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory committee in December 2015.
Mr. Chen has more than 12 years of financial management experience in the
healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when
it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served
various roles, including manager of the finance department from September
2005 to April 2007, financial controller of the finance department from May 2007
to December 2013 and supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Chen participated in
the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital from which he gained
valuable hospital management experience. Mr. Chen has also served as a
supervisor of Dongguan Houjie Huaye Village Bank (5 5t [Z 7 2 2 A $H 4R 17)
since March 2012 and a financial controller of the finance department of Kanghua
Group since November 2012. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangdong Economic
Management College (& 5 & £ % & 12 # &0 2 F7) and obtained a diploma in
accounting in July 2003.
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Mr. Yue Chunyang, aged 44, is a supervisor and is currently the general
manager of Kanghua Hospital primarily responsible for managing its overall
information technology system, administrative and ancillary functions. Mr. Yue
Chunyang has approximately 15 years of hospital management experience. Mr.
Yue joined the Group in February 2003 and participated in the establishment of
Kanghua Hospital. Since the commencement of operations of Kanghua Hospital
in November 2006, he has assumed various managerial roles at Kanghua
Hospital primarily to develop and manage its information technology system,
administrative and ancillary functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yue had
gained his industry experience from Qintai General Labour Union Computer
School (2 & # T &z E # &%) in Lushan County of Henan Province (/7] F
H B L8 as a teacher from August 1997 to October 1999, and Lushan County
Communication Administration (% Il § & 15 /S as a staff member from July
1999 to January 2003. Mr. Yue graduated from Zhengzhou University (Z5 1| X £2)
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science and technology in August
1997.

Mr. WANG Shaofeng, aged 35, is a Supervisor. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the daily operations and management of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in October 2006 and was appointed as our Supervisor and employee
representative of the Supervisory Committee in December 2015. Mr. Wang
has approximately 11 years of human resources experience in the healthcare
industry. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in October 2006. From October
2006 to February 2007, Mr. Wang worked at Renkang Hospital as a network
engineer in the information department. From March 2007 to August 2007, Mr.
Wang was seconded to Kanghua Hospital to receive on-the-job training in the
procurement department and the human resources department. In September
2007, Mr. Wang became formally employed by Kanghua Hospital and has since
served as head of the human resources department responsible for recruitment,
payroll, performance, training and employee relations. Mr. Wang graduated
from Dongguan University of Technology (5 52 2 T £ B ) with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science and technology in June 2006. In August 2018, Mr.
Wong acquired the occupational qualification of Enterprises Human Resource
Management (Second Level), awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. TIAN Kege, aged 64, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Tian has more than 27 years of experience in the
medical industry. Dr. Tian joined Kanghua Hospital in January 2008 and headed
the development of its O&G practice, in particular endoscopic techniques,
minimally invasive procedures, standardised treatment of malignant tumours,
management of high-risk pregnancies and newborn deliveries and reproductive
medicine. Dr. Tian currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and the
head of the O&G Medical Center of Kanghua Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from May 1991 to January 2008, Dr. Tian had worked at the 301 Military Hospital
(301 E£P5% ) as an attending doctor (F A EERT ), associate chief doctor ( & EEE M)
and chief doctor (3 E & i) with a focus on O&G practice. Dr. Tian has made
significant contributions to the development of O&G practice in the PRC. She was
awarded two Third Class Prizes for outstanding contributions in medical care
(B8 T 4t ) B B = 55 %) by the 301 Military Hospital in 1993 for successfully
rescuing a patient from HELLP syndrome with multiple organ failure (HELLP's
A ED I 2 R B AL = e — PR AKX 1)) and resuscitating 37 newborns
with asphyxia (¥7 4 52 & S 18 % X 2 37 1), respectively. She was also
appointed as an expert in health science ({i £ 1 & % %) by the Guangdong
Provincial Health Education Centre (& 5 & @ BZ (B # ) in May 2015. She was
awarded as “Heroic and Excellent Doctor in Southern Guangdong” (& £ 1 i8]
47 B2 ) by the Guangdong Provincial Female Doctors Association (& 54 % 58
Bl 1% &) in 2015. Dr. Tian graduated from the Second Military Medical University
(55 — % % K 2) and obtained a bachelor's degree in medicine in August 1983,
and a master's degree in medicine in July 1998. She obtained the chief doctor
qualification in O&G in September 2005.

Dr. JIA Guoliang, aged 75, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company
since June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Jia is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC with more
than 49 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua Hospital
in March 2008 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and
the head of the Cardiovascular Center. Before joining the Group, from August
1968 to December 1974, Dr. Jia had worked at the Xinjiang Military Region Sixth
Division Hospital (#7352 % [& /<A 2 ) as a military surgeon. From January 1975
to October 2005, Dr. Jia had worked at the First Affiliated Hospital of the Fourth
Military Medical University (55 71 % & X2 & —F7) as an attending physician
in cardiology (/0» A £} == 54 & £ ), associate director (&l & £ and director (3
), where he undertook clinical, teaching and operational responsibilities.
From October 2005 to February 2008, Dr. Jia had worked at the Cardiovascular
Hospital of Xi An No. 1 Hospital as a director (Ft £ ). Dr. Jia has made substantial
contributions to cardiovascular healthcare, particularly in military medicine,
in the PRC. He has served as a committee member of numerous medical
associations and editorial board of medical journals. In addition to a Third Class
Prize in Technology Improvement ( = % &} % 3 4 #%) awarded by the National
Commission for Scientific and Technological Research (B R BRI 2K fl1 & B &)
in December 1996, Dr. Jia had received more than 18 awards from the General
Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army (7R Bl A R £ 7 E
421% ) =) for the contribution of his research projects in military medicine (X
£ £). Dr. Jia received a Life-time Award in Inferventional Cardiology in the PRC
(7R B A A D B2 4% A BR Bk 28) and a Distinctive Contribution Award (4 51l
& Bt #%) from the Chinese Medical Association (7 &8 E2 &), respectively, in
March 2005. Dr. Jia continues to actively pursue his endeavours in cardiovascular
healthcare. His recent appointments include consultant for the interventional
cardiovascular diseases branch of the Chinese Medical Association (H = % £
2 LIMERE D E)in 2013, committee member for the cardiologist branch of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (Bl & Fi i & /L %E AR BRI 5 &
in 2014 and consultant for the editorial board of Chinese Journal of Geriatric
Heart Brain and Vessel Diseases (91 2 2 £ .0 i I & % 4 35 in 2016. Dr. Jia
possesses the chief doctor qualification.
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Dr. LI Zhiwei, aged 51, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations of the
Group’s hospitals. Dr. Li is an industry leading general surgeon in the PRC with
more than 27 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua
Hospital in February 2006 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua
Hospital and the head of the Department of Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic Surgery.
Dr. Li also participated in managing the development and operation of Kanghua
Hospital from which he gained valuable hospital management experience.
Before joining the Group, from August 1990 to December 2005, Dr. Li had focused
his practice on hepatobiliary surgery at the 301 Military Hospital (3015 Fi ), where
he had served various roles, including resident doctor ({3 B 28 ), chief resident
doctor (42 {E P 28 fifi), attending doctor (I 34 B& £l ), ward inspection chief
attending doctor (& 5 42 & 74 E Bll) and associate chief doctor (& = 1F B &),
Dr. Liis substantially involved in the development of general surgery and medical
associations in the PRC. He was complimented to be an advanced teaching
individual (4t TYE{E A ) twice by the PLA Postgraduate Medical School (E
HEAEEBE) in 1997 and 2001, respectively, for his outstanding performance in
teaching and teaching management. Dr. Li graduated from First Military Medical
University (25 — & & KX 2) with a medical bachelor’s degree in July 1990. He
obtained a master's degree in general surgery and doctoral degree in clinical
medicine from the postgraduate medical school (& # (& £ % ) of 301 Military
Hospital (3012 B ) in July 1995 and July 2003, respectively. Dr. Li obtained the
chief doctor qualification in hepatobiliary surgery in January 2009.

Ms. LIN Yan, aged 56, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall management of the nursing
work of the Group’s hospitals. Ms. Lin is a highly experienced nurse with more
than 34 years of experience in the medical industry. Ms. Lin joined Kanghua
Hospital in September 2010 and has since served as the head of the Nursing
Department. Before joining the Group, from July 1983 to October 2010, Ms. Lin had
served various roles at Second Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University (# 1L
KB E % = BB, including nurse, head nurse of operating theatre, head
of nursing department and deputy head of outpatient office. Ms. Lin has made
distinguished contributions in the nursing profession in the PRC, with far-reaching
influence in the field of operating room nursing within the PRC, in particular
Guangdong Province. She participated in the publication of many professional
practice guides in nursing, including main editor (= #) for Practical Surgical
Nursing (& F F 1i7 # 32 £) published by the Sun Yat-sen University Press (#
Il K & i il #£), which received a First Class Prize in Outstanding Teaching
Materials (18 75 Z 8 — & #€) in Southern China universities from the China
University Presses Association (9 B K 22 1) iz 1 &), participating editor (£ 4% )
for Guide on Improving the Core Competence of Professional Nurse (5 3 7 +
%0 B8 7 22 3% 5 ) published by the Guangdong Provincial Publishing Group
(& 3 & H i & &), and participating editor (£ 47 for Clinical Care Document
Specifications (& K & ¥2 X & #% #8) published by the Guangdong Provincial
Publishing Group. Ms. Lin obtained a diploma in advanced nursing from the
Evening School of Sun Yat-sen University Zhongshan School of Medicine (7 1L
BRI KERAE) in June 1989. Ms. Lin graduated from the Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine (1 £ A1 & Z X 2) in January 2010. She obtained the chief
nurse qualification (3= {E &2 A ) in December 2007.
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Mr. WANG Baizhi, aged 43, is an operation vice general manager of the
Company since June 2016. He is responsible for the overall administrative and
ancillary operations of the Group’s hospitals as well as overseeing the Group'’s
hospital management business. Mr. Wang has approximately 13 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the vice general manager of Renkang Hospital, and as the general
manager of Renkang Hospital since November 2015, primarily responsible for the
hospital's administrative and ancillary operations. Mr. Wang also participated in
the construction and development of Renkang Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from March 1998 to July 2003, Mr. Wang had worked at China Construction Bank
responsible for auditing and loan management. Mr. Wang obtained a diploma
in mechanical manufacturing engineering and design from the Dongguan
University of Technology (5 5232 T 257 ) in June 1998.

Ms. WANG Yingda, aged 44, is the secretary fo the Board since June 2016. She
is primarily responsible for overseeing public affairs, administrative and daily
operations of the Group. Ms. Wang has 14 years of management experience
in the medical industry, particularly in financial management, hospital
administration, support and assurances, service excellence, brand promotion
and corporate culture. Ms. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in June 2006, served
as a senior manager of the finance department and currently serves as an
assistant to chairman responsible for operation control, external and internal
liaisons, implementation of action plans, monitoring key performance indicators,
assessing patient satisfaction levels and organising hospital branding events. Ms.
Wang had worked as a manager of the finance department of Kanghua Group
primarily responsible for financial and audit matters from February 2004 to May
2006, during which she had been involved in the construction and development
of Kanghua Hospital from which she gained valuable hospital management
experience. Ms. Wang currently serves as a standing committee member (% 7%
Z 8 of the Guangdong Provincial Health Economics Association (& 5 & 1 4
KEEe % 82) and the deputy chairman (2] € &) of the Dongguan Hospital
Association (3 52 T & B3 13 & ). Ms. Wang graduated from Xi'an Technological
University (75 % T 2 X 22 ) and obtained a diploma in financial accounting in July
1995. Ms. Wang obtained the qualification of accountant in the PRC in May 2002.
Ms. Wang obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Northwest
University (G4t X 28) in the PRC in December 2013.

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, aged 40, is a chief financial officer and a joint
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong has more than 16 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He is primarily responsible for the overall
financial management, capital investment, investor relations and corporate
finance of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Company as chief financial officer in
December 2015. Before joining the Group, from December 2002 to November
2015, Mr. Wong had worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was
responsible for leading, managing and supervising audits for listed and multi-
national companies. Mr. Wong has also cultivated transactional experience in his
previous roles, including acquisitions, debt offerings and initial public offerings.
Mr. Wong was a senior manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu before he joined
the Group. Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s
degree of commerce majoring in accounting and finance with merit from the
University of New South Wales in April 2000, and a master's degree of commerce
maijoring in advanced information systems and management from the University
of New South Wales in May 2003.
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Ms. CHEN Li, aged 47, is a financial controller of the Company since June
2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group’s hospitals. Ms. Chen has more than 25 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it
was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and is currently serving
as financial controller in the finance department. Ms. Chen also participated in
managing the financial operations of Kanghua Hospital during its construction
and development phase from which she gained valuable hospital financial
management experience. Before joining the Group, from September 1992 to
March 2004, she had served various roles at Dongguan City Guangcai Hotel
(R =™ & ¥ WBE L), a subsidiary of Guangdong Fortune Colour Picture
Tube Co., Ltd. (B 5 & ¥ & 88 & & 2 7)), including accountant, accounting
supervisor, cost supervisor and project manager. She has also served as the
vice chairman (2] & &) of the Dongguan Social Insurance Associatfion (R 2= T
& 1R B2 1% 2 ) since January 2016. Ms. Chen obtained a diploma in financial
accounting from Changsha University of Workers (£ B T K2 ) in June 1992.
She graduated from Dongguan Party School [ 3 22 # 4% ) in December 1998.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company,
is also a senior management member of the Company. Please refer to “Senior
Management” in this section for his biography.

Ms. CHAU Hing Ling was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 27 June 2016. She has served as a director of Corporate Services
of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since June 2013, where she leads a team
of professional staff to provide a full range of company secretary services. Ms.
Chau has over 16 years of experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Chau is currently the company secretary of Keen Ocean International Holding
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8070) and the company secretary of Sheung Moon Holdings limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8523)
and the company secretary of Rici Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1526)
respectively and the joint company secretary of COFCO Meat Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
1610) and Persta Resources Inc., a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 3395) respectively. Ms. Chau received a master
of laws majoring in corporate and finance law from the University of Hong Kong
in November 2007. She has been a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries since May 2013.
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B ZBEHRE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUANGDONG KANGHUA HEALTHCARE CO., LTD.
BEREZEEFRRDERDLF

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guangdong Kanghua
Healthcare Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 131 to 217, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and nofes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
R EBIR

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BARERT SR

RRETFRASATHEEAE BAEAR
HEGEEMBRRTREENFE - ZEF
HERATENBREAVBBRRNRHAE
RERE MATIEREFFTHREFER
BR-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RITRET N EERRETSE

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes
BRI ER B E

We have identified the contingent liabilities arising from medical
disputes as a key audit matter because there are inherent
risks of medical disputes in the healthcare business, and the
estimation of their financial impact involves significant degree
of management judgment as disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There are inherent risks associated with the Group’s clinical
activities which may result in unfavourable medical outcomes
not caused by clinical decisions. The Group may be subject to
legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of business, which primarily include medical dispute claims
brought by the former patients.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s contingent liabilities
arising from medical disputes included:

o Understanding management's process in developing the
estimation on the outflow of economic benefit;

o Obtaining the list of medical disputes from the
management;

o Arranging litigation search to check for the status of the

medical disputes and the completeness for the list of
medical disputes;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
B ESEE

BASRERT SR (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RITRET N EERRETSE

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes (Cont'd)
BRI SI R L A EE ()

Provision for medical dispute claims is made based on the
status of potential and active claims outstanding at the end
of each year, and taking info consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the fotal claim exposure.
However, where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Except for those disputes with provision of RMB1,280,000 made
as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group believes that the final result of
other medical disputes with total claims of RMB9,807,000 as
at 31 December 2018 will not have a material impact on the
financial position or operations of the Group and the amount of
outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior to judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in
this regard and disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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o Obtaining and reading legal proceeding letters, judicial
appraisal reports, expert opinion letters, judgment letters
and medical records, if any, relevant to the medical
disputes;

o Discussing with the management of the Group and
the Group’s legal counsel on the estimated outcome of
the pending medical disputes, with reference to legal
precedents of any similar cases; and

J Evaluating the adequacy of provision and the disclosure
under contingent liabilities.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
S ESEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BASRERT SR (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TR ET N EERRETSE

Impairment assessment of gooadwill

B E AR EEF IS

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill arising
from acquisitions of Z W R & FE % & B R 2 7 (Anhui
Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Hualin”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Anhui Hualin Group”)
and = B R ZE R B0 I E % 2 B A R 2 & (Chongqing
Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.)
("Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital”) as set out in Notes 27(a)
and 27(b) respectively to the consolidated financial statements
as a key audit matter due to significant level of management
judgement involved in determining the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units (the “CGUs") to which goodwill is
allocated for the impairment assessment on the goodwiill.

As set out in Notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment of goodwill in relation to acquisitions of
Anhui Hualin Group and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital is
assessed by comparing the recoverable amount of the CGUs
to its carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use of the
CGUs is determined by the directors of the Company based
on the present value of estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the CGUs and with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent professional valuer, which
was approved by the directors of the Company. Significant
judgements and assumptions are adopted by the management
in the value in use calculation for estimation of recoverable
amount of the CGUs, the key assumptions including growth
rates and pre-tax discount rates.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the impairment assessment
process used by the management and involvement of
the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amounts based on
a value in use calculation;

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
methodology and key assumptions adopted by the
management in determining the recoverable amount of
the CGUs, including growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates, with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialist;

o Evaluating the historical accuracy and reasonableness of
the value in use calculation by comparing the historical
cash flow forecasts with the actual performance of the
CGUs; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
B ESEE

BASRERT SR (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RITRET N EERRETSE

Impairment assessment of gooawill (Cont'd)

B2y 5 (B S ()

At 31 December 2018, the carrying value of goodwill is o
approximately RMB182,013,000. In the opinion of the directors

of the Company, no impairment loss was identified on the
goodwill as at 31 December 2018.

RIE—N\E+-A=+—8 BEANEEEHAEARE .
182,013,000t c ERARIEFRA R_ZE—N\F+ A
=t HBENEREEETE®ER -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or fo cease
operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis of the forecasts for
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Faith Corazon Del Rosario.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBnkHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5t AREEF T AREFTT
Revenue & 5 1,639,287 1,389,169
Cost of revenue Y AR AR (1,280,383) (1,058,293)
Gross profit EF 358,904 330,876
Other income Hoh g A 7 46,765 32,694
Other gains and losses H b Y2k K B 18 8 2,199 (18,500)
Administrative expenses TR X (185,178) (126,994)
Finance costs B & AR 9 (936) -
Profit before taxation B 75 B g A 10 221,754 218,076
Income tax expenses FrBHiAX 13 (60,482) (56,937)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F 3% K| & & [ W A 42 58 161,272 161,139
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income T 51 T8 FE 1 F ] %
(expense) for the year attributable to: (BB R2EBRA
(Fx) %5
— owners of the Company B YNGIE 2 DN 167,943 156,592
- non-controlling inferests —JEERR (6,671) 4,547
161,272 161,139
Earnings per share, basic (RMB cents) BREXRBF(ARES) 15 50.2 46.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R R

At 31 December 2018
M 201812 A31H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo ARET T ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L &Exﬁ 16 814,390 434,109
Prepaid lease payment TET M & FRIE 17 150,398 -
Goodwill EES 18 182,013 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY - BRE L&A
plant and equipment BEffES 81,133 76,456
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 19 = 16,275
Other receivables H b W GRIE 20 = 5,000
Fixed bank deposit FHISRITFER 21 16,000 -
1,243,934 531,840
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 22 45,358 44,524
Accounts and other receivables JFE U B 5k e E A FE W 3R 0B 20 207,016 214,508
Prepaid lease payment TETHE & SR8 17 3,248 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %A F (& SR
TREE 19 479,142 -
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 19 = 543,025
Restricted bank balances SR AR 1T 45 88 21 21,098 14,700
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 21 203,256 383,796
959,118 1,200,553
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and other payables JFE 45T BR 3k N EL A B S 3R 23 481,839 412,586
Amount due fo a shareholder JEAS — B B R R IE 24 682 925
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FER —FEM B AR
of a subsidiary — B IR AR RIE 24 152,204 -
Tax payables e A5 18 38,368 29,483
673,093 442,994
Net current assets REBEEFHE 286,025 757,559
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBER 1,529,959 1,289,399
Non-current liability FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 25 20,485 -
Net assets BEEFE 1,509,474 1,289,399
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EE MR R

At 31 December 2018
72018412 A31H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5E ARET T ARETT

Capital and reserves EARRGFHE

Share capital [N 26 334,394 334,394
Reserves % 1,044,543 930,830
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KABER ANELEDS 1,378,937 1,265,224
Non-controlling interests JEIE A = 130,537 24,175
Total equity R 1,509,474 1,289,399

The consolidated financial statements on pages 131 1o 217 were approved and £ 131 Z 217 EMNGRE T BRERER T — 1
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2019 and are signed = A=+ /\BEZ =4 F RIF#ET) % -

on its behalf by: WHNTEERKREE
Wang Junyang Wong Wai Hung Simon
TEH TR
Director Director
BEF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERRSBHR

For the

year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12 A3NBILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LS 2PN
Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve earmings Sub-total inferests Total

Bx  ROEE EARE  EERE  REEA N FERER @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL ARETRT ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

note () (note il
GED )
At1January 2017 RZE—tF—-A—H 334,394 698,214 53,394 12,344 57,069 1,155,415 19,628 1,175,043
Profit and fotal comprehensive F IR 2E
income for the year WA - - - - 156,592 156,592 4,547 161139
Dividend &E - - - - (46,783) (46,783) - (46,783)
Tronsfers g% - - - 16,120 (16,1201 - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+ZA=t-H 334,394 698,214 53,394 28,464 150,758 1,265,224 24175 1,289,399
Proft {loss| and tofal ERET (B8
comprehensive income REERA(FR)
lexpense] for the year ek - - - - 167,943 167,943 (6,671 161,272
Dividend [Note 14) 8 () - - - - (54,230] (54,2301 - (54,230
Tronsfers g% - - - 34120 (34,120] - - -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  WEEHIB A 7
(Note 27) (3 27) - - - - - - 113,033 113,033
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZA=t-H 334,394 698,214 53,394 62,584 230,351 1,378,937 130,537 1,509,474
Notes: B 5E

(i

(ii)

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the (i)
Company and its subsidiaries which were established in the PRC are required o
transfer at least 10% of their net profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations, to a non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used

to offset the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation.

Included in the retained earnings, an amount of RMB3,713,000 (2017: nil) belongs to i)
restricted retained earnings from Anhui Hualin Group (defined in Note 27(b)) which is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN EBE=E

,%/T\ A Iﬁﬁ/)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEF T ARBT T
Operating activities KT
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 A 221,754 218,076
Adjustments for: BLLANIE B PR {EHEE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T8 1< 0 & SRIE 8 1,354 -
Bank and other interest income HRAT R E A A B HA (7,243) (11,584)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREHETE 70,259 49,600
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BRAFETABREMEE
through profit or loss # A FEKE (6,447) -
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME  HERZENERE 231 247
Allowance for credit loss EEEERG 3,503 3,513
Investment income from available-for-sale AEHERENRERA
investments - (11,675)
Investment income from financial assets BRATEFABREMEE
at fair value through profit or loss EOE ST N (18,344) -
Interest expenses FMERXZ 936 -
Unrealised exchange (gain) loss RELRWER (KR) &8 (5,544) 7,199
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREPINKERERE
in working capital 260,459 255,376
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER A (Em) 4,072 (1,298)
Increase in accounts and other receivables JFEE UK B R B B A i i R TR HE 0 (17,592) (7,535)
(Decrease) increase in accounts and other payables JE A< BR SR % EL i B A 5RTE
OBiA) 10 (16,670) 26,227
Cash generated from operations LTSRS 230,269 272,770
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMSH (53,306) (58,851)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHABREFHE 176,963 213,919
Investing activities REETH
Placement of restricted bank balances T U PR I SR1T 45 81 (1,991,920) (1,534,459
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERAFETABEEN
profit or loss CREE (1,840,200) -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 1g B8 B BB 2 &) (294,492) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BRENIEE (36,997) (119,256)
Placement of fixed bank deposit 7 W E E R1T17 K (16,000) -
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances TR R HIER 1T 45 85 1,985,522 1,554,714
Disposal of financial assets at fair value PERAFETABREN
through profit or loss TREE 1,930,040 -
Investment income received from financial assets BAFEFABEHNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss WA #5258 A 18,344 -
Interests received B U F B 12,261 11,584
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - BEREE
plant and equipment P15 3018 1,385 23
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAIMHHERE - (560,227
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WHEM % - B FE K&
plant and equipment [RENEFE (53,331) (50,242)
Loan granted to a hospital (Note 20) BT — b fa sk (I3 20) - (20,000)
Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WEIHE AR 2 Fike - (5,000)
Investment income received from available-for-sale AHEEREDBIREKRA
investments - 1,675
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFAREFEE (285,388) (711,188)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A =B
FmERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTIT
Financing activities R E R B
Repayment of bank loan (Note 27(b)) BT IRITE R (K EE 27(b) (60,000) -
Dividend paid B E (54,230) (46,783)
Repayments to a non-controlling shareholder BT —HMB AR
of a subsidiary — & IR R (3,515) -
Interest paid ERFE (936) -
Repayments to a shareholder BRT—RBBRR (243) (2,254)
Advances from a non-controlling shareholder —EM B A B H—% TR
of a subsidiary % SR E TR 44,500 -
Net cash used in financing activities RMETBAREFEE (74,424) (49,037)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEYRDFE (182,849) (546,306)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear ~ SR ERMEEEY 383,796 936,374
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEXEFHrE 2,309 (6,272)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FREGRREEEY
representing bank balances and cash BIRITHESBREES 203,256 383,796




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

B R FEEEBERMD AR AR (Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co.,
Ltd.) (the “Company”) was established as a limited liability company in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its overseas listed foreign
invested ordinary shares ("H Shares’) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
The Company’'s immediate and ultimate holding company is % 52 1 &
# 1% & £ B A [R 2 Al [Dongguan Kanghua Group Co., Ltd.) ("Kanghua
Group®), a limited liability company established in the PRC. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business in Hong Kong of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in provision of hospital services, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of hospital
management services, sales of pharmaceutical products and provision of
other services (represents elderly healthcare services) in the PRC. Details of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board for the first time in the
current year:

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

—gan

ERFEBEROHABRAR ([ART])
FEREARKLMBE ((HE])KZA—
MAREERAAREEINETINE R
BE(THED)  EEBMAERSME
BRAA ([FEBRM]) ERED K
DNAMEEMERERAB/REM
BREREASEARLR ([REEE]) -
—ERPERINBEREERAF - K
NEGEMMHEREREETEZL X
WU BN FRI AR ER | —80 o

ARBIREWB AR (FEIAER])
FTEEPENYERHEERRE  RBE
FEEREMEERS RESZERER
BR7S - $HE 5E R RIREE MR (KX
EZEHEBRG) - AR RIMBRARE
I FES38 ©

RERMBRERAARBE(TARK]D 2
5 ARBTARRBNINGEER -

FE PR T T B8 B 5 e o 2 A (1
BREFFS RS R ) R EBFT A

Q7R 4R [ 58 1] A 20 0 8 AT B8 B B
B RE R R EER] A

RAREE  NEBEBRERATERER
SEERIZ B 2 FAE MR R] BIR A
BHELENREEFA

IFRS 9

BB B 15 R RIS 9 5%
IFRS 15

BB B 75 S 5 A RSB 15 5%
IFRIC 22

RS REREZESREF 2295
Amendments to IFRS 2
BB B 75 &5 BRI 55 2 9% (I RT AN)

[m=]

N

Amendments to IFRS 4
BB Bt A 3R 25 B 45K (BT )

Amendments to IAS 28
BRest RIS 28 5% (15T )

Financial Instruments

TRIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments

B &AW RAEEEET

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

HNER 5 KRB RA(E

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

AR BERAONRRZZN D ERGTE

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

FERBRMERELENBEIREMTANBERMBRELERNFE4
SRR A4

As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

ERBRVBREEN —_Z-—MNFE T RFBRFEICEDN

— %5
Amendments to I1AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
BIRS & 3R 5 4058 (15T 45 AN EER
In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment AN - AR EE B IR P E BB R R

Features with Negative Compensation which will be mandatorily effective
for the Group for the financial year beginning on 1January 2019.

FERE I (BRI AN) I8 REH 14
REHE  MZETHRAEER =
T-NF-A—BHRBENTRFER
B AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Contd)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
IFRSs and an interpretation in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current year.
IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, |1AS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related inferpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening retained earnings
(or other components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with
the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at
1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was prepared under
IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

J hospital services;
° rehabilitation and other healthcare services;
o hospital management services;

o other services; and

sale of pharmaceutical products

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are disclosed
in Notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont'd)

2.1

2.2

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd)

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the Group has
elected to apply the standard refrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related Amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation and the related consequential amendments
to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, and 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assefs.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained earnings and other components
of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under IAS 39 financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

2.1

2.2

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

PR B T 1 4 R RSB 15 R
A A 25 ()

AR B B8 W e A B R B A e
HERIF55E - M ERERZER
MERFATER_T-NF—A—
BERERE AR - NmER
B B e (o] = BE A B ) BB 170 A
(REmmEMAKRED - BI5
ST E) P HER - I B ARE
LA H o b o - IR BB B 7
HEERIESH 2 BRIEX - N
EEEEEBY T N\F—A—
B " R SR 2 & K18 B8 A A AR
EoH - BETHRERRLEE
B AR 4R B R & 5 2 R 5518 S e
MR BN RENAT
LETE o

B R B 7% s 5 HE RIS 9 S 2
TANHBEER

RAFE  AEBEEREBBERM
BREENFEIFLH LA H
% B 75 S e R RIS 9 5% (1B RTAR)
TEPENIFIER B 18 R H AL
PR 7 R 5 Y R AR R RO AR FE (2 AT
7N o BRI TSRS R 957 B)
TREERTRABEN D BN
ERJEREENEREEER
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A

75 B B AR 15 B B B 7 e o E B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2. F& A7 =] BIPS B 78 s == 2 81 ([ B
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont<d) PRE;IEFREER ) REAEFT AR
(&)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related Amendments 2.2 PREF TS s 2 BIE 9 2

22

(Contd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
(including impairment) of financial assets under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at

the date of initial application, 1January 2018.

TAKNMBBER (8)

BREABRMEREENE
MELNTEMRR

TEHPR-F—\E—A—F
R 8 PR B AR IR B A 2R
AR 95 & & 5HERIF 39
HeMEENH BRI B (DI
WE) -

Financial
assets
AFS designated
investments at FVTPL
BRAFERTA
AHEHE BRIETH
RE CRLEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEF T AREFTT
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RZEBE—+tF+-A=+—HH
KA R
- 1AS 39 —BIRR = ET £ RIZE 39 5% 559,300 -
Effect arising from initial application B R JE PR B B B 7 o 5 A
of IFRS 9: FIORMELNTE
Reclassification ERoibag |
From available-for-sale (‘AFS“) to fair value  BAE{EHE ([AIHHEE N E
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (note (a)) BAFEFTAER
(MR FER AR (FifEEa) (559,300) 559,300
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R-_ZT— ) \F—HA—BHB&H - 559,300




2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont'd)

2.2

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related Amendments
(Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (Contd)

Noftes:

(a)

AFS investments

From AFS equity investments to FVTPL

At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, the Group’s investments in
unlisted fund and portfolio investment fund with aggregated amount
of RMB67,460,000 were reclassified from AFS investments to financial
assetfs at FVTPL. There were no cumulative fair value gains/losses
relating to those investments previously carried at fair value as at 1
January 2018.

From AFS debt investments to FVTPL

Structured bank deposits with a fair value of RMB491,840,000 were
reclassified from AFS investments to financial assets at FVTPL. This is
because even though the Group’s business model is to hold financial
assefs in order to collect contractual cash flows, the cash flows of
these investments do not meet the IFRS 9 criteria as solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. There were
no cumulative fair value gains/losses relating to those investments
previously carried at fair value as at 1January 2018.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation to these
assets from the application of IFRS 9.

2.

e R ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

2.2 BFREF RS R
TENBBER (&)

BIR e A BR B 7 s
MELNTERE (&)

MsE -

595 Al

BIZE9

(@ FHEERSE

BRI ERERESRAT
Brt AtRe

T B IR E R BB B 75 R o E A
FoWmAH AEBERIELT
A NEFREESABERA
R #67,460,0007T 7 ¥A 7% B 7]
HEEREEHRAFEFAE
HNEMEE -R_T—-N\F
—H—R " SERREAFET
ROZSREVERAATE
Wik, A -

ERHHEBHREZZAT
ERPN L

~TE R AR 491,840,000 7T
ZAEBMRITERAAHEE
RESHOPERRNFEA
BEZEMEE - LRGSR
EARENEBEAZRE2
REENKBMANRERE
ZERENRSRENNTNE
B B T 4 o5 R RN R 9 SRR
AREAXNAE R AREER
TEROME R ZE—N\F—
RA—8  ERARFEIRD

&%&élﬁ%;ﬁr F{E Uk
%,/ 18 -
JER BRI ISR E R FE 95
HZSEECEANSBIE
FE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

—

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Contd)

2.2

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related Amendments
(Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9 (Contd)

Notes: (Contd)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all accounts receivables. Except for those
accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance
schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors with aggregated
outstanding significant balances have been assessed individually, the
remaining balances are grouped based on internal credit rating and
past due analysis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other
receivables, fixed bank deposit, restricted bank balances, and bank
balances, are assessed on 12 months ECL (12m ECL") basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The application of the ECL model of IFRS 9 has no material impact
on the accumulated amount of loss allowance to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under IAS 39 mainly attributable to ECL provision
on accounts and other receivables. In respect of fixed bank deposit,
restricted bank balances and bank balances, based on the historical
financial information and reputation of the banks that the Group
deposited to, the management of the Company has considered that
the risk of default is low, their capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term is strong and there is no adverse changes
in economic and business conditions of the counterparties. Therefore,
they considered it is not necessarily fo recognise provision for ECL on
the fixed bank deposit, restricted bank balances and bank balances in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2. FERXf

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

HIEE Al (
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Cont<d) BB IR 2R ) & ,Hﬂé} HI

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16
BRI B 75 o 5 2B RN 2816 5%
IFRS 17

B B B 705 ¥R 5 AR RSB 17 5%
IFRIC 23

B BREREEEeREFE 239
Amendments to IFRS 3

B R B 75 R 5 22 BI85 3 5 (18 RT AX)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and I1AS 28

lﬁﬂﬁﬂ%#ﬁziﬁﬁ‘l%loﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂx el

28 5):'({ ETZ’K)
Amendments to IAS 1 and I1AS 8

B &5 RIS 15 M EER & 5 ERIFE 8 5%

CHEN)
Amendmenfs to 1AS 19
RGP AERIE 1957 (BRTA)
Amendments to IAS 28
BFR @5 %ERI 5 28 5% (IERTAN)
Amendments to IFRSs

BIER B 75 5 2RI (B /T %)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. !

EL R 15 R A R # T B R B
BaE ER R EEFTA

AEBEERREFER TS EME R
R A R 3 AT B R B A R S R R H

CHEE
Leases'
AE
Insurance Contracts?
Riga#?2

UncerTointy over Income Tax Treatments'

FTiS T iR I8 /0 e 1

Definition of a Business*

EBHER

Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

REERHEBENARAECE ZMNEELEITIAS

Definition of Material®

BERMEES

Plan Amendment, Curtoilment or Seftlement!

FHEMERT - BB s AR
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4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 4 REBE O R EEWEN B 8
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5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 5
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R-EB-TE-R-Hk &R
& E S E AR MR 2 R AR -

R-ZE-ZF-A—Hkz &R
R E IR AR o

HT‘XFﬁtZ%ﬁ%T&,%@I%ETB%Eﬁ%

directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new WELERISN AR RERTEHERR

and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Contd)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting freatments for lessors. IFRS 16 will supersede
IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. IFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payment as
investing cash flows in relation to prepaid lease payment for own use while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments
will continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance with the nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, IFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont'd)

IFRS 16 Leases (Contd)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB259,570,000 as disclosed in Note 30. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group elects the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained
earnings without restating comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values atf the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE208F12A3NHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements are determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities fo fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assels.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

o has the ability fo use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES rcontd)
Basis of consolidation (Contd)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with I1AS 12 /ncome Taxes and 1AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value.

]48 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

/

ERETHE®E)
e ABREE(E)
XBa ot

W X B ERKEIRS R - R 5 6
BEIREDVRATVERE  AFE
TR WE A AR RE SRR RS
ZYE %H%ﬁﬁﬁﬁyZéF EL8E
KA 2 R - AR B
R— ﬂxﬁ?iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ R e

RUHE B - B 2 7] BRI & B Nk P

ZRBERENEBRAZAFERR

HETHUERSN

e EERBEEHRER Eﬁiﬁé-ﬂm
MEZBEBRNBEREE - 25l
B G ER L 12571 a@z&
BIFR & 51 2RI 5% E & 75 7/ 7
RREE

o ERUIEE AR I SRR HE kA

A5 B B D T2 A A SR BE AR
WP BEBRODEANRLHEE
Bz BEXRATA  RUEHR
*ETFIWW%%#&%LEEIJ%Z%M
/fﬁ)f P RERNF (R TXEFHK
pos

o HRBIRMBEHRELRESHRA
IEHEHFRBEER UL
XERBA/FBELEEE (i
SR E - AIRZEAGE -

%%B?ﬁiﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ{g NS
HERIEER ISR R B E BT
%ﬁZ%EZHﬂZ%%Hx$T%E“ Z AR (10
B) Z AR BAN S B YR 2 AT E
BERAEZABFRIERAE -
MRS FEE KRB ZAIBRNEE
FAEZ BERKER 2 FHBA X
MHRE  RREE 2 I ERE
BBk EBERAEREZREES
Bz AVEGIR) 2888 AIER
BN IBmER AR -

EEHT#WE\ BEEERAANINBR
R R OIERHBE AR FEE L
éHET Pt e o R B R 2 R
FEECDHER SR R HIRIEE D
PR RN FEDIRTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assetfs on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Revenue from confracts with customers (upon application of IFRS 15
in accordance with fransitions in Note 2)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of IFRS 15
in accordance with transitions in Note 2) (Contd)

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from provision of hospital services, rehabilitation and other
healthcare services and hospital management services are recognised
when services are provided.

Revenue from sale of pharmaceutical products is recognised when the
pharmaceutical products are delivered and titles have passed.

The Group’s accounting policy for the recognition of revenue from operating
leases and finance leases is described in the accounting policy for leases
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
provision of services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for provision of services or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each year, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Prepaid lease payment

Prepaid lease payment represent prepaid lease rentals under operating
leases and are initially stated at cost. The cost of prepaid lease payment is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight
line basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for accounts receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, tfransaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in Note 2) (Contd)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that is
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transifions in
accordance with Note 2)

The Group recognises d loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including accounts and other
receivables, fixed bank deposit, restricted bank balances and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts receivables under
simplified approach. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
accounts receivables with significant balances and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL under general approach. Unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

3.

BA TG R AR B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transifions in
accordance with Note 2) (Contd)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

In particular, the following information is taken intfo account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transifions in
accordance with Note 2) (Contd)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detfrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d)  itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transifions in
accordance with Note 2) (Contd)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transifions in
accordance with note 2) (Contd)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

o nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s accounts and
other receivables except for accounts receivables from the
PRC government’s social insurance schemes and certain
credit-impaired debtors, fixed bank deposit, restricted bank
balances and bank balances are each assessed as a separate
group. Accounts receivables from the PRC government's social
insurance schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors are
assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

o past-due status;

° nature, size and industry of receivables; and

J external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of accounts receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified as AFS financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS
or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated certain items as AFS
financial assets on initial recognition of those items.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each report period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including accounts
and other receivables, fixed bank deposit, restricted bank balances
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1January
2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each year. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the
estimated future cash flows have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1January
2018) (Cont'd)

For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio passed the respective credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of accounts receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When an accounts receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an AFS investments, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities, including accounts and other payables, amount due
to a shareholder and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to seftle the present obligation at the end of each year, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to seftle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to seftle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets finite useful and construction costs to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets is estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill (Contd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are accrued.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the subsidies will be received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the subsidies are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government subsidies whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government subsidies that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
and government-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC, are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

e TS ERAR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

ERETHE®E)
AR ARAE R B

FUEHFRKRAE B (BIEE BRI
HAES ((BES]) P BEBMAEE
HRRFEFIET 8D M RN E B D IR M
FEHERZEZHRNRB R R A

72 HA N H At = B R B & R

MHRERANREBRMRERIED
SXNHARITIRSEER - FRIFS— A
B 5% B 7% o o5 2 B B2 SR gk e R AR A
MABERA BRIFEEHERR
MOHERSER -

i EE
HFUEER RN EE MRER A

I8

PS5 7 S 18 & B B A5 71 08 SO SE 7
TREVHBAD ©

& A< B A A5 TR 32 6 P9 O B SR 0 A E T
- -HRERRENTEREMFRE
ERB K AT IR MW IER - TR
EEBARME A HRNIER - HE
AR B g A BR A BT g A N A o AR SR B
FREETXREECDETNOBRXRAE
B ERE -

RERBRGAVBBRRPEENA
18 B T (B B2 5t B 8 AR B0 s M) P 5K AR AR
EREME TR EZEER - — R
PrERRRE R ZERIDELCHER
18 © 1t 7] BE B FE &R 0 A A AR DA 3K 85
ABAMAINREREE  AMBTEHM
PP A AT 0B RS E R R R AR IR B
E-MEREZERANLSER —HED
8RR M IR R B & R i A R
RPMEERBEMES ABAHBE
ENABEDTHER - WIN
ZRRBVIGHERPE  BIRTERIE
BETTLAMR -

BEREEBERNARQR 5 2018

165

—



RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE208F12A3NHILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
Taxation (Contd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and inferests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
year and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seftled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each year.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group infends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where current tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a net realisable value that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the net realisable value of inventories of the Group becomes
lower than its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may
be required. The carrying amount of inventories was approximately
RMB45,358,000 (2017: RMB44,524,000) as at 31 December 2018. No
impairment loss on the above amount was recognised during the year.
Details of the Group’s inventories are set out in Note 22.

Provision for medical dispute claims

The Group may be subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business, which primarily include medical dispute
claims brought by the former patients. Provision for medical dispute claims
is made based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding
at the end of each year, and taking into consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Based on the assessment, the provision for certain medical dispute claims
existed of approximately RMB1,280,000 (2017: RMB503,000) has been
provided and included in accounts and other payables by the Group as
at 31 December 2018. The situation is closely monitored by the directors of
the Company and provision will be made as appropriate. Where the final
actual claims are greater than expected, a material dispute claims expense
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a claim takes place.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Impairment of goodwill in relation to the acquisitions of Anhui Hualin Group
(defined in Note 27(a)) and Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (defined in
Note 27(b)) is assessed by comparing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (the “CGUs") to which goodwill has been allocated, which
is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal, to its
carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The value in use of the
CGUs is determined by the directors of the Company based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows to be generated from the CGUs
and with reference to the valuation reports prepared by an independent
professional value, which was approved by the directors of the Company.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or changes
in facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise. Significant judgements
and assumptions are adopted by the management in the value in use
calculation for estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs, the key
assumptions including growth rates and pre-tax discount rates. The Group
believes that no provision for impairment has to be recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The situation will be closely monitored, and
adjustments will be made in future periods, should future market activity
indicate that such adjustments are required.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB182,013,000 (2017: nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
and the related acquisitions are disclosed in Notes 18 and 27 respectively.

Provision of ECL for accounts receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the accounts
receivables, except for accounts receivables from the PRC government's
social insurance scheme and certain credit-impaired debtors which are
assessed for ECL individually. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various receivables that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance scheme
and certain credit-impaired debtors are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s accounts receivables is disclosed in Note
34(bliii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

Iy 25
AEBEFARSDMAT -
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Recognised over fime: BERF AR

Hospital services: BB AR -

— Inpatient healthcare services —(F P B ERY 919,814 816,937

— Outpatient healthcare services —PI2 BE IR 552,507 491,056

— Physical examination services — iR 98,791 70,816

Rehabilitation and other healthcare services: REREMEBER :

— Rehabilitation hospital services —REBRRY 32,672 N/A A3 A

— Rehabilitation centre services and other —ERER O IR K E Ath B R AR T

healthcare services 16,998 N/A T~ A

Hospital management services BB R RS 2,258 3,135

Others E A 204 N/A T3 R
1,623,244 1,381,944

Recognised at a point in time: RE R R

Sale of pharmaceutical products BEmigE 16,043 7,225
1,639,287 1,389,169

Performance obligations for contracts with customers BEFEHEITRD

Provision of hospital services, provision of rehabilitation and other
healthcare services and provision of other services

The Group provides hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare
services and other services to patients. The directors of the Company
considered the performance obligation represents provision of these
services, which are satisfied when these services are rendered. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group is entitled to receive its service income according to the relevant
operating performance from the patients and the patients simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs.

RHBERY REFEEREMER
AR5 I fie B At AR 75

AEEFEBIREELE RS BER
HAEERS MEMRE - AREE
ERRBETEHEREZERS - A
RIBHZFRBE T M E - AR A
SEERREREBNHEBEERRLK
HUEL AR 5 MR A - T a% <5 BR 755 [R) By Y R
FOBRARERETASBERIRAEHR
MA R - ML SRR RETES -
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REVENUE (Contd)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Contd)
Provision of hospital management services

The Group provides hospital management services to Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital (defined in Note 27(b)), a hospital operator in
Chongging, under service arrangements for hospital management services.
The directors of the Company considered the performance obligation
represents provision of the hospital management services, of which are
satisfied when the services are rendered. Such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to
receive its service income according to the relevant operating performance
from Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

On 22 June 2018, the Group entered intfo an acquisition agreement to
acquired 60% equity interest in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital and
had become a non wholly-owned subsidiary to the Group. Revenue was
generated from provision of hospital management services prior to the
acquisition. Details of the acquisition is set out in Note 27(b).

Sale of pharmaceutical products

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to customers and includes
single element as delivery of pharmaceutical products. The directors
of the Company considered no other separate performance obligation
is identified except for delivery of goods. The revenue on sale of
pharmaceutical products is recognised as sales of goods when the goods
are delivered and titles have been passed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
service provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired new
businesses which are principally engaged in provision of rehabilitation
and other healthcare services and the operation of specialty hospital
in cardiovascular diseases (detailed in Note 27). In light of these new
businesses acquired during the year, the directors of the Company
have reallocated the Group’s segment information and combined
inpatient healthcare services, outpatient healthcare services and physical
examination services intfo one single segment as hospital services.
Segment information for the year ended 31 December 2017 is represented
to conform with current year's presentation. The directors of the Company
are of the view that the revised presentation of the operating segment
information better reflects the Group’s business operations.
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e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE208F12A3NHILFE

BEFPAKNREITER (&)
Ht
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MBEE-MERLLHIBOMER
Bt (E& R 270b) IR B B2
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HEFREERY - HRENEHERS
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DMERBERMNBAKLERAEESH
ARTS YA - [R] B R BgE L I 5 S 88 Be K
M HREAEBETASEREME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

The Group's operating segments are classified as (i) hospital services; (ii)
rehabilitation and other healthcare services; (i) hospital management
services; (iv) sale of pharmaceutical products; and (v) others. The details of
the Group’s operating segments are as follows:

() Hospital services:

(i)  Rehabilitation and
other healthcare
services:

(il Hospital management
services:

(ivy  Sale of pharmaceutical
products:

(v)  Others:

Provision of hospital services includes (i)
inpatient healthcare services generally
refer to the treatment of patients who
are hospitalised overnight or for an
indeterminate period of time; (il outpatient
healthcare services generally refer to the
treatment of patients who are hospitalised
for less than 24 hours; (iii) physical
examinations services generally refer to the
clinical examination of individuals for signs
of diseases and health advisory services.

Provision of rehabilitation services generally
refer to the provision of special care
services to patients with permanent or
long-term physical or mental disabilities.
Other healthcare services include elderly
care services and training services for the
disabled.

Provision of management services to a
hospital owned by an independent third

party.

Sale of pharmaceutical products to patients
of the Group’s hospitals and outside
customers.

Provision of elderly care services to
patients.

These operating segments also represent the Group’s reportable segments.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

e TS ERAR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

REBRE LD D A E TR ¢ i)
BIEMEMEERE (i)l ERE 2R
BovEREE: RvEM KNEE
LESEHFBOT

RENEBERBEE

FE)E B B8 B R
—MIERBRIKD
:E%)\KEE’JF}\?E
HRE (IFZE
{THEiP‘ BEAA
Bt 24 /NE By
mAREIAE i)
BRRE—RES
& AR B B & R
IR B R IR 12 58 M
REFEAR

REEERS — K
BRKARKE S
BRIEHEARN S
ERMAIREIE R
1 o Bt 8BRS
BEEFEERE
MR A Lol BRAR
& o

) EBTARTS

i) FRERHE
i B
AR5

i) EfEE
A7

ﬁﬁi%‘ﬁ%ﬁ
M ETIREE R R
% o

[7) A< 5% [ 8 e ) 3B
ERINBEPHE
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iv) ZEmiHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 6. DEBER (&)
Segment revenues and results 7 EB U ER I AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating NTREEEHE S AEE K=
segments: REEDH -
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_ZE-N\F+_A=1+—HBILF
-4
Rehabilitation
and other Hospital
healthcare  management Sale of
Hospital services services  pharmaceutical
senvices  ERERHM Bk products Others Total
Bl RS BERY EBRE EniE Hitr @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(note (al) (note (bl)
(& (o)) (W& (o)
SEGMENT REVENUE AElE
Exfernal revenue ShEas 1571112 49,670 2258 16,043 204 1,639,287
Segment profit DEba 339,027 15,983 512 3,365 17 358,904
Other income EtlA 46,765
Other gains and losses EtbERER 2199
Adminisirative expenses THREY (185,178
Finance costs RENK 936)
Profit before faxation BHRAET 291,754

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Segment revenues and results (Contd)

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-T—+tF+-A=1T—HILF
Z
Hospital Sale of
Hospital ~ management  pharmaceutical
services services products Total
BhlR® BRERRS BmiHE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
[restated) (note (b))
(& E5) (P =E (b))
SEGMENT REVENUE 7 E R S
External revenue Sh BBz 1,378,809 3,135 7,225 1,389,169
Segment profit 7 &b A 328,265 1,424 1,187 330,876
Other income H AU A 32,694
Other gains and losses Hth eas 18 (18,500)
Administrative expenses TR (126,994)
Profit before taxation B 150 31 % A 218,076
Notes: Bt 5

()  Operation in rehabilitation and other healthcare services was acquired in April
2018.

(b)  Sale of pharmaceutical products commenced in July 2017.
There were no infer-segment sales during both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of other income, other
gains and losses, administrative expenses and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Except as disclosed above, no other amounts are regularly provided to the
CODM and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

@ FEMEMBERBZENR 2
—N\FmAYKE -

Al

bl  HEEZAR_FT-—LFLARMK-

AP EF & AR E -

>

a7 ER G St R B 3 FTa A
SESTBRMER - 2 8@ A5 S D
ESEREUAYE A - 3 ) B E A A, -
Hit W R EE - THRAX R E X
Ao E RSB R RBFET2
BT ETELEARARENTESA -

Bk £ CRTIEE SN - 3 M H Al RRE
RETIBELZREE RALEZT
HE—FDH -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Segment assets and liabilities

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Geographical information and information about major customers

All revenue are generated in the PRC where all of the non-current assets
of the Group (except for investment in unlisted fund classified as financial
assets at FVTPL/AFS investment) are also located in the PRC. The Group has
a highly diversified patient portfolio. No single patient contributing over 10%

of the Group'’s total revenue during both years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

FTERERRERBESOINEEE
Efftﬂkﬁﬁoﬂrﬂiﬁll"*ﬁéﬁ&
*EELT:%E ST AATBELEEREER
BRDENKRBETEMS WA EHE
B‘f]%%%%iéi*#oﬁt 12 27|53k =

BWEANEABEEES AR

AR RETE  MAKERE
FRBEE (DBARAFEFAERR
MeMEENFLTESRE TAT#
HERERIN AEARFE - KNEE
MmAEAREDR - WEE —KA
FB R0 R E AR R R AR M B RR
10% A L ©

OTHER INCOME 7. HfbgA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Bank and other interest income RIT R H A F B UL A 7,243 1,584
Government subsidies (note) BT 4 B (B 5E) 1,483 2,432
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRGNEREE
B QB R 6,447 -
Investment income from financial assets BAFEAABENECREE,
at FVTPL/AFS investments A EERENRERA 18,344 11,675
Clinical trial and related income B& R a2 58 M 4B B A 2,862 141
Rental income EaL WA 4,728 4,457
Others Hb 5,658 2,405
46,765 32,694

Note: The government subsidies mainly represents the subsidies on costs
incurred for operation of rehabilitation centres and hospitals, research and
development projects, medical related seminars and forums with no special
and unfulfilled conditions attached. The amount for the year ended 31
December 2017 included an one-off government subsidy of RMB2,000,000 in
connection with the successful listing of the Company in 2016.

W%‘IEﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%?&#ﬁ?ﬁi%%ﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬂ@
fﬂ\%#ﬁ’]f@%u& SPERYEE
TIAAE - F*HF?%F‘&F“*AFE
B AR - BE Tt F+ =
A=+ -HLEENSHBEEH
RARRZZE—REXD EHH—
IR BT 478 85 A\ ER 52,000,000 7T ©
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e R R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HftsmKkEiE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARET T
Allowance for credit loss EEFEIEEE (3,503) (3,513)
Loss on disposals of properly, plant and HEWE - WEREHERNEE
equipment (231) (247)
Net exchange gain (loss) [ 5 e (B18) F8 5,933 (14,740)
2,199 (18,500)
FINANCE COSTS 9. BWMERAK
2018 2017
—E-NEF —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Interest on bank loan IRITE XA B 936 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BR¥ A& F
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B B A m R4S NIRRT 511 B &
after charging: EE
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) BEMe (WaEN) 4,132 3,092
Other staff costs: Hfbh8 TR
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEMe (fizEn) 448 195
Other salaries and allowances Bt KERL 426,723 313,406
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RRE AT B K 20,214 14,359
Total staff costs BT @KA 451,517 331,052
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - /= &R BT E 70,259 49,600
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TET A & SR IE 3 1,354 -
Research and development expenditure e = 620 1,094
Operating lease rentals in respect of hospitals ~ E28&FE M EEE R /LA R
and rehabilitation centres KETHERES 31,422 26,356
Auditor's remuneration % A B & 3,148 2,195
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAEAZNTFERA
(representing pharmaceutical products, (PP A &5 m  FEM S E A -
consumables and others used, included AWK AA)
in cost of revenue) 753,776 646,517
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

1.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ N BER -BeTHRAERESH
EMOLUMENTS &

RWEFEETEB L E  REREAE -
TEEEE FTEHLLIRBERE
EARRNRRIEE -BREKEENTARX
EENSSTBALE  TXHBER
S B ERIEARRSITERABATIR
HRE B S -

Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon, Ms.
Wang Aigin and Mr. Lv Yubo are the directors of the Company for both
years. Mr. Chen Wangzhi is also the chief executive of the Group and his
emoluments disclosed below include those for services rendered by him as
the chief executive.

RMEFEH#HELE RUEE
KREBEFERARRELIFMITES -

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai, Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun are the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for both years.

ENRENRRAESE THRAEAH K

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors, chief executive

and supervisors of the Company during the year are as follows: EEOMeFFEOT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances contributions
Fees ek RIKEF Total
we SRR sHEIHR Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T ARBT T ARBT T
For the year ended BE-_Z-N\&
31 December 2018 +tZA=t—-RALtEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wang Junyang TEHEE 360 - - 360
Mr. Chen Wangzhi PREEF ST 360 1,809 25 2,194
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TRESE 360 - - 360
Ms. Wang Aigin ITEHLL 360 120 18 498
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive BAUFRTES:
directors:
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B EE 240 - - 240
Dr. Chen Keji PR EEE 240 = = 240
Mr. Chan Sing Nun PREgTE 240 - - 240
Direcfors' emoluments Note 10)  E E 8% (Kf5£10) 2,160 1,929 43 4132
Supenvisors: 2
Mr. Chen Shaoming PR E - - - =
Mr. Wang Shaofeng IToREE - 187 14 201
Mr. Wang Bingzhi TR EE
(resigned on 2 October 2018) (RZZ—-NF
+AZAEE) - - - -
Mr. Yue Chunyang BEBEE
(appointed on 2 October 2018) (RZZT—N\F
+AZBRZHE) - 242 5 247
Supervisors emoluments (Note 10) 25 =il (Fi5£10) = 429 19 448
BN 2,160 2,358 62 4,580
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ . B BEeTBRAERESH
EMOLUMENTS (Contd) cAC-))
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances confributions
Fees ek RRAER Total
we 2 SHEIfR fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®TT ARBTT ARBTT
For the year ended BHE-Z—+tF
31 December 2017 TZRA=t—HLEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Wang Junyang TEGRE 360 - - 360
Mr. Chen Wangzhi PRAEEAR 52 360 792 38 1,190
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TRERE 360 - - 360
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHrt 360 90 12 462
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive BAERTES:
directors:
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B EE 240 - - 240
Dr. Chen Keiji PRA]#E 5 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Sing Nun PREfTE 240 - - 240
Directors emolument (Note 10)  E E 8% (i z£10) 2,160 882 50 3,092
Supervisors: BEE:
Mr. Chen Shaoming BB LS - - - -
Mr. Wang Shaofeng FToEEE - 181 14 195
Mr. Wang Bingzhi TR EE - - - -
Supervisors emoluments (Note 10) 25 = i< (Fi5E10) - 181 14 195
2,160 1,063 64 3,287

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above are for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The non-executive director's and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above are for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive director
of the Company. No other director of the Company has waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during both years.

EXITRMITESOME D EE IR
ARBRAEEEHREH IR -

EXFRBUIFRITESOME 5L
HERARRFATE FRHM R
M e

BEREEENEFE/ARAIENT

EEMHE - RNMEFEARAER
fEERELFABREET AWML
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

12.

EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS 12.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included one
(2017: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2017:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

EEMWE

FA-AEELEESFHNEE SR
—H(ZFE—EF:—R)EF HHF
R IB &N E XN - FR - R T
MEHE(ZE—tF:mR2) RBARAR
BAEENFRSTHRABNRSHE
EMHFMFROT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 5,550 5,305
Performance related incentive payments IR AE A S 1 3K 2,672 1,235
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RARAE FET B R 23 54

8,245 6,594

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BENHENFATHE :

Number of employees

ER A
2018 2017
—®-N\F  —T—t%

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T, % 1,500,000 7% 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T, % 2,000,000 7 7T,
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T & 3,500,000,% 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T % 4,500,000 8 7T

— N =
[ N

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the director(s) of the Company
or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as
an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for both years.
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. PTSHIBEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Current tox: B AR A -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") B EEATIS R ([ EEPTIER) 62,936 57,348
Overprovision of PRC EIT in prior years BEFERBECEMSH
TR (745) (41)
62,191 56,937
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERTIE (i 5E 25) (1,709) -
60,482 56,937

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the statutory income tax rate of the Company and

its PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

RIFPBECEMERE((EEMEH
B REEMBBRERED - AR
7 N E o BB R B R E R A
REFBRER25% °

FAMNMSHRAX AT RGaED R HE
fll 2 S R A BR B AT S B BRI T

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARET T
Profit before taxation B 5% B g A 221,754 218,076
Tax at EIT rate of 25% 1225% K9P B 1 S FT1S B R A 55,439 54,519
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR B 2 IR S 2 8
for tax purposes 2,262 3,380
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBRANT B LR
for tax purposes (1,959) (157)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHBRIBBENR G E 7,079 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRABTRERANTRIEEE
not recognised (1,594) -
Utilisation of deductible temporary B AAARERAIRERERE
difference previously not recognised = (400)
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (745) (4M)
Income tax expenses TS 5t A 2 60,482 56,937

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

14. DIVIDENDS 4. BRE
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB16 cents per REBEZE_Z-—N\F+HA=+—H
share amounting to approximately RMB54,230,000 in aggregate was FEE AAREREENEBEEZEZZ
declared and paid by the Company during the year ended 31 December —tF+Z A=+ —HLEFENKRE
2018. REBBRARBID  AHOARE

54,230,000 7T °

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend of RMB16 RmEMEERE  AAREFESR
cents per share amounting to approximately RMB53,503,000 in aggregate IREARRNABHRAKREFGRARE6
has been proposed by the directors of the Company which is subject to o #1A £ AR 53,503,000 7T © BEAEF
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual MG RITHRRBFKg LEARAQA
general meeting. MRERBL TR - IRAIVEE o

15.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BRER

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

ARFARE ABETRERBFER
AT BB

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Earnings: BAH
Profit for the year attributable to the owners ARETESRABF AR R
of the Company for the purpose B AEIEFE AT
of calculating earnings per share 167,943 156,592
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—tF
Number of shares: ‘BB
Weighted average number of ordinary ARETEERERANH
shares for the purpose of calculating TR NAE T &
basic earnings per share 334,394,000 334,394,000

No diluted earnings per share has been presented since there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

HREMBEFERLBERTELLE R
B B EZS|BREERN -

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. % BERZRE
Leasehold Medical Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT HE#E BENE N HE EEIR @5t

RMBO0O  RMBO000  RMBOOO  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMBO000  RWMBO000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

cosT AR
At1January 2017 R-E—+F-F—H - 166,568 336,122 82,412 1,634 99,686 696,422
Additions AE - 10,510 54532 14,065 5 43,724 122,982
Disposals e - - (6,119) 1,340) (678 - (8,137)
Transfer BZ - 77,089 - - - 77,089) -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F

+ZA=1+-8 - 254167 384,535 95,237 11,007 66,321 811,267
Acquisifions of subsidiaries Uz E& B A 7]

(Note 27) (MsE27) 205,100 5,667 75,150 10,13 1422 25,000 329,452
Additions RE - 3,748 78,607 13,059 1,348 32,942 129,704
Disposals HE - - 12,445) (2,342) (55) - 14,842)
Transfer 6 - 799 - - - 799) -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E

+-F=1+-8 205,100 264,381 525,847 116,067 13,722 123,464 1,248 581
DEPRECIATION nE
At1January 2017 RZE—tF-Hf-H - 54,395 226,271 47,095 7,664 - 335,425
Provided for the year ERNEE - 12,832 28,958 6,953 857 - 49,600
Eliminated on disposals i & A5 % 44 - - (6,025) 1,288) (554) - (7,867)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F

+ZA=1+-8 - 67,227 249,204 52,760 7,967 - 377,158
Provided for the year FREE 2215 14,309 49,495 9,856 1384 - 70,259
Eiminated on disposals (&K 48 - - 10,953) [2.218) (55) - 13.226)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\&

+ZA=1-8 2215 81,536 280,746 60,398 9,296 - 434191
CARRYING VALUES RRE
At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\E

+ZRA=1-8 202,885 182,845 245,101 55,669 4,426 123,464 814,390
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F

+ZA=1-8 - 186,940 135,331 42477 3,040 66,321 434,109

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd) 6. Y% BENRE#E)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction P RE REE (ERTIRRN)
in progress, are depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates BERAERERTIFRERITE
per annum:
Buildings Over the shorfer of the term of the lease, or BF A A5k 50 FF & R
50 years G R
Leasehold improvement 10 - 20 years MERE 102204
Medical equipment 5-10 years BERE 58104
Office equipment 5-10 years WARE 5Z104F
Motor vehicles 5 years E 5%
17.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 7. EAEENRK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

CARRYING VALUE R
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27(b)) U B8 — I BT B A &) (M9 5 27(b)) 155,000 -
Released to profit or loss during the year FREE LB (1,354) -
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—H 153,646 -
The amount represents prepayment of rentals for leasehold land situated in SHEELNPFENEE TN EETE
the PRC. 3R o
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REBMEWFAIEZDN -
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

Current portion mENER 3,248 -
Non-current portion FERBHD 150,398 -
153,646 -

—
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

GOODWILL B
RMB'000
ARET T
COST 5%N
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries: BB AR EELEATEIA
— acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group — W HEREE (&R MM 270)
(defined in Note 27(a)) 56,601
— acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital — — 4 & B0 10 B B8 B (FF & R 5% 27(b)
(defined in Note 27(b)) 125,412
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—N\F+_HA=+—H 182,013
For the purpose of impairment assessment, the goodwill of RMB56,601,000 MR ES M S WELZRER

arising from the acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group has been allocated to
the cash-generating unit of rehabilitation and other healthcare services
business. In addition, the goodwill of RMB125,412,000 arising from the
acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital has been allocated to the
cash generating unit of hospital services business. At 31 December 2018,
the directors of the Company conducted reviews of the carrying values of
the cash generating unit of rehabilitation and other healthcare services
business and the cash generating unit of hospital services business relating
to the operations of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (the “Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital CGU") containing the goodwill and determined that
there is no impairment of the CGUs.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit of rehabilitation and
other healthcare services business has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management for the next five years.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using 3.0% growth
rate. A pre-tax discount rate of 12.7% is used for this cash generating unit
and derived using risk-free rate, the market return and cash generating unit
specific factors. The key assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates which are estimated based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market. The directors of the Company believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of this cash generating unit to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this cash generating unit.

E@Eiﬁ’]AEﬁ%SééO]OOOEE@Fﬁ@
NEEREREME %‘Hlﬁk%%‘miﬁ
i?iﬁu ItE o - U BE RO
F B*Fiaﬁ/\ﬁﬁmzsmoooﬁ?ﬁ
DEEERREESNRESESE
$1‘ZOEA_f NF+—_A=+—8"
ARREEEHREREMEERL
¥BReELEBENUMNEMANRKEE
ZFAHaP/L,\mlEr ﬁﬁ’ﬁm KEHEE&%
BIReELEEM ([REOMERERR
HeELESEMN]) (REHE) EITEHN -
WETHMERSEEEMRE-

BRERHGBERBXBRASELE
EA BB RIEEREENE
B -ZAtBEEREREEEHEDN
ARAEEMHEENR S RERA -
BB T F B H IR SR E M 3.0%/ 18
R -ZREEEEMEMA127%
B A AT BT IR R 0 X {E R A L B M) K
‘ﬁ%@a&&&ﬁ%?iﬁ@ﬂﬂ%i%

S -TEBRRITERELBATRLER
RZELREREBBEEMNLTS
ARRBICHTEREE - KRAFEEFR
B EMZERJROIMEEAGEE
BT eBUZReELBUNARKR
HEBBZREELEUMNA KD
TH e

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

18.

19.

GOODWILL (Conta) 18. BE#)
The recoverable amount of the Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital CGU BEOMERBRRSEEBELAA
has been determined based on a value in use calculation. The calculation We B HIRBEEREBETEET
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by ZTEFEREREEEMAENRRN
the management for the next eight years. Cash flows beyond the eight- FHUBHEENRESRETAA - BB N
year period are extrapolated using 3.0% growth rate. A pre-tax discount FHMBRESREEA30%HEREE
rate of 12.8% is used for this cash generating unit and derived using risk- BT - 2R S ELEEMFER128%MTA]
free rate, the market return and cash generating unit specific factors. The AR 2 - 90 AR EL B A 2R W5 UK
key assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount rates which are aELBeELEBMNEERESGE
estimated based on past practices and expectations of future changes FTEBIEERERBAMAERE  Z
in the market. The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably EhERERBATENRMSGRRE
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the tRBEBRHEE ARAEERA £
aggregate carrying amount of this cash generating unit to exceed the A% EBREAEMSIEAEEHET
aggregate recoverable amount of this cash generating unit. GENZEEAEUNREKREER
BZEeELESMMNR]KRESEE -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITORLOSS/  19. 1R AFEIT ABZNEMEE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS SAHEERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AREFTT
Unlisted fund (note (i) FEEMED (M) 23,162 16,275
Porffolio investment fund (note (ii)) REEEES () 53,980 51,185
Structured bank deposits (note {iii)) AERE R T 7 K (BT & i) 402,000 491,840
479,142 559,300
Analysed as: Pamii =
Current Vi) 479,142 543,025
Non-current &N - 16,275
479,142 559,300
Notes: Bt 5

(i) The unlisted fund represents an investment in equity securities of an unlisted
company in the PRC and is measured at fair value.

(ii) The Group invested into a portfolio investment fund with a fund manager in
Hong Kong for investment returns. The portfolio includes a mixture of cash
and shares which are primarily listed in Hong Kong and is measured at fair
value.

[il  The Group invested into structured deposits with a bank in the PRC for
investment returns. Majority of these structured deposits are with maturities of
less than six months and the principal is generally renewed when matured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

20. FEURBRFR N HAtb B W R IR

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARET T
Accounts receivables FEUTBR 3R 186,063 102,705
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEERG (9,573) (7,668)
176,490 95,037
Prepayments to suppliers TE A 4 FE P R IE 1,715 5,267
Deposit paid for an investment (note (il) B —EREN R & () = 5,000
Loan receivables (note (i) FEWUE R (P RE ) = 100,000
Interest receivables FE UL FI B 1,048 6,066
Others Hb 17,763 8,138
207,016 219,508

Analysed as: Paxii= I
Current L&D 207,016 214,508
Non-current (note i)} JEFED (BT REG) - 5,000
207,016 219,508

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The amount of RMB5,000,000 as at 31 December 2017 represented the
deposit paid for the acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group (defined in Note 27(al).
The acquisition was completed and deposit was utilised on 1 April 2018.

In June 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company granted an
unsecured loan of RMB50,000,000 to Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
(defined in Note 27(b)), a hospital managed by the Group before it was
subsequently acquired by the Group in August 2018. In December 2016,
the Group further provided an unsecured loan facility of RMB50,000,000
to Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital, of which Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital had made the first drawdown of RMB30,000,000 in the same
month. In January 2017, Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital had made the
second drawdown of RMB20,000,000. The loans provided to Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital were interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 0.42%
per month and repayable within twelve months from the drawdown date.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital and the loan receivables became part of the
intragroup assets and eliminated in full on consolidation.

O

(i)

(ii)

RZE—+E+_A=+—HBAEH
A ER ¥ 5,000,000 7T 7 3% T 35 Bt U BB
TRHEZRE®E (TERLWF2700) X
MmEl€ - ZBERBE =K BT ER
“E-)\FWA—HBEHHHE -

R-ZE—RNENA ARF2EMN
BRARARBOMERER (EHER
WaE27) (—ER=ZZFE—NFNA
HASEEEBKENBRASEEER
7 B BT ) 45 T A R # 50,000,000 7T Y
M|ERER - R_ZT—XRE+=-A -
N B — 25 m RO I R 5 BT
12t A R # 50,000,000 7T K B E R &
FoRBOMNERERRA B XIR
& B AR #30,000,0007T - A= F
—tF—F BRLONERERE=
IRIRELA B ¥ 20,000,000 7T © 12 it F
BHLOMERBERNERIZRET
FZEFH042%5 8 - WARIEEA
HEAREANEANE - HEZZ
—N\F+_A=Z+—RAILFE A&
E R R L ME R B - ERER
RAEDSEEMEETREE AR
B LABREY o
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20. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (contd)

The individual patients of the Group would usually settle payments by
cash, credit cards or governments’ social insurance schemes. For credit
card payments, the banks will normally settle the amounts approximately
30 days after the transaction date. Payments by governments’ social
insurance schemes will normally be settled by the local social insurance
bureau or similar government departments which are responsible for the
reimbursement of medical expenses for patients who are covered by the
government medical insurance schemes ranged from 30 to 90 days from
the transaction date. Corporate customers will normally seftle the amounts
within 90 days after the transaction date by bank transfers.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables, net of allowance
for credit loss, presented based on the revenue recognition date at the end
of the reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE208F12A3NHILFE

20. FEUNBRF I H At B R IR (2)

i

AEEOEABA—BRARE  EH
THBALRAEIHE - HRNEAR
X RITBEEER S A HKL30
REBERR - BBBT O RET B
B AAPEAEMERBXBER
HOEBF BB RIRET S AREE
BRXOBEURFRMN  aX5E 8
I FIOEIORANLEE - RRITFP K
—RN R H B H1EI0ORAIARTTE R
FABERE -

ERWREHRKAERENETNE
WERR (IR E BB ERE) NERER D
RN

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 30 days 30 KA 115,761 71,637
3110 90 days 31£90K 21,351 14,379
9110 180 days 91 £ 180K 25,954 4,102
18110 365 days 181 365X 12,847 2,802
Over 365 days HBiE 365K 577 2117
176,490 95,037

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of
accounts receivables and considers the debts that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality. Receivables that were neither past
due nor impaired related to the customers for whom there was no history
of default.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s accounts receivables
balance are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of RMB39,378,000
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMB13,424,000 has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default.

As at 31 December 2017, 91% of the accounts receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring atfributable under the
internal credit scoring system used by the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s accounts receivables
balance are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of RMB9,021,000
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses accounts
receivables’ aging to assess the impairment for its accounts receivables
except for accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance
schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors of which ECL are assessed
individually. These receivables consist of a large number of small patients
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the patients’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables based on the
transaction date which are past due but not impaired:

20.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

FEE U B R B LAt FE WK FRIE (42)

ERAKBEERERRERN—F5D
7K 55 [ {50 P LT Bl 35 Y B e 2R R A L
U AR R B RE - R BT &
Rt SRR E TEREER
BEBFEOERBERB AR -
ZERMERHKEAR LRERE
B/ NEBENK - ZFRERERBR
A WIS A BN 2L -

AT 2RIER S EHE B EEF R E
B LB 35 0 BR B D AT

2017
—T—+F
RMB’'000
ARBT T
9110180 days 91E 180K 4,02
18110 365 days 1812 365K 2,802
Over 365 days HBiE 365K 2117
9,021

Movement in the allowance for credit loss EEGERENSH
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREEF T AREF T
At the beginning of the year F9) 7,668 4,155
Loss allowance recognised BRI E 3,503 3,513
Write-off 55 (1,598) -
At the end of the year FR 9,573 7,668

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the allowance for credit loss were
individually impaired accounts receivables with aggregated balance of
RMB9,573,000 (2017: RMB7,668,000) as the management considered
these outstanding balances were uncollectible. The Group does not hold
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts and other receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 34(bliii).

R-E—N\ER-_ZFT—+F+_-H
—+t—H EEFEREEAERNRE
FE U BR 3Kk - 4B 45k A A R #9,573,000
TT(ZZE—+F: AR¥7,668,0007T) °
AEEERAZS REEERELK
O] AREBEWRAZELERISEIRIRR ©

BE_Z-N\F+_A=+t—HItF

2 # JE Y B 3% K L b 8 MK R TR 18 Y
fE 5 15 B0 B & 34(bllii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

21.  FIXED BANK DEPOSIT/RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES/BANK 21 EMRITER ZMHBIR
BALANCES AND CASH ﬁ%/ RITHRHBRRE
At 31 December 2018, the fixed bank deposit carried fixed interest rate at RZE-NF+ZA=T—08 " ' EH
3.20% per annum with original maturity at 3 years and is classified as non- HRATTF S & F & % 3.20% ¢ J?i'l
current assets since their remaining maturity is over 12 months from the BHEA3IF MARTHRITFERD
end of the reporting period. BT EEH BB WS HAMERE2
AANE B ERIERBEE -
Restricted bank balances represented (i) deposits required by Dongguan SR B ERIT A R R AR B B o ZiA17rD<
Social Insurance Bureau which are based on annual assessment on the BREATE FREEEANFER
medical service quality of the hospitals, such deposits will be discharged EERBERTHAETE  ZTFX ?H
upon completion of the annual assessment; and (i) proceeds from the TR R AT Al 12 AR IR - DA R (ii) B A
initial public offering of the Company’s H Shares remitted to PRC banks, the PERITAELEBZARNEERE
usage of which is subject to relevant approval. The restricted bank balances B ERARAEERRFIHRFTSHIE -
carried fixed interest rate ranging from 0.30% to 0.35% (2017: 0.30% to RZE-NF+ZA=+—10 %R
0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. HIER 1T R L N T 0.30% £0.35% (=
T—+F FMENTF0.30%=0.35%)
B & E F A EE R
Bank balances carried prevailing market rates which ranging from 0.00% RITAEBRIETSRITNERGTE - R
t0 0.35% (2017: 0.00% to 3.80%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. Z-N\F+ZA=+—8 FHEN
F0.00%=£0.35% (= F —+F : FF|
N F0.00% £ 3.80%) °
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AREFTT
Pharmaceutical products Bm 28,476 29,661
Consumables and others FEM K E At 16,882 14,863
45,358 44,524

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

FEAY BR AR R HAth B Y FRIR

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT

Accounts payables FEATBRIR 263,927 275,622
Accrued expenses R X 77,541 68,919
Receipts in advance (note) TEYERE (FIaE) 73,182 41,824
Payables for acquisition of property, BB - BB MR B R 508

plant and equipment 54,460 16,241
Other tax payables H fth fE T 1R 18 3,129 3,979
Provision for medical dispute claims BREAUADRERE 1,280 503
Others Efth 8,320 5,498
Other payables H b &~ R 217,912 136,964
Total accounts and other payables JRE AT BR 30 B EL A JE < RIB 42 58 481,839 412,586

Note: Included in the balance are advances from social insurance which represent
operating cash of RMB42,831,000 (2017: RMB16,625,000) advanced from
the PRC government for the daily operations of the hospitals operated by the
Group.

The credit period of accounts payables is ranged from 30 to 90 days from
the invoice date.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payables based on the date
of receipt of goods:

MIEL M ABREELSRBET - BER
TEBFRAEERESERRKNAR
EEREKEHE S A K 42,831,000
T (ZZE—+F: AE%16,625000

JT) e
FENRERRMEAEEEZEA BB
F30E 90K -

AN E B BNEMNERROIERE DT
R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARET T ARBETTT

Within 30 days 30RMAK 66,394 69,988
31to 90 days RIENIFS 94,213 92,977
9110180 days 91E 180K 64,499 76,910
18110 365 days 181E 365K 20,769 20,565
Over 365 days BB 365K 18,052 15,182

263,927 275,622

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

23.

24.

25.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)

Included in other payables is provision for medical dispute claims which the
Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising from its
ordinary course of business. The following is the movement in provision for
medical dispute claims:

23.

FE A BR AR I HLAth B S FRIE (42)

S\ A B R 0 B8 AL 6 B 1
% AAREEAREMESRAS
Y iBRSEANETBEMGTE
2 AR - A T AR RS R
BENED

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

At the beginning of the year REFA) 503 477
Provision for the year FREE 1,462 808
Utilisation of the provision BRBE (685) (782)
At the end of the year RER 1,280 503

AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a shareholder represents amount due to Kanghua
Group. The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary represents
amount due to F 5t 5 12 & A& 12 & A R 2 7], the non-controlling
shareholder of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (defined in Note
27(b)). Except for RMB21,000,000 as payable for acquisition of Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital, the remaining amount is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

24.

i —BIRR RN ER
B — B I R AR R AR IR

N —BBRERFKELSENFEESEN
FH - KA RIEZIEE - EEA
RERRERER -

e — P B & B ) — & SRR R IR R
TRIE A R A B O [ B S R B ) JE
PRI R (E& R 27b) R iE
BIRE AR QB FIAE bR WE RE O
&7 8 Bt 5 B9 AR 5 21,000,000 7T

S B AEER RERAREX

EE -
DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IEFERIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and UTRFABZNETEZELEHIBEAE
movements thereon during the year: (BE)REES) :
Pre-operating
Accelerated expenses
tax written off
depreciation S & E AT Total
bR E T E B Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTT AR®BTT
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 27(b)) 4 & K & 2 & (B 3£ 27(b) 26,456 (4,262) 22,194
Credit fo profit or loss (Note 13) FFAEE (FEE13) (231) (1,478) (1,709)
At 31 December 2018 R-BE-N\F+-_A=+—H 26,225 (5,740) 20,485
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25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB39,057,000 (2017: RMB17,270,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of such tax losses.
The unused tax losses can be carried forward up to five years from the year
in which the loss was originated, to offset future taxable profits.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible temporary difference
amounted to approximately RMB22,962,000 (2017: RMB667,000). A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the deductible
temporary difference of RMB22,962,000 (2017: nil) at the end of the
reporting period.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised at 31 December 2017 in respect
of the deductible temporary difference of RMB667,000 due to unpredictable
profit stream.

SHARE CAPITAL

25.

26.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

IEFERL IR (47)

R-_E—NF+_/F=+—8"
AEBBRFERABTEBBRHARKE
39,057,000 L (ZZE—+F: AR¥
17,270,000 70) - AT 3K 85 R R A F o 5%
ERBEEEBTEBERELCHEEE -
REAMFEBEBEANAELEEBEE Y
BRERZAFEE  NIEHERKOE
M FTISEE -

RZE—NF+_A=+—8 %
BTt EENAARE
22,962,000 (ZE—+F : AR
667,00070) e IR EHE R - E s AT K
MERMEE3E AR 22,962,000 (=
T—+F B)ERAECHRBEEE -

RZE—+F+A=+—80 @R
AAFERIFE R - R AN E A
ZE AR 667,000 THERIELEFIEE
EO

R 7R

Number of

RERHBE

domestic

Number of
H shares
HER & H

‘000
TR

shares Share capital
B 7
RMB’000

ARBTT

‘000
T

R-ZF—LtF—A—H-
—Z—+tF+-A=+—H

At 1January 2017, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018

r—F—-\F+-_A=1+—~H

250,000

84,394 334,394
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

27. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group

On 1 April 2018, the Group acquired 57% equity interest in Z2 ZIHE Fx
BRI A B R /A F) (Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui
Hualin”), a PRC entity, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
“Anhui Hualin Group”) by way of (i) an equity transfer of 49.71% equity
interest in Anhui Hualin from the vendor, an independent third party,
at a consideration of RMB58,660,000; and (i) inject RMB20,000,000
capital into Anhui Hualin.

Anhui Hualin Group is engaged in the provision of rehabilitation and
other healthcare services in the PRC. On the acquisition date, Anhui
Hualin directly and indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary)
holds sponsor interests in certain private non-enterprise entities in
the PRC, including one class Il rehabilitation hospital, one class |
general hospital, nine rehabilitation centres for the disabled and one
vocational training school in Anhui province, the PRC.

This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
RMB56,601,000.

27. WK A

(a)

Yo 8 e B AR S 1

R-IE—NFNA—H K&EE
WE— PR EELRERSE
BIREABRAR ((ZHER]
NEKBAR (5K [ZHBER
EE]) BM5TREAE - F XA
RE AR 58,660000THE
(—BBULF=7) ELLTHIER
49 71% A% #E B9 PR AE B8 2E 0 R i) |
TR EE AR 20,000,000
5T o

LREREEED RN EREE
BREMBERE RNEEA -
LREREBE2ENBRARE
EMEZRETEZHERMIELE
BuUmBREnEER  BETE
THEAN B _MEEER - —
B — AR E B - WEERAKR AR
B R — R EIR I 2R -

ZBRBRBEEEAR - %K
BELANHESBERARE
56,601,000 7T ©

Consideration comprised of: REBIE:
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash paid during the year FRNENBES 53,660
Capital injected into Anhui Hualin FARRMLTHERTE
during the year 20,000
Deposit paid during the year ended HE_Z—+tF+A=1+T—HILFE
31 December 2017 =R 5,000
78,660

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB707,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year.

Y BB AR RPN AR % 707,000 T2
HEREPHG IRFRAZHEAR
@ R E MR SRR AT TIRRX

RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a)

Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group (Cont'd)

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

e R ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

27. WHEKIEB A=) (&)
(o) WEZHERESE)
R H RN EERAEBA

are as follows: FEMT :
RMB'000
AREBT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 9,535
Inventories rEe 1,237
Accounts and other receivables P LT B AR e L A B W R IR 19,205
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 2,568
Accounts and other payables JE AT BR 35 % EL At JE <P 3R IE (10,330)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder JE A — R BB A R ) — & FE IR AR
of a subsidiary &R R IE (3,515)
18,700
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 18): W E £ B A (Kisk18) -
RMB’000
ARBT T
Consideration transferred EHEERE 78,660
Add: non-controlling interests o IR R A (L BUEERR A 43%)
(43% of Anhui Hualin) (note) (B E) 16,641
Less: net assets acquired B TS B E R E (18,700)
Less: increase in net assets pursuant
to capital injection B B EEEFEEN (20,000
56,601

Note: The non-controlling interests (43%) in Anhui Hualin recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to their proportionate
share of net assets acquired of RMB18,700,000 and the capital injection

of RMB20,000,000 from the consideration.

e R B R RN RER
IR RS (A3% L EH
RELEFIRBEEFEAR
#18,700,000 7T & JE B A R ¥
20,000,000 7T 2 Lt filET & ©

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

27. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(@) Acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group (Contd)

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition for the year:

27. WHEFIEB A=) (&)
() WEBLZBERERE)
FERNWEEENESRTEE

RMB'000
AREETT
Consideration paid in cash IR & ZRERE 78,660
Less: deposit paid during the year ended W HE—ZE—tF+=-A=1+—H
31 December 2017 (Note 20) IFFEERMET 2 (Fi7E20) (5,000)
Less: capital injection in Anhui Hualin in cash W R &M RERFE (20,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : AT SR € IR & S E WL &H (2,568)
51,092
Included in the profit for the year of the Group is RMB2,510,000 THEFEBEHEARE
attributable to Anhui Hualin Group. Revenue for the year includes 2,510,000 ﬁ;ﬁ-)\z}xﬁ 1) 5 5
RMB49,670,000 that is atfributable to Anhui Hualin Group. Mo FARRBREREERSE
FE1E A R % 49,670,000 7T ©
Had the acquisition of Anhui Hualin been effected at the beginning of MKELZRERRAFEILD
the current year, the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year SERK  BIFE R ARE @ R Uk 25 4B 58
would have been RMB1,650,855,000, and the amount of profit for the & A A K #1,650,855,000 T

year would have been RMB159,475,000.

(b)  Acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital

On 1 August 2018, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in 25 £ 2 i
= R0 B % B BT A R 2 7] (Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.) ("Zhonglian Cardiovascular

mEANEEMNEEHERARE
159,475,000 7C °

(b)  WEEREE O MERER
—N\FENA—H *x%£H

WE— R R B EES
B MR ER AR A R (R

Hospital”), a PRC entity, by way of an equity transfer of 60% equity DIMERER]) #60% 3% - 7

interest in Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital from the vendor, an
independent third party, at a consideration of RMB270,000,000.
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital is engaged in specialised
cardiovascular hospital operation in the PRC.

This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was

RMB125,412,000.

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

27. \WEEKHIB D TE (&)

(b)  Acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (Contd) (b) Uk B8 B0 I B R BB (48)
Consideration comprised of: REBE
RMB'000
ARBEFTT
Cash paid during the year FHNENBES 249,000
Consideration payable at 31 December 2018 RZE-NFF+_A=T—BEMNRKE
lincluded in amount due to a non-controlling (BIETE S — M B A R M — B IEIERR
shareholder of a subsidiary) (Note 24) A& R FRIE) (Mi5E 24) 21,000
270,000

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB271,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year.

U B E R AN A R 271,000 T EHE
E%ﬁﬁ@%% WHRFRAZEEE
wHEEMEEWERANERATHRAY

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition RERHBERANEERABERATE
are as follows: m
RMB'000
AREBT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 312,917
Prepaid lease payment FET & FIE 155,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, g7 E BERSREN TS
plant and equipment 5,834
Inventories FE 3,669
Accounts and other receivables JFE W AR 5 % EL i JE WK 68,721
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRS 5,600
Accounts and other payables JE AT AR 7R B EL At JE A< R IE (37,374)
Amount due to the Group JE T AN &R B 5RIB (104,489)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FET— FEEJ Fﬁ% NAle) — B IR
of a subsidiary &% B 5K (86,704)
Bank loan (note (il) RITER (Pﬁ E0) (60,000
Deferred tax liabilities ELEMIEEE (22,194)
240,980
BEREEEERMD AR AR 472018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

27. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)  Acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital (Contd)

27. \WHEHIB A TE] (&)

(b) W BE R B0 B e B B (48)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 18): W bE B A R & (PR 18)
RMB’000
AREEF T
Consideration transferred BHEERE 270,000

Add: non-controlling interests (40% of Zhonglian

AN : SEERRRAE AR (RREO 0B S B8 B 1Y

Cardiovascular Hospital) (note i) 40% (BT & (i) 96,392
Less: net assets acquired B T ERE (240,980
125,412

Noftes:

(i) Subsequent to the acquisition, the bank loan of RMB60,000,000 was
settled during the year ended 31 December 2018.

(ii) The non-controlling interests (40%) in Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital recognised at the acquisition date were measured by
reference to their proportionate share of net assets acquired.

Net cash outflows arising on acquisition for the year:

P 5L -

0 REEKE RITERBA
R 60,000,000 THEZE =%
—NEFZA=+—BHIEFE

A
BHEE -

i) PAUEE B AR R A RO M
7 B8 B 2 FE 4% B4 3 (40%) T
2EHEMBBEESFEZL
BIEtE -

FRUBEENRSRLFRE

RMB’'000

ARBFT

Consideration paid in cash NIB &S HERE 270,000
Less: consideration payable as at W RZE—NF+ZA=+—AH

31 December 2018 (Note 24) Z IERTRAE (K5t 24) (21,000

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : AT SR € MR & S E WL &# (5,600)

243,400

Included in the profit for the year of the Group is loss of
RMB29,441,000 attributable to Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital.
Revenue for the year includes RMB16,185,000 is attributable to
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital.

Had the acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
been effected at the beginning of the current year, the total
amount of revenue of the Group for the year would have been
RMB1,657,976,000, and the amount of profit for the year would have
been RMB116,126,000.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group
had the Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the directors of the Company have
calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment acquired
on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial accounting for the

—\ business combination rather than the carrying amounts recognised
in the pre-acquisition financial statements and accounted for related
deferred tax effect.
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FHONMNEREREMAREK
29,441,000 ST E BT AR EBE M TR
wH e FRKREBERBEOMERE
B FE 1 A FR 516,185,000 7T °

s Ut BE SR Bt 0 1D B 955 B8 Be A AN E JE 4
Bk IFRAEBNRZERES
& A A R11,657,976,000 7T © i E K
RYEA S B2 A AREE116,126,000 7T °

REEAREE N[ HE | Uas Fom e -
fiah S5 B 0 I B S R e 1 AR R E M) 4R UK
BoARREFCEREHA MO
S athE B E A M R E W IR AT
BWA AN REEEEED
% BFE MEEH T E IR AR ERE R
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28.

29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, acquisition of property, plant and
equipment was seftled by utilising deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of RMB54,488,000 (2017: nil) during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, acquisition of Anhui Hualin
Group (Note 27(a)) was seftled by utilising a deposit paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries of RMB5,000,000 during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising
from its normal business operations. Except for those disputes with
provision made as disclosed in Note 23, the management of the Group
believes that the final result of other medical disputes with total claims of
RMB9,807,000 (2017: RMB7,143,000) as at 31 December 2018 will not have
a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group and
the amount of outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior to judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in this regard.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the

following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

28.

29.

30.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

FEFRERS

HE-_Z—-N\FE+-_A=+—H8I1F
E WEYE BEAZKEBEDIRFTFA
WKW % - BB MR E T ek
& B ANRES54488000T (ZZF—+
F EPEE -

HE-_Z—-N\FE+-_A=+—081F
BB LTHERER (M:E270) Ty
RERAWEH B AR NHIES
AR 5000000 TE4EHE o

FAREE

AEBEAEESESHNE —REKSE
BREEMNE TEZUD - BRI E23
FrigTEs i S B ER BB
EEEEERER _Z—N\F+=A
=+—H8  F$ R AR¥9,807,0007T (=
T —+4F 0 AREET143,0007T) By E A
BEANHBRRERBETSHAER
MR & BERNERTE M
MESE(E) BEAREAETFEN T
DA SEHET - Eit  NEBIWER
PEVE L A o

REEE
AEEERABA
PSR B R - 7 o B R R AR I R AT

HELHEERA T RRKEEER
FoEEBHBEMT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARBTTT

Within one year —FR 30,949 26,386
In the second fo fifth years inclusive F_FEELFT (RIEEEMT) 140,168 125,355
Over five years AFUE 88,453 118,978
259,570 270,719

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
leasehold land and buildings used for provision of hospital services. These
leases are negotiated for terms ranging from three to ten years with fixed
monthly rental. None of the leases include any contingent rental.

REHENREARERARNIEHRE
BERBE L REFRENNES - &
Bl Z2EHERP=+FT5Y
XHEEAME - EHESREMNK
ARHE= -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

30. OPERATING LEASES (Conta)
The Group as lessee (Contd)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases with Kanghua
Group, the shareholder, and the non-controlling shareholder of 251~ &
Z& Pt ABR 2 7 (Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd.) (‘Renkang Hospital”)
amounted to RMB244,334,000 (2017: RMB270,719,000) which fall due as
follows:

30.

REHE (#)

— \/u

REBEREBA (B)

R-—E—NE+-_A=+—H £&&
EES TS EHERER KK
EHENRAR EPREEEEE
MRECEERAR A FAIEERR
R(CRER]) & AR 244,334,000
T(ZZE—LtF: AR 270,719,000
JC)  EEEAEMT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARBT T
Within one year —FR 28,234 26,386
In the second fo fifth years inclusive E_FZFERF (BEBEERSF) 134,130 125,355
Over five years HFELE 81,970 118,978
244,334 270,719
The Group as lessor REBEEALEHEA

Rental income earned during the year was as follows: FRRIMBSWALT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEF T ARBTIT
Rental income HEUWA 4,728 4,457

Non-cancellable operating leases of the properties at the end of the RBERR ZEMENTATREL
reporting period fall due as follows: EHENT

2018 2017
—E-\F  —EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Within one year —FR 56 53
In the second fo fifth year inclusive F_FEFLF(BIEEREME) 17 73
73 126

The leases of the properties with committed tenants are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1year to 2 years.

—
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31.

32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. BAREIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Capital expenditure in respect of property, RERE M EImEREETH
plant and equipment contracted ERBHEODE
for but not provided in the consolidated B E ok E:Na
financial statements 115,950 82,848
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 32. BRIKBAIETE
The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong REBERBEAERMBEEAKEEKL
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the RIERFE - ZFTEI2EEHRASE
Group, in funds under the control of frustees. The Group contributes 5% of BEE>HARE BEEABENES
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by RE-AEBEARBRBEESFTENEES
employees. For certain employees, the maximum monthly contribution is ERMAEREGTEHARS%NSEIER
limited to HK$1,500 per employee. "R -HNETEE BAZEIE
[RESZEELS00ETT
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of state- AEBMTBENBEAREES ABET
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. 2 E 8B R B R KRN 5T &
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll BB - 5 EH B A FIZARZRINGE
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only MBI NHERIEXNETETED
obligation of the Group with respect to the refirement benefit schemes is to LR RIE - ERBBRAKERNE - K
make the specified contributions. SEHZERKBANGEOKE -—FE
EVEHHEEHR -
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXREKRERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes amount
due to a shareholder and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
disclosed in Note 24, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

24 85 B 52 L 0 A DA AR 75 42 81 9
B L AT - RSB BB AL R
T B K T8 AT AR 7 I 4R
AEENEERE S EFRETE o

AEENEARBREES BEHE
BRM 24 B A — B IRR M —
e /B 2 ] ) — & SR FE AR IR SR 3R (40
BIRe MRS EEY) URARAER
AEIERDE (BREALFER) -

ARAEEEHRRAELARE - FH
ZBEE—#D  ARREFERES
BEARBEBORARER - RIBEAD
AEENEEER AEELEBX
RS - AT AR DA KR AT B 15 3K
BMOREEHTFTHERBERRERE -

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)  Categories of financial instruments

34. €I R

(a)

TR ITEER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBETTT

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEABGHNEREE 479,142 -
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT ENSREE 433,702 -
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREYHIE(BERS

and cash equivalent) MRS EEY) - 611,277
AFS investments AR ERE - 559,300
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 531,360 324,459

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s maijor financial instruments include financial assets at
FVTPL, AFS investments, accounts and other receivables, fixed bank
deposit, restricted bank balances, bank balances and cash, accounts
and other payables, amount due to a shareholder and amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with certain of these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate bank deposit and restricted bank balances
(2017: loan receivables, fixed rate bank balances and restricted

bank balances).

As the inferest rate risks on these amounts are insignificant, no
interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is presented.

(b)

% BhE e E IR B AR R BUR

AEENT2ERTABERA
FEABSNSREE  A#
HERE - IR S E W
I BERTER  XRFIR
TR RTTEHERES - BN
RN EMEAFOR - B —
PR R IR LA K A — ] B 2 )
B —BIFERABERRIE - ZEFE
MTANFBHRERNSOME -
ZEZERT ArE THEBRR M
B A an ] Rk A 5% 35 LB ) BUR 3
Inr - EEEEEMETZE
[\ Bk O AR K B B AR E BB

=Ry
i WEER
FIE R R

BRI TSR RS -
NN EELE SIS
TRHEERNE SR EF
KA -

7R 55 18] 77 4 R [E] 5 A R
RITERLZRGIRITAE
BR(ZT—F BRERR -
B EMERITEBRREZR
BIERITAERR) AR A F(E
A ERE R

MR E LS BN XER
M RE AY K2R
R E R GRRE DA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Market risk (Conta)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency risk aftributable to monetary
assets and liabilities (bank balances and cash, other
receivables and other payables), which are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they related. The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of RMB against
HK$.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
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34. TR I A (#)
b) & EERREIR B AR RBR (8)

(i)

5 E g ()
SME R R

AEEEBRKEESARBE
BNEEBTAINEEIIE
MEBEENBE (RTE
SRR H KA
RE A RN IR 2 SRR
e AEBERS  HIMNE
REREEXRBEARELE
JLEYRR O ©

RZB-NEFER-_FT—+
FH—A=+—A &%
B SN N E A E

FEERmEDT
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B2-N\E —E2—tF IZEBE-NE —ZT—+LF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTRT ARETT
HKS BT 95,890 101,245 247 1,432

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened
against RMB by 5% with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year would have been higher/lower approximately
RMB3,815,000 (2017: RMB3,960,000) mainly as a result
of increase/decrease in net foreign exchange gains on
translation of bank balances and cash, other receivables and
other payables denominated in non-functional currencies of
the relevant group entities.
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e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 34. ERIT A (%)

RN

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contad) bl SERREEBZEREE#E)
(i) Other price risk (i) HAERRR
The Group is exposed fo equity price risk through unlisted fund $ SEBBAFLITEESR
and portfolio investment fund classified as financial assets at EAREESHEGERE
FVTPL (2017: AFS investments). WH CRESWHEAR
?§®$@§+7\E 5 H) Rl

For investment in portfolio investment fund, the composition
of the underlying investment mainly consists of listed equity
securities, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group’s invested in unlisted fund for an investee
operating in manufacturing sector for long term strategic
purposes. The Group has designated a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group’s profit for the year would
increase/decrease by RMB2,316,000 and RMB5,398,000 (2017:
RMB1,628,000 and RMBS5,119,000) respectively if the price of
the unlisted fund and portfolio investment fund had been 10%
higher/lower.

The management considered the remaining balance of
financial assets at FVTPL (2017: AFS investment), represents
structured bank deposits, is not subjected to material price risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Accounts receivables

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end
of each year in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of these assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for the accounts receivables. The
Group assessed the ECL for accounts receivables from the PRC
government's social insurance schemes and certain credit-
impaired debtors individually as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided
loss allowance for accounts receivables with aggregated
balance of RMB3,503,000 as the management considered
those receivables are credit impaired. As at 31 December
2018, allowance for credit loss with an aggregate balance
of RMB9,573,000 represents individually impaired accounts
receivables as the management considered the outstanding
balances from those receivables were uncollectible.

No loss allowance is recognised for the remaining accounts
receivables since the probability of default is not significantly
increased based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward-looking
information, and concluded that there is no significant increase
in credit risk.
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e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE208F12A3NHILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 4. ERMI A #E)

RN

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contad) bl SERREEBZEREE#E)
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd) i) EERRRMETEE)
Accounts receivables (Contd) JEW IR (&)
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the ABEAEREEERR -

Company has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures over the customers to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of each year to ensure that adequate loss allowance is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 62.4% (2017:
55.3%) and 69.4% (2017: 61.4%) of the fotal accounts receivables
was due from the Group’s largest accounts receivable and the
five largest accounts receivables, respectively.

Loan receivables

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to its loan
receivables which are due from the Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital. The directors of the Company considered that the
related credit risk was limited because they regularly monitored
the financial position of the Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
through involvement in its management and operations.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to
acquisition of Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital in Note 27(b),
the loan receivables became part of the intragroup assets and
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made for other receivables
since the directors of the Company consider the probability of
default is minimal after assessing the counter-parties’ financial
background and creditability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)

Fixed bank deposit/restricted bank balances/bank balances

The credit risk on fixed bank deposit, restricted bank balances
and bank balances are limited because the majority of the
counter-parties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the management, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 34, ERIT A ()
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) bl SrRiERERBEREEE)
liv)  Liquidity risk (Contd) iv) REESRR ()
Liquidity tables B A&
Weighted

average  On demand Total

effective  orless than 3months  undiscounted
inferest rate 1month 1-3 tolyear  cash flows Carrying

MEES RERT, months AR KEEEES amount
ERAZE  HMER  123fER Z1E  RE8E REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETR AR®Tn ARMTn AR®TR ARETR

At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\fF
+ZA=1-H
Accounts and other payables  FERTER TR Kt B = 378,474 = - 378,474 378,474
Amount duefo ashareholder B — &R RFA - 682 - - 682 682
Amount due fo anon-controlling ~ fE — i B2 R
shareholder of a subsidiary —RERRRETE - 152,204 - - 152,204 152,204
531,360 - - 531,360 531,360
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+ZA=1-AH
Accounts and other payables  TEfH B3 &Hﬁw&ﬁm - 323,534 - - 323,534 323,534
Amount duefo ashareholder B —AREA - 925 - - 925 925
324,459 - - 324,459 324,459

—
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(c)

Fair value

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12A3BILFE

4. ERMIA#E)

Other than the financial assets carried at fair value as detailed in
the following table, the directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial instruments that are recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.

(c)

AF{E

BRI ED T BN S
BEES  ARAEERH B
B4R G A BB R R AR
mEhERTANEE R
ATEIEE -

Fair values Fair value
as at as at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i i
—E-N\E —E—iF Valuation techniques
+=A +ZA Fairvalue  and key inputs
=+—-H =+-A8 hierarchy  fHERER
Financial assets EREE LT E AT E ATEEE FEHAKE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFTT
Unlisted fund FEMES 23,162 16,275 level 2 Quoted price from a
E 4 financial insfitution
WRERS S RERE
Porffolio investmentfund ~ FHREESD 53,980 51,185 level 2  Quoted price froma
F 4 financial insfitution
HRERS S RERE
Structured bank deposits A& B IERTTIE R 402,000 491,840 level 2 Quoted price from a
B4  financial institution

There was no transfer between Level 2 and other Levels in both years.

REXBREE

RAESREA - 2R REMERNT
ﬁz&ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ °
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e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 35. EEBEEANEBEENER

ACTIVITIES

TRALANEEREEHELNRE
2% ERASMRSEH -BE
ABELNABRRSREIRRR
EREREAFENGEERERER
TOREARELTHRERENARE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
duetoa
non-controlling
shareholder of
a subsidiary Amount
e —M duetoa
HELAR shareholder Dividend Inferest
—REER B —% Bank loan payable payable Total
RRE REFE FITER FERRE FERFIE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR
(Note 24] (Note 24) (Note 27(b) (Note 14)
(Mizx24) (MizE24) (MEE271)) (FizE14)
At January 2017 RZE—t45-A-H - 3179 - - - 3179
Financing cash flows RERERE - (2,254) - (46,783 - (49,037)
Non-cash change FReE
Dividend recognised ERARE - - - 46,783 - 46,783
At 31 December 2017 RZIE—+%
tZA=t-H - 925 - - - 925
Financing cash flows (notel pEREE () 40,985 (243) (60,000] (54,230] (936) (74,424)
Non-cash changes HReED
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERELR 90,219 - 60,000 - - 150219
Payable for acquisition WE-FERBAREM
of a subsidiary TR 21,000 - - - - 21,000
Interest expenses MERX - - - - 936 936
Dividend recognised ERARE - - - 54230 - 54,230
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+-f=+-8 152,204 682 - - - 152,886

BT P — R MY B A B B — & SRR AR
RRENREREBXNEARER
BRI/ FIBARETOFE -

Note: The cash flows from amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

—
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In addition to the amounts due to a shareholder and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Note 24, and transactions, balances and
commitments disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,

36.

e TS ERAR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A3NHIEFE

BARE S R

BRMfaE24 B — R R R —HHE A
A H) — & JE R IR R SRR A R AR & B
BHREAEMBAMBENRS  HH

the Group had entered into the following related party fransactions: RAEESN - ANEBE BT A TS
R
Name of related companies Relationship Nature of transactions 2018 2017
o) NI E ERES RE5ME —E-N\F ZET—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFT
Kanghua Group Shareholder Rental expense 25,106 22,969
RESE e HeRX
Tongli Enterprise Non-controlling Rental expense
shareholder of Renkang
Hospital 3,624 3,387
AAOESE CRR B B MY FE AR AR R HeMx
REmERERIE Company controlled by Landscape mainfenance
BRAQA] Xingye Group (note) expense 33
REmEREMRIRE P 5 2 SR [ 2 o ) 2 ) B AR b R 2
BRATA (Pf3E)
EMRKAMEBERAF Company controlled by Purchase of construction
Xingye Group (note) materials 17 1,151
REmRKAMERARF] P B 5E SR [ o ) 1 ) BEREEMH
(BRFEE)
REMEAERRER Company controlled by Landscape engineering
BRAF Kanghua Group and maintenance
service 780 620

R=meAERER

R R B IR B A 7

B T A2 K 4 & R 7%

BRAT]

Other than those disclosed above, certain subsidiaries of the Group had
provided staff healthcare services to companies controlled by Mr. Wang
Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Ms. Wang Aigin and Mr. Chen Wangzhi, all
of whom are close family members (collectively referred as “Controlling
Shareholders”) and the corresponding aggregate service fees amounted
to approximately RMB120,000 (2017: RMB39,000) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Note: Xingye Group is controlled by one of the Controlling Shareholders.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel includes directors and supervisors. The
remuneration of the key management personnel during the year is
disclosed in Note 11. The remuneration of directors and supervisors
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market tfrends.

B EXFIEBREEN AEESTHE
RAIEMXIEBRE TEEZL -
ITEHLLRREREE (FEH A
MR FERE - S fE R E]) =
B ARIEMHE T EERSE  mMARE
REERENEBEEZE - \E+_-A
=+—HIEFELH R AREEI120,0007T
(ZZ—+tF: AR¥39,0007T) °

P& - L2 o L L e — R AR R P
TREEABHMH

IZEEERRESRES NAF
£ T B E IR E R BRI

N-BEFREFNFHHFTHEZES
REBEARRETSBEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

37. ARATBWIR AR T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BERHE R A 768,596 418,596
Other receivables H b e W s I8 = 5,000
768,596 423,596
Current assefs REEE
Other receivables H b W s I8 65,252 68,013
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABENEREE 400,000 -
AFS investments AHERE - 451,840
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U — RS B B A B FRIE 58,590 55,895
Restricted bank balances ZRAIRITEE 16,947 2,634
Bank balances and cash WITEHRLIES 45,877 162,698
586,666 741,080
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H qth FE A 5RIE 3,622 3,266
Amount due to a shareholder B — R RERIE 682 682
Amount due fo a subsidiary JE — R B A &) 08 162,686 10,459
Amount due fo a non-controlling shareholder & — FE Ff} /B A B9 — & FE 2 A%
of a subsidiary F% 3R F 1A 21,000 -
187,990 14,407
Net current assets REEEFE 398,676 726,673
Net assets EEFHE 1,167,272 1,150,269
Capital and reserves EARRGFEE
Share capital [N 334,394 334,394
Reserves Gt 832,878 815,875
Total equity FERAE 1,167,272 1,150,269




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Conta)  37. RDATIEI AR IR T (&)

Movements in reserves: fEEE -
(Accumulated
losses)
retained
Share Capital Statutory earnings
premium reserve reseve  (RFTEE) Total
B EE BRGEE EERE REEF Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT ARETRT AR%Tr ARETR
(note)
(f5)
At 1January 2017 R-—ZE—tF—H—H 698,214 53,394 - (11,677) 739,931
Profit and fotal comprehensive 4 A3 1| & 2 E LA
income for the year ot - - - 122,727 122,727
Dividend & 2 - - - (46,783) (46,783)
Transfers Wiz - - 473 (473) -
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+-R=+—H 698,214 53,394 473 63,794 815,875
Profit and total comprehensive & R F1 & 2 E U A
income for the year wmEs - - - 71,233 71,233
Dividend [hds - - - (54,230) (54,230)
Transfers i - - 16,624 (16,624) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-RB=+—H 698,214 53,394 17,097 64,173 832,878

Note: According to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company which was
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a
non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used to
offset the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

B eE AR B BUARRD AR - Kb B AR
REAREBEFEGHERMETH
HEM@FHNRHE10%8E T A 5
EFHEES  EERBEHRENRE
M E AR 50% - HM A E S B
BZMBEAZEE ZEHESAUA
REEBEFENER (WA) @K
BRIMAT DL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. B ABIER

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 RARRZZE-—NFRZ-ZZ—LtF
are as follows: TZA=T—HOMBARERDAT
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment/ paid share/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital interest to the Group Principal activities
HMAL/
R/ 28 BEETRER
WEBLEER WER A R/ ERER AEEELRE TEXH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E “E+F ZB-N\F T +%
Directy held
BERE
Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capifal  Registered capital 100% 100%  Operating of hospital
15September 2005 RMB350,000,000  RMB350,000,000
REREERARLA e AMERARE EMEXARK BhEs
ZZTh%E 350,000,000 7 350,000,000
AATHA
Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co,, Lid.* The PRC Registered capifal  Registered capital 57% 57%  Operating of hospital
23 August 2005 RMB60,000,000  RMB60,000,000
RECRERARLA HE dMEAARE AMERARE BhEs
ZZTh%E 60,000,000 7 60,000,000t
NAZt+=8
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC Registered capifal  Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of hospital
Management Co., ltd * 1February 2016 RMBI1,000,000 RMBI1,000,000 management services
RRREREERARARA HE dMEAARE AMERARE Rt BRERRY
5% 11,000,000 7% 11,000,000 70
—R-H
Kanghua Healthcare Management (HK) -~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Provision of management
Company Limited 17 May 2016 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 services
REBBER(BR)FRAA B LER Liak R R RS
“ERE 10,000/ 7T 10,0005 7C
EATLHA
RETREBEERAT The PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
14 April 2017 RMBS5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 products
RETREBEERAA e AMERARE HMEXARK EnHE
“EtF 5,000,000 ¢ 5,000,000 7T
MA+mA
REREREEFRELS The PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 100% 100%  Inactive
BRAT 15 June 2017 RMB100,000,000  RMBI00,000,000
REREBRELXRELES E AMERARYE EMEAARY TEXB
ARARA “T-tF 100,000,000 100,000,0007
AATHH
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HZE20185F12 3B ILEE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 38. MIBABER (&)
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment/ paid share/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary ‘gerohon registered capital interest to the Group Principal activities
%ml/ )
) R/ &8 BRTRME - o
WELRER ﬂ%&ﬁﬂ Rt/ ARER AEEREGRE TEEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-)\F “2—tF BN —T+F
RRRERERBERERAR The PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
9 August 2017 RMBI0,000,000  RMB10,000,000 )
RRRERERBERERAR e AMERARE HMETARE REER
T F 10,000,000 7 10,000,0007¢
NAAE
RRREREREREABRAR The PRC Registered capital N/A 100% N/A  Invesiment holding
16 January 2018 RMB80,000,000 N N )
RRREREREREABRAR El EMERARE T TER  RERR
—Z-N\F 80,000,000 7
R W=
Chongaing Kanghua Zhonglian The PRC Registered capifal N/A 60% N/A  Operating of hospifal
Cardiovascular Hospit fal Co,, Lid * 10 June 2014 RMB270,000,000 N R
EEREZBONERER AR AR TRERARE Tam TR BhiEsg
—Z-mE 270,000,000 7T
~ATA
/no’//ec//y held
AERE
P REZRBABRAF The PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 100% 100%  Inactive
27 September 2017 RMBS5,000,000 _ RMB5,000,000 \
RECREZRBARLA e AMERARE HMETARE EEXK
—E—tF 5,000,000 7¢ 5,000,000 7T
AR=frA
FEREEZRBEARAF The PRC Registered capital  Registered capital 100% 100%  Inactive
7 November 2017 RMBS5,000,000 _ RMB5,000,000 \
RERERZRBARLA e AMERARE HRETARE LEXK
—Z—+% 5,000,000 7¢ 5,000,000 70
T-A+tH
Anhui Hualin Medical Investment The PRC Registered capital N/A 57% N/A~ Investment holding/provision
Co., ld.* 19 December 2016 RMB23,390,000 of rehabilitation and other
} ) ) N N heolthcare services
CHERBERAGRAA #@ AMERARE T T “h/h HERTE R H A
T—"F 23,390,000 7T Eﬁﬂ
f H ThA
AEEAREREREBRAR The PRC Registered capital N/A 57% N/A  Provision of rehabiltation and
i 22 October 2014 RMB1,000,000 N N other healthcare services
AEBAREREREARRAT hE AMERARE T TER REREREMBRRE
—Z-mE 1,000,000 7
TAZ+ZH
* English translated name is for identification purpose only. * B ELEHET
Except for Kanghua Healthcare Management (HK) Company Limited, all GCEHREEZEEIE (F5)ARAAIN
other subsidiaries are wholly-domestic owned enterprise with limited FEEMIB AR ARPBEKIHNE

liability established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

REFEAZELE -

LT PNy
B -

ERFESE

REREBITEMAER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 38. MEBARER (&)
The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the TRETAEEIEZEWMBRRINSE
Group that have material non-controlling interests at the end of each year: FEHRASEAFERERNFE
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal and voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AR L 2 FERER ITEEFERESR
Lol REIBREME BEERRERELH fRFl (B18) Rt FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“F-N\E ZTLF —B-\F -3-LF ZF-N\F -TLff
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETL ARMFL ARETI

Renkang Hospital The PRC 43% 43% 4,026 4,547 28,201 24,175
CRER H
Anhui Hualin Group The PRC 43% N/A 1,079 N/A 17,720 N/A
ZHEREE e TEA A TEA
Zhonglian Cardiovascular The PRC
Hospital 40% N/A (1,776) N/A 84,616 N/A
FHLMERER i TEA TEA TERA
(6,671) 4,547 130,537 24175
Summarised financial information in respect of Renkang Hospital that EBRBEEERFERERNCREER
has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised AR ESRSI T o AT
financial information below represents amounts before intragroup EREE BN A R M HATEEE -
eliminations.
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT

Current assets MENE E 64,406 64,386
Non-current assets JEMENE E 132,900 139,663
Current liabilities nB B E (131,722) (147,828)
Equity affributable to owners of the Company AR E A AL 37,383 32,046
Non-controlling interests of Renkang Hospital 1= B B8 B JF 2 B b 5 28,201 24,175

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd 38. MIBRREHR (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Revenue & 224,522 214,600
Other income HAp g A 1,456 361
Total expenses A (216,615) (204,386)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMNEEEBALLTE
for the year 9,363 10,575
Profit and total comprehensive income LATR & TH FE A5 5 R 7
for the year attributable to: ZEB AL :
— owners of the Company I VNECIEZ ZS DN 5,337 6,028
- non-controlling interests —SEIERR M = 4,026 4,547
9,363 10,575
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBEFRERA 35,314 43,534
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEZEFEFRESME (8,686) (6,951)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEHNEFRS AL (34,112) (22,370)
Net cash (outflow) inflow FEE ORE) mA (7,484) 14,213
Summarised financial information in respect of Anhui Hualin Group that B A ERFERER O L RER
has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised SENMBERBESINNT o AT
financial information below represents amounts before intragroup MBERBIZREB AN RBEHEA
eliminations. B &5 o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARETT

Current assets mEBEE 30,817 N/AZT 3 A
Non-current assets FERBEE 24,180 N/A 38
Current liabilities nBaE (13,786) N/A i
Equity atfributable to owners of the Company $ AIMEE AE(h R 23,491 N/A 38
Non-controlling interests of Anhui Hualin Group %2 i 7 52 B JEH i i 25 17,720 N/A 3 A

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 AR LFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd 38. MIBRRIEHR (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Revenue Wz 49,670 N/A i A
Other income HAup g A 2,358 N/A 73 FR
Total expenses B (49,518) N/A 73 R
Profit and total comprehensive income FREMNEEEBALLTE
for the year 2,510 N/A 35 FA
Profit and total comprehensive income PATR & T8 FE A 5 R A
for the year attributable to: ZHEWALLE :
— owners of the Company . NEIEZ FS PN 1,431 N/A 3 F
— non-controlling interests — IR RRAE R 1,079 N/A 3 A
2,510 N/A 3 A
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBEFRERA 7,236 N/A 73 R
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEZEFAEFRESME (18,527) N/ATNE A
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEESEFREMA 16,485 N/A 38
Net cash inflow FEERA 5194 N/A i

Summarised financial information in respect of Zhonglian Cardiovascular
Hospital that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before

B RS BRI 25 ) R 0 I
ERBROVBERBMEIHINMT -
UTHBERBRIEREBARRES

infragroup eliminations. HATH 25 o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBFT
Current assets MEEE 23,540 N/A 38
Non-current assets FERBEE 477,714 N/A T3 R
Current liabilities nBaE (263,491) N/A i
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (26,225) N/ANE A
Equity affributable to owners of the Company AR B #EH AR (LS 126,922 N/A A3 FA

Non-controlling interests of Zhonglian SRESE U B 8 B B JE R AR i o

Cardiovascular Hospital 84,616 N/A T~ A

—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE208F12 A3NBIEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont<d)

38. B ABER (&)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Revenue & 16,185 N/A i A

Other income E A 126 N/A 73 R

Total expenses B (45,752) N/A 7~ 3
Loss and fotal comprehensive expense FABEREERZEE

for the year (29,441) N/A 35 A
Loss and total comprehensive expense NTEEEREFAEER

for the year atfributable to: PHEF4RE :

— owners of the Company . /NEIEZ FS PN (17,665) N/A A3

— non-controlling interests — IR AE R (11,776) N/A i

(29,447) N/A 3 A

Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBEFRER/A 38,545 N/A 7~ 3 R

Net cash outflow from investing acfivities BREFHAEFHRELSRE (13,089) N/ATNE A

Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEFBAEFES KL (20,058) N/A i

Net cash inflow FIREMA 5,398 N/A 8 A

BEREEBERNARQR 5 2018
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Financial Summary

HBEE
For the year ended 31 December
BEZ+t-A=t—-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E Z—E—+tFf ZE-RF —E-AF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT ARETRT
RESULTS E$
Revenue Wz 1,639,287 1,389,169 1,240,390 1,063,702 985,108
Profit before taxation B 5 A& A 221,754 218,076 198,473 148,818 135,212
Income tax expenses g Rif X (60,482) (56,937) (52,786) (29,854) (27,445)
Profit for the year F R F 161,272 161,139 145,687 118,964 107,767
Attributable to: IATATEIG#ER
Equity owners of the Company N A AIEZ A A 167,943 156,592 141,260 118,847 102,237
Non-controlling interests R (6,671) 4,547 4,427 n7 5,530
161,272 161,139 145,687 118,964 107,767
As at 31 December
W+=—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-NE Tt ZT-XF T—aF ZT-@OF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE ARETT AR®BTT ARETIT ARETR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Total assets HWEE 2,203,052 1,732,393 1,595,978 1,105,920 1,885,024
Total liabilities BafE (693,578) (442,994) (420,935) (859,172) 1,746,656
1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043 246,748 138,368
Equity attributable to: AT AT
Equity owners of the Company AR RJEmIFH A 1,378,937 1,265,224 1,155,415 231,547 123,284
Non-controlling interests R 130,537 24175 19,628 15,201 15,084
1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043 246,748 138,368
Notes: (T
(i The financial information set out above is prepared in accordance with International (i) Tl B IS ERHE R BB R S ER R -
Financial Reporting Standards.
il The financial summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements. i)  MBHMEILTEXGEMBHREO—EM0 -
[il  The financial information of year 2014 to 2015 was extracted from the accountants’ (i) TE-NEE T -TENTEER
report dated 27 October 2016. ERMA-Z-RE+TA-tTERNEF
s e

—
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Anhui Hualin

Anhui Hualin Group
[ RERR = E
Articles

(&2 ]

Audit Committee

[EZZEE]
AGM

[BERBFRE]

Board of Directors or Board

[EEg]
Company

RNVNCIR

CG Code

[RERTAI

Controlling Shareholders

[ B B R

Director(s)

[E%]

Definitions

Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Lid. (Z @R BB F IR E R 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 19 December 2016 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by Dongguan Kanghua Medical Rehabilitation Investment Company Limited (5 52 &
#REBFEIRE B R A F]), awholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 43% held by
Hefei Haihua Enterprises Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& A&
BEPEEERERNGERE(ERSE ), anindependent Third Party
TRHERBEREBRLAF RZT—R"E+A+NBEFBEKIHNERR - H
BRDFB—HRF2ENBRRTRBIE=DAFE57%k43% (TEELH
BEROER)

Anhui Hualin together with the entities the results of which are consolidated into its financial
statements

ZHEREANEERNEEAHIMBRERSD

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or supplemented from
fime to fime

ARRRMATRIER] - ERHBRNRRER

the audit committee of the Board
EEZRERELEY

the annual general meeting of the Company for the year 2018 to be convened and held on
12 June 2019
KRR _E-—NAFRAT_BEBRRBITHN - \FERRBFRY

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREEG

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. (& 5 B 2 & & i 15 B BR 22 7)), a joint stock
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC, the H Shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 3689)
BREFEEROHDBERRAF  —KBBERBEEERINBRNDBRAF - EHRRE
AR BT AR T (AR 5% - 3689)

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BB LTHRAMEE+OAENCEEERTAD

has the meaning ascribed under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group, Xingye
Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property as a group of Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, and each of them, a “Controlling Shareholder”
HEALTRAFAETRRE  BRIEXEZEME BEXBHELE EEERLL
FRESE EESE RERELE IEHLTREEVEER—BERRREBRRE -
MKEESE R — B ERERR]

the director(s) of the Company

ARABEEHEMN—LES
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N

Definitions

Domestic Sharel(s)
[RE K]
Group or we or our

[ SR e[ 3

Guangdong HFPC

[ERE#TE

H Sharels)

[HA ]

HK$ or Hong Kong dollars

&7t

Hong Kong
(&

Hong Kong Listing Rules
(&8 WA

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
[ &5 B B 32 PR

Huaxin Building
[ZENE]
Independent Third Party(ies)

o —

[BE=7]

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB and are unlisted Shares which are
currently not listed or fraded on any stock exchange
RARETEREEAARK 100 T IAARBEREIARY| AEUE RO LR -
WERBAAREERAESFR S LR HHIE LT

the Company and its subsidiaries

EN/NCIDS @)= PNC]

the Health and Family Planning Commission of Guangdong Province (& 5 & &4 &t 2l
4 & % B &), which was reorganised from the former Guangdong Province Department
of Health (& 3 % &7 £ &) and Guangdong Province Population and Family Planning
Commission (EEE A O FETE|4 B Z B in October 2013 and includes its predecessor
regulatory bodies for the purpose of this document

ERAFENNEEEZES R =F+ABNGEREHEERERE A
AMAEEEZEGHENYL RAXHMES @ BREZSINFEEHRE

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the ordinary share capital of the
Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
ARAREBREBAFGREEARELOOTTAIRIN ETINE EBAR - i AB TR
NEE REBBMIMERLED

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEETES

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EEFB R RITTHRER

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(BEBMERXZMAERQAES LMK  EIRERT - #FRaEN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBEXHMER AR

refers to the complex (2 2, #) at Kanghua Hospital which was commissioned to provide
VIP healthcare services
REBREOE  EHRRFEEEBERS

Any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company within the meaning
ascribed thereto under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BEEEEWHRA BERES LTANE THORE - WIERRAIMEANTHER
BB AT
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Kangdi Enterprise

i
3
i
i

Kanghua Group

[RESH]

Kanghua Hospital

[ BR#E B Pr |

Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

[ B & B8 B M B % |

Model Code
[E2%E<FAl]

NHFPC

IZESERES

Nomination Committee

[fREMEES

Definitions

Dongguan Kangdi Enterprise Co., Lid. (5= B % & 2 5 [R A A1), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 25 July 2014 with 50% of its equity interest held by
Mr. Wang Zhengren (£ B2 1) and 50% by Ms. Wang Keying (E 7] &), all of whom are
members of the Wang Family, being cousins of Mr. Wang Junyang. Kangdi Enterprise holds
a 15% equity interest in Renkang Hospital

RETRGEEZEBERAR  — XX ZE-—HFtA-+THRETBEKINBREE
NA > ERERERCEEREAERTRFRS0% REHRIRRENKE K
TELRENERLRERK - RHEENCRBRFFH15% 8 I

Dongguan Kanghua Investment Group Co., Lid. (REEMREERE S B FR 2 7)),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 29 March 2002 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 59.06% interest in the Company. It is
owned as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang Junyang and as to 2.54% by Ms. Wang Aici. Kanghua
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Xingye Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang
Aigin and Xingda Property are acting together as a group of Controlling Shareholders
REMREREEBERAR — KRS _F=A=-ThBEREKINE
RETAT  FHERRFANS906% s ENRNBEIEHEERTERELTHE
97.46% %% 2.54% - REEE - TEH KL  FTEREL LT  HELEE REREE X
BEYPLLRBEYRER —EERBRR 2T

Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co., Ltd. (5 52 5 %= 2 B B R 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 15 September 2005 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

REREBRARQF  —ZR_ZETZRAFAATHEREFEKNIHNEREERR -
BARRARNZENB AR

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Kanghua Hospital and
Kanghua Group with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of
Kanghua Hospital

HEREERERELSERFEEE R S BN T RBEYEIVHBERR T —X
FOATAMEERR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
EELTRAM ST ETETAZESETIERRHRLETA)

the National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC (/R £ A F 4t 1 3 &7 4
M&+2EI4 B % 8 €), which was reorganised from the former Ministry of Health (74 &)
and the National Population and Family Planning Commission (B A DMzt EIAE £ 8
&) in March 2013 and includes such predecessor regulatory board for the purpose of this
document

PEARRMEGHENGFEEEZES R =F-AAMSHETERERA
AMTEEBEZEGEMANY RAXHMES - BREZSINTEEKE

the nomination committee of the Board

EFeRA%EE

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018

221



N

Definitions

Non-Competition Undertaking
[~ 35 5 A |

08G
(B ERH

PRC or China
[ F

PRC Company Law

[H B EDE]

Proposed Final Dividend
[ AREHAR

Prospectus

[ =R

Reporting period
[ HAME

Remuneration Committee

[(FHEEE]

Renkang Hospital

(=B E k]

Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement

[CRERBERH

the non-competition undertaking dated 11 October 2016 provided by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company

ZRBERARNRB AR BEARBOBEH R T RFT A+ BT HEF A

obstetrics and gynaecology

fw EE T

the People’s Republic of China
hEEARLM

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (7 # A R H£ 1 & A 7]%), as
amended and adopted by the Standing Committee of the Twelfth National People’s
Congress on 28 December 2013 and effective on 1 March 2014, as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time
(hEARHK %ﬂl”&ﬂiﬂ EE%-I—_):’E\I}\EHEEK EBEEEY
TZAZHN\REEEBEA BT —UF=A—HRER  &T

IAHE A 75 B 2R

the proposed final dividend distribution plan of RMB16 cents per Share (inclusive of
applicable tax) subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM as described under
the section headed “Dividend” on pages 40 to 41 of this annual report
WAFHREAOZNARE ] —HFR - BRERPRBKEAEERARK 16 (B
BANE) ARERRREBEFRE LHER - BeEE

the prospectus of the Company dated 27 October 2016
ARRBEHPRA-T—R"F+A-TLENHERER

the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—)\F+_A=+—HBLFE

The remuneration committee of the Board

EFeVMEES

Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd. (B 521 FE & ft B R 2 &]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 August 2005 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by the Company, 15% by Kangdi Enterprise, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan and 13% by
Ms. Wang Aier, respecﬁvely

RECERERARAR  — KR _ZETRFN\AZT=ZAERBEXIOHEREEAF
H R ) E\JEEZ!K/&T FHEEE FARLEREERZERHE57%  15%  15% K
13%

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Renkang Hospital and Tongli
Enterprise with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of Renkang

Hospital
HECEBRERNEERCRERECERFN L REEMIINERA T —
FHUA+BNEERR

222 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co. Ltd. Annual Report 2018

/



RMB
AR

SFO

(78 % R H S &P
Sharels)

(Rt ]

Shareholder(s)
&% |

subsidiary or subsidiaries
[~ a ]

substantial shareholder(s)
EX N

Supervisor(s)

[B% ]

Supervisory Committee

=

Tongli Enterprise

[RIANEX]

Definitions

B

the lawful currency of the PRC

FEDEE S

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EREDIESNEC(ESF LG GRD) (B ARERT - MR AR A EH)

sharel(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the Domestic Share(s) and the H Sharel(s)
AARBRAFEREBEARBL00THRG - 2FEAEREKHR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BEE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong)
BEBEBENE 622 ECRARERIDI FZANE &

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Hong Kong Listing Rules

ABEB LTRABTFRANES

the members of the Supervisory Committee

the Company’s supervisory committee established pursuant to the PRC Company Law

ARRBRBEPERDERINESTE

Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Co., Ltd. (R 51 [E 71 & % B R A 7), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 June 2003 with 43% of its equity interest being held
by Ms. Wang Aigin, 29% by Ms. Wang Aici, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan (5% 7+ 7%) and 13%
by Ms. Wang Aier (£ & 52), respectively, all of whom are members of the Wang Family,
being aunts of Mr. Wang Junyang. Pursuant o a nominee arrangement among the Wang
Family, (i) Ms. Wang Aici (an aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang) agreed to hold 16% of her equity
interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang; (i) Ms. Wang Aigin (an aunt of
Mr. Wang Junyang and the spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi) agreed to hold 15% and 6.5%
of her equity interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, respectively; and (i) Ms. Wang Aigin agreed to hold 15% of her equity interest in
Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Wencheng (£ XX X )

REMRNEEERAR — KR _ZZ=F A +T=BETREKINERE
FRF ERESHNBETESL T FTERELZ T RANXITRIERLZTHAE
43% ~ 29% ~ 15% N 13%  HEHIRERRENXEREEH RENGEHNES - 1R
BEIRREFHRBALH (1 TE2RZT (FELAENUER]) RAERXREESL L
ARAERRNERI6%ER : (| EEB 2+ (EBRH R ENGE RRE KA ECE)
RERREBHEERREREEDFIFAEERB N EE15%EE K 6.5% s K

FHPRTREBERXTEXNKEERAEERRANEE 5% ER

ERREERRGBR AR T 2018

223



Definitions
Wang Family
[ Rk

Xingda Property

Xingye Group

(B H

Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital
[ AR Bk O 1L B s B8 e

%
%

The family members of the founder of the Group, the late Mr. Wang Jincheng (£ & ),
including (i) his children; (i) his siblings; (il the spouses of his siblings; and (iv) the children of
his siblings

REBEPMACHESHAENRENXE @ B E F22 5 (i) KB Lbik : (i) &K
BRI B - R (iv B L B R F &2

Dongguan Xingda Property Investment Co., Lid. (R EiEWEREER 2 7), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 14 December 2001 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 8.22% interest in the Company. It is owned
as to 50% each by Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin. Xingda Property, Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group are acting fogether as a group of Controlling Shareholders
REMBEEVEREERAT — KR —F+_ATHAEFBEKRKINEGR
NAEFHARNRAIL8.22% s - HFRRENR A EREESH L RS 50% - BEDE -
PRERSEE  FTEHLLT  FEBHELE ITEEKT RESEBREEEEER—
BIERRR —1TH

Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. (SR 521 # 2 & B A IR 2 7)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 15 April 1997 and one of the Controlling Shareholders holding
approximately 7.48% interest in the Company. It is owned as to 80% by Mr. Wang Junyang
and as to 20% by Ms. Wang Aici, respectively. Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Kanghua Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property are acting
together as a group of Controlling Shareholders
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Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Lid. (& B BE 58 S B 0 I &
TR E BT A IR A 7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 June 2014 and a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
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